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CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

REGISTERED OFFICE

Victoria Place, 5th Floor, 31 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM 10, Bermuda

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN THE PRC

10 Zhongshi Road, Changsha City
Hunan Province, the PRC

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE
OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Room 7707-7708

77th Floor, International Commerce Centre
1 Austin Road West

Kowloon, Hong Kong

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor

PRINCIPAL BANKER

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corproation Limited
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
The Belvedere Building

69 Pitts Bay Road

Pembroke, HMO8

Bermuda

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716

17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong
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WEBSITE

http://cmdrawin.todayir.com

SHAREHOLDERS’ INFORMATION
Share listing
The Company'’s Shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock

Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Ordinary Share (as at 31 December 2019)

Shares outstanding: 11,209,602,920 shares
Nominal value: HK$0.10 per share
FINANCIAL CALENDAR

2019 annual results announcement:
22 April 2020

Book closure period (for determining shareholders” eligibility to
attend and vote at the annual general meeting (the “2020 AGM"):

2 June 2020 to 5 June 2020 (both days inclusive)

2020 AGM:
5 June 2020
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Architecture Science Institute
BRI

DIT Group Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Company”,
together with its subsidiaries, collectively, “the Group”) (stock
code: 726HK) is listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited.

The Group positions itself as a leading service provider of
comprehensive and integrated solutions to intelligent buildings
as well as an innovative high-tech enterprise engaging in the
ecological chain construction of intelligent buildings and we are
the first listed company in the prefabricated construction
industry. The Group is mainly engaged in the business of
modernization of construction industry and prefabricated
construction business encompassing a wide coverage ranging
from the research and development as well as operation of
prefabricated construction technology, the expansion and
operation of intelligent prefabricated construction plants to the
manufacture of precast components for prefabricated
construction.
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The key mission of the Group lies in the provision of both green
buildings and the comprehensive solutions to urban households
whereas the Group is dedicated to the strategic business layout
in the geographical locations nationwide with seizure of the
advantages of industrialization of the construction industry in
China during the golden era of ten years to achieve such
industrialization, informationalization and technologicalization of
the construction industry with the leverage of technology
collaborations among various parties so as to elicit the
unprecedented huge transformation of the traditional
construction industry in China with such a shift from the mode of
“puilding conventions” to that of “precast components + on-the-
site prefabrication”.

The core values of the Group of “the establishment of our
business with sophistication and delicacy in our products based
on the justified conscientiousness and consciousness of the far-
reaching expansion of our business with our mutual respect for
any contribution and input for a shared experience in growth of
our business prosperity” together with our unwavering motto “to
create a promising life with intelligence” facilitates the upgrade
and transformation with modernization of the construction
industry. With our commitment to the creation of the largest
modernized operating platform of the construction industry in
China, we strive to give shape to the new construction industry
which is environmentally friendly, highly efficient and at top
quality by the process of informationalization with the seamless
combination between technology and building. The Group, with
its business location layout which is strategized to the smart
digitalized plants across various provinces and municipalities
directly administered by the central government in China, is the
enterprise equipped with the greatest number of smart
production lines. With the integration of the world's first business
mode of EMPC as exclusively innovated by its parent company,
the Company’s technology and its products receive a great
variety of approvals from the communities and the clients while
the Company currently provides its service for projects under
construction with site area of 6.00 million square metres in China.
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With the consistent adherence persevered by the Group to its
development strategy of “Top Priority for Leading Edge of
Technology”, the Group is equipped with the five most advanced
core technology systems specific to the industry of prefabrication
construction in the world with the Group’s possession of a
plenitude of core technologies ranging from BIM in the context of
intelligent building construction, the Internet of Things, Big Data
to artificial intelligence. The number of the Company’s patents
has been continuously securing top-ranked in the prefabricated
construction industry. The Company’s scientific research
institutes include the one and the only one research centre at
provincial level for the engineering projects specific to the
industry as well as the scientific research platforms such as the
demonstration enterprise models of intelligent manufacturing
and the production bases for the national-level prefabricated
construction industry.

The Group is determined to assist in the realization of the living
experiences of safer, more comfortable and smarter for the
people in general by virtue of continuing technological innovation
with an aim to culminate in an ever more open ecological system
for intelligent buildings.
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of DIT Group Limited (the “Company”), I am pleased to report the
audited consolidated results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2019.

In 2019, China experiences a steady pace of national economic
stability in general with a gradual escalation of quality
development against the global backdrop of the languishing
acceleration of economies in the world. Better realization of the
key objectives of China’'s economy is expected by the annual
gross domestic product amounting to RMB99,086.5 billion,
peaking nearly at RMB100,000 billion, while the gross domestic
product per capita has made its breakthrough up to USD10,000,
which is far more than the average of the upper intermediate
level of income in some countries.
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This year sees the prefabricated construction industry, which is
greatly promoted by the central government in China, as keeping
its fast-forward momentum of its development. Subject to the
enhancement of promotion of the policies for the prefabricated
construction industry, the competition in the market has been
increasingly intensified which is evidenced by the continuing
increment of the gross floor areas for the newly built
constructions and the more and more prefabricated construction
plants are in operation while the prefabricated construction
method becomes more preferred to be adopted for the
construction of an ever increasing number of public buildings
and commaodity housing projects. With the upcoming culmination
in the critical point of the prefabricated construction in 2020
which shall represent over 15% of the market share of newly built
construction as required by the Action Proposal on prefabricated
construction under the 13" Five-Year Plan, the development
scale of prefabricated construction industry in China continues
its skyrocketing growth.

NEW VITALITY UNLEASHED BY THE
INDUSTRY SYNERGY THROUGH THE
PLATFORM UPGRADE

On 22 July 2019, it is a day which is marked by an extraordinarily
terrific moment which leaves an indelible spot of highlight for the
milestone of development of the Group which officially joins the
big family of Central China. From that moment on, the Group has
managed to capture the untapped potential of development
opportunities of brand new hugely massive blue ocean markets
with synergy of the industry players’ collaborations in addition to
the hugely massive blue ocean markets which are worth trillions
of dollars we have garnered related to prefabricated construction
in China. The Group’s active engagement of the business
collaborations of much substance established with the segments
ranging from real property, new lifestyle, education to investment
has achieved a positive synergetic effect by virtue of rapid
progress of EMPC-based mode on collaborations when the Group
will quickly blend itself into Central China in the future, which lies
the strategy adopted by the Group to make a future of much
fulfillment.
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BREAKTHROUGH ATTAINED FOR THE
PLANTS OPERATIONS AMID THE
IMPROVEMENT OF PRODUCTION CAPACITY

Our prefabricated construction plants garnered more remarkable
results by way of technology improvement and management
enhancement throughout this year. Those plants which have
been in operation achieve the total annual production capacity of
185,100 cubic metres with the year-on-year growth of 36%
whereas the delivery of products achieves 183,000 cubic metres
with the year-on-year growth of 44% and the earnings achieved
by those plants are represented by the year-on-year growth of
246%.

Our various plants in terms of their operations become the
industry benchmark in the areas where those plants are located,
among which, the plants in Jiaozuo and Xiangtan gain profit in
the first year of the commencements of their operations, the
plants in Nanjing with the annual total net profit of RMB25.7
million becomes the most profitable prefabricated construction
plants in Jiangsu Province, the annual contract filings for the
plants in Jiaozuo of over RMBO0.3 billion enables those plants to
be in championship over the sales among all prefabricated
construction plants in Henan Province, the cost of single unit per
square metre for the plants in Changsha realizes RMB1,850
which enable those plants to become the benchmarking
reference of cost control.

In addition, we realize the external management consultation for
the advanced operations management technology of our plants
by way of culmination with contract signing for 5 management
consultation projects, which serves to create a very favourable
condition of the future expansion of the operations of our light
assets.
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MORE REASONABLE BUSINESS LAYOUT
SYSTEM BY WAY OF STRATEGIC BUSINESS
LOCATION LAYOUT NATIONWIDE

2019 is also a year which sees a continuous trend of upward
development in regards to the prefabricated construction industry
where the Company's effort of presence is intensified. This year
sees an additional new commencement of operation of two
prefabricated construction factories located in Jiaozuo and
Xiangtan, which have increased to 10 prefabricated construction
factories which are officially commenced in their operations from
the original 8 prefabricated construction factories by the
Company.

Meanwhile, we have put more effort in the strategic business
location layout for the prefabricated construction industry specific
to the regions in Henan Province so as to establish a closer
connection of greater strength to the property business in the
regions with cutting-edge advantage. Following the signing of
agreements related to the projects located in Zhoukou and
Fengdeng and the Company'’s success in bidding of the land for
Phase One commercial and residential land parcels in Zhoukou as
well as the completion of delisting of land parcels for industrial
purposes of science parks located in Dongli, Tinjin and Nantong,
Jiangsu throughout this year, the Company has achieved an
annual turnover for prefabricated construction amounted to
HK$580 million with a year-on-year increase by 36.9% which
results in a significant improvement of operating efficiency.
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IMPROVEMENT OF OUR BRAND PRESENCE
BOOSTED BY OUR CONFIDENCE IN THE
BUSINESS SUBJECT TO THE INDUSTRY
IMPACT

With reliance upon the business mode of whole EMPC-based
industrial chains of the parent company, various projects with
our services involvement have become the prominent projects of
prefabricated construction in the areas where they are located.
The Greenland Intercity Space Station Project located in
Changsha, a project which is the very first high-rise prefabricated
residential building with a height of over 130 metres constructed
with concrete, is awarded with “the demonstration model of
engineering construction of highlighted ad-hoc projects for green
buildings and construction industrialization under the crucial
national research and design schemes during the period of 13th
Five-Year Plan” and “the project in the construction scheme of
demonstration models of engineering construction with
application of new technology for construction industry at
provincial level in Hunan Province”. Nine projects under the
Standing Committee of Hunan Province, which are the main
reception venues for the First China-Africa Economic and Trade
Expo, are appraised as “the demonstration models of
prefabrication construction in Hunan Province of the Year 2019".
Phase Two of Huaruncheng Projects located in Qingdao are the
very first of the kind of the high-rise prefabricated constructions
in Shandong Province with their specified work sites for
demonstration display purpose of construction of engineering
projects with prefabricated construction of residential buildings
in Laoshan District of Qingdao City, which are appraised as the
work sites of demonstration model of standardization in the
same city. Project of Chenhuiyuan Court as government
apartments for young talents directly administered by Henan
Province is the highlighted engineering work for the people’s
welfare under the provincial reinforcement strategy of “Retaining
Talents by Construction of Accommaodation” for retaining talents
of Henan Province while such project is appraised as “the project
with the highest speed of construction among ten government
apartments for talents under construction in Henan Province” by
the industry players of prefabricated construction.
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Moreover, we are the host to organize a successful event of
major academic conference, “The Fifth National BIM Academic
Conference”, which is the only one of its kind of such a large-
scale academic conference with its theme dedicated to BIM held
in China. It is the very first time for us, the first and foremost
private enterprise, to be the organizer of such academic
conference during which we launch our intelligent construction
ecology system, which receives the highest degree of recognition
from the industry experts as well as a wide range of media
coverages under press spotlight, having rendered us the leading
player of the prefabricated construction industry in terms of the
comprehensive competitiveness related to research and design
capabilities.

Based on industry estimation, the prefabricated construction
scale will be amounted to RMB800 billion in 2020, which is the
booming year officially marked by a great leap of further
development of economies of scales which are accentuated by
the momentum of prefabricated construction industry. The
potential opportunities of the Group are blue ocean strategies
and blue ocean massive markets with the synergetic effect
among industry players will definitely pave the way for the Group
to be a power of force to be reckoned in the industry. Whilst a
great deal of endeavour to be made in respect of the synergy
with the industry system and networking, a great amount of
efforts will be made by the Group in regards to our strength
enhancement by putting an extra focus on research and design
commitments of much commercial and application value so as to
further maximize the scales of economies effect to its fullest
extent in such a way that further enhancement on standardized
management level can be attained. With an unwavering motto to
create a promising life with intelligence as our mission and a
vantage position to be a service provider of comprehensive and
integrated solutions to intelligent buildings as our objective, we
are dedicated to making the Group an ever more open ecological
system for intelligent buildings by virtue of our full devotion to
technology and keen optimization to our management with our
highest aim to make constant breakthroughs in the field of top-
notched technology advancement on the uppermost tier of value
chains across the prefabricated construction industry, thereby
rendering us an assistance to the realization of living experiences
of safer, more comfortable and smarter twists for the people in
general.
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APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
express my sincere gratitude to the staff for their hard work and
dedication during the past year. | would also like to express our
gratitude to all shareholders, investors and other business
partners for their continuing support and trust to the Group.

By order of the Board of
DIT Group Limited
Wu Po Sum

Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 April 2020
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

BHISE

SUMMARY OF CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT #ZAia35&kiE

OF PROFIT OR LOSS

For the year ended 31 December

BET—_HA=1+—HILFE

2019 2018 Changes
—E-hE —ZE-)N\F EE
Revenue (HK$'000) WA (F#ET) 695,901 530,232 31.2%
Gross profit (HK$'000) EM(FHET) 177,775 158,125 12.4%
Gross profit margin EF=R 25.5% 29.8% -4.3*
Net profit (HK$'000) wm ) (FA&T) 113,617 19,340 487.5%
Net profit margin o ) 26 16.3% 3.6% 12.7*
Profit attributable to equity shareholders BEEsEA ATEGEF
(HK$'000) (F%7T) 110,749 27,427 303.8%
Basic earnings per share (HK$ cents) BRERAFICEML) 0.99 0.24 312.5%
Diluted earnings per share (HK$ cents) SREERF (GE) 0.99 0.24 312.5%
SUMMARY OF CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT #ZGZREe BB RERBE
OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS at 31 December R+=—A=+—H
2019 2018 Changes
—E-hEFE —ZET-)N\F HE
Total cash (including cash and cash BE(PRERER
equivalents and restricted bank deposit) HEZEEBEBEUL
(HK$°000) BRHGFR)(FET) 206,786 264,390 -21.8%
Total assets (HK$'000) BERRZE(FET) 3,466,997 3,358,006 3.2%
Total liabilities (HK$'000) afE®sE(FET) 1,047,954 979,477 7.0%
Total equity (including non-controlling B (BIEEER
interest) (HK$'000) W) (FET) 2,419,043 2,378,529 1.7%
Total debt (HK$'000) B85 (F&7T) 488,701 500,980 -2.5%
Current ratio @ mELE® 112.7% 138.3% -25.6*
Gearing ratio @ FEEL R 12.1% 11.0% 1.1%
Net asset value per share (HKS) SREEFECET) 0.22 0.21 4.8%
Equity attributable to equity shareholders A AEN
per share (HK$) Gkt (ET) 0.16 0.16 0%
Notes: * Change in percentage pants et >  BEDLLEH
©) Calculated based on the total current assets divided by the total (1) HRBEERNATEDEE

current liabilities
2) Calculated as set out on page 37
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MACROECONOMIC LANDSCAPE

International Landscape

2019 is a year which witnesses the phenomenal trends of
unilateralism and protectionism across nations which
prevail against such backdrop during when the eras of
globalization and multi-polarization reign ubiquitously,
giving rise to the frequent trade tensions which are
intensified by strategic games and witty competitions by
confrontation between and among superpowers, which
result in potential reshuffle of roles of all nations by division
of labour implied in the international arena, whereas,
coupled with the fact that the growth of the economy
across the globe demonstrates a mild deceleration in
general due to insufficient total demand in the absence of
new driving momentum which keeps economic dynamics
to grow, thus culminating to a slow pace which is widely
experienced by 90% economies in the world.

A deceleration in the growth of trade volumes and a
substantial drop in import and export trade volumes around
the globe makes World Trade Organization lower its
forecast of the expected growth of international trade of
goods down to 1.2% from 2.4% in October 2019 while
lowering its forecast of the expected growth regarding
international trade from 3.4% to 3% in 2020; according to
the forecast made by International Monetary Fund (IMF) in
October 2019, the international economic growth stands at
3%, which has so far hit the lowest ever since the financial
crisis outbreak in 2008. Due to the weakened and lethargic
manufacturing industries in the major economies which
result from the decline in acceleration of productions of
industries in the world, a continuous linger below the
critical threshold line of 50% is charted for the Purchasing
Managers' Index (PMI) during the year.

Various appropriate measures have thus far taken by the
world major economies at an opportune time with an aim
to stabilize economic acceleration which is evidenced by
the respective realizations in economic growth that
achieved at 2.3%, 1,6% and 6.0% respectively for USA,
Europe and China whilst 3% of enhancement in the global
economic growth is attained amid the general slowdown in
economic performance.

EREEKRRE
) EREANZ
1 EIBHZ

20195 - ERREMESBIENKRERT -
HEEEFEMREEIRET BEHERMAE
REEZEME  2XRERESTRBEERE
B ARERAEERZHOERS ] 2
RELT R HRAKERE2EFERNE
£ 0% mEHEEIIE T RRM L

HARBZHELHRFE  HRENOEHEAR
e T HZEAHN2019F 10 ABREEE
MEBEZHEERRN 24T HAE12% &
2020 F 2 EE S RIEAN34% TFHE3% :
10 A BB &R & A (MR FER - 2019F
P ERIC PR IZ R B 3% + £ H 2008 F & jh 5 1
IRBE AR AR B KTF - R T 2 A E R E
& FEROERELEERE - AFEHRBEL
15 21 (PMI) R A& MK FL 50% A SR Ak 4R o

R BB AR E A B T SR - B
ERBIEE - ZF - BONFFREDRIEERT
2.3% * 1.6% M 6.0% W& BEIE R - 2R
BRERREENS S NER T 3%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

In particular, year 2020 is expected to be a challenging
year. The unexpected outbreak of COVID-19 has brought
adverse impact on the macroeconomic condition in an
international and domestic context which is expected to
persist. The Directors will continue to observe closely and
manage risks associated. With the Group's experienced
management team and reputation in the market, the
Directors consider that the Group is well-positioned to
compete against its competitors under such future
challenges that are commonly faced by all competitors.

Development Landscape in China

2019 not only marks the critical year which witnesses the
grandiose celebration of the 70" anniversary for
establishment of the People’s Republic of China in new era
but also marks the crucial year when full realization of an
all-round moderately prosperous society is achieved. The
overall economy in China remains steady which is
contributed by a steady and stable enhancement for
development quality. With surpassing results achieved
beyond expectation by virtue of the motto, “synchronic
progression with stability in 6 aspects” and “3 major tough
missions”, the gross domestic product of China in 2019
amounts to RMB99,086.5 hillion, representing an increase
by 6.1% as compared with last year on an invariable price
basis, which results in steady enhancement of overall
economic volume with continuous optimization of
economic structures.

In terms of investments in China, the investment in
manufacturing industries rebounds from low level which
results in the increase in annual investment in
manufacturing industries by 3.1%, of which the investment
in equipment manufacturing industries increases by 4.3%,
the investment in technological reforms for the
manufacturing industries increases by 7.4%; there is a rapid
growth in the investment in real estate development which
is contributed by the fact that annual investment in real
estate development increases by 9.9% as compared with
last year whereas the floor areas under construction by
real estate developers increase by 8.7% as compared with
last year; there is also a rapid growth in the investment in
high-technology industries which is contributed by the fact
that the annual investment in high-technology industries
increases by 17.3% as compared with last year while the
investment in high-technology manufacturing industries
increases by 17.7% as compared with last year,
representing more than 20% of the total investment in the
manufacturing industries.

EEE WKk ()

FRlR et —E_TFH{IAKEEN—
F e MUBRRSHTENESE  AHER
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This year sees booming periods when prefabricated
construction experiences rapid growth which is evidenced
by the advice documents specific to the local areas on
implementation and planning of the prefabricated
construction issued by all of the 31 provinces including
autonomous regions and municipalities directly
administered under the Central Government in China.
According to the Action Proposal on prefabricated
construction under the 13" Five-Year Plan, it provides that
the prefabricated construction in 2020 shall represent over
15% of the market share of newly built construction. In the
passing year as recent as in 2019, the industry of fabricated
construction continues to expand in terms of its overall
scale thanks to the combined effect of the guidance of
policies together with the faster speed in investment
momentum for real estate development. Based on the
forecast report entitled “Overview Profile of Prefabricated
Construction Industry in China” published by Qianzhan
Industry Institute, the new floor areas under construction of
prefabricated construction in the market of real estate
development amount to 252 million square metres,
accounting for 12% with the market scale of RMB630.0
billion.

KEAZEEE - FRNREZERY 26
JNMEAEMEARE2HMEE T AN ERER
BRMBRE - B+ =0 KA ARET
B R)BR2020FRE AN ZEAEHREE
FEE L IE15% PA £ - 2019 FAERERTH) —
F - ERRSIENFHERERERRIER
MEBERT  TEREFERA  AIRE
EMRGC(FEREAZEEXZEREL) R
SR - 2019 FrhBEIR R A LA F HER
BEMISHEFEEEL /252008 F 75K -
1B ERI12% - T 5 R IRE R AR 6,300
(v

Policy abstract of prefabricated construction in all 3 PEEBETEOAEZZERRFHE

provinces and autonomous regions and

municipalities directly administered under the

Central Government in China

Region Policy Objective

B BE® B

Anhui “Advice on implementation of By 2020, it is targeted to reach 20% of prefabricated

Province facilitating the rapid development of  construction citywide in the newly built construction
transformation and upgrade of whereas construction main contractors will be determined
construction industry by People's by way of tender by invitation at the promotional
Government of Wuhu City, Anhui demonstration stage with an aim to facilitate the
Province” application of design, construction and management for

the technology of BIM (Building Information Modeling)
LA (ERAEPTARBHAZTER F2020F  2WMERXNBERETEEZELP HFED

RERRXEL AR INRERNOE
2R

20% -

RN R AR AR RRN S A EE AR
By o #EHEBIM(ZEE
RHEM -
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Policy
BUR

EEE WKk ()

Objective
B

Guangdong
Province

Hebei
Province

AdEE

Jiangsu
Province

“Implementation measures on
promoting prefabricated construction
in Foshan City in Guangdong
Province”

(HhLm R R AU B I HE)

“Printing and circulation throughout
Hebei Province of key points on
energy saving construction and
technology tasks as well as key points
on prefabricated construction tasks
in Hebei Province in 2019"

CrEENE% 2019 5 24 2 5L Eh g BL Y
RIFEHMMEENZETFERE)

“Advice on implementation of
facilitating high-quality development
of construction industry by the
Government of Nanjing City in Jiangsu
Province”

(ARMBNEN CEREXSEE
BRONBHEER)

To ensure that floor areas under construction of new
prefabricated construction accounting for over 20% of
that of newly built construction will be achieved in 2020,
of which floor areas of prefabricated construction for the
engineering projects with investment by the government
account for over 50%,; to ensure that floor areas under
construction of new prefabricated construction
accounting for over 35% of that of newly built
construction will be achieved in 2025, of which floor areas
of prefabricated construction for the engineering projects
account for over 70%.

BR2020FERFTEERANBEMBGEFTEREERRED
20% AL HRBTHRETRREREABRER BN ED
50% A L ¢ BEGR 2025 F BIR AT i R i R SR T B (5 T 2
REMBEMNID% AL - ERBAFRE TREEREAEER
TR LRI 70% A £ o

There will be 2 or 3 industrial bases for prefabricated
construction to be cultivated at a provincial level so that
industrial bases for prefabricated construction at national
level are operated based on reports by the institutes
where the cultivation tasks of model cities (counties) for
demonstration of those prefabricated construction at a
provincial level can set apart where model cities (counties)
for demonstration of those prefabricated constructions at
national level are displayed based on reports by the
institutes for the cultivation tasks which will target
accumulatively at about 10 cities (counties) as models for
demonstration purposes.
BRE2-3MARREABEEEE N A PRERERN
BEEEEN  ARERRARERET(F)IEEITE -
AR RBERERNEERENT - R EF10ELE
ET(8R) ©

By 2020, the proportion of floor areas of prefabricated

construction to that of newly built construction will be
over 30%.

% 2020 FF S B 2R SR ¥ S SR T TR A9 1O B 9122 30% JA
_t o
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EEE WKk (F)

Objective
B

Region Policy

B BX

Hubei “Delegation and distribution of tasks

Province on targeted prefabricated
constructions in Hubei Province in
2019"

HitE CHILE DR TN IE2019FEERER B
BT

Hunan “Notice of the Tasks on Facilitation of

Province the Development of the Prefabricated
Construction Provincewide by the
Department of Housing, DRC, the
Department of Natural Resources and
the Department of Finance of Hunan
Province”

ilEak=) CmedEeE #0% - aRAER

B MREENEERERIAZE
BREMIIENEAN)
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By 2020, the floor area under construction by the use of
prefabricated construction provincewide will not be less
than 10.00 million square metres, out of which 3.00
million square metres are for the floor area of
prefabricated construction in Wuhan City in 2019.

20205 - 2 HRARREXZENRZEmMET 1000
BYFK e HRRIZE2019FEREAEEMEI0E F

Apart from the projects stipulated under “Advice on
implementation of facilitating prefabricated construction
development by the People’s Government of Hunan
Province” (Xiang Zheng Ban Fa (2017) No. 28) and “Notice
of the Tasks on Further Facilitation of the Development of
the Prefabricated Construction Provincewide by the
Department of Housing and Urban-Rural Development of
Hunan Province” (Xiang Jian Ke (2018) No. 216), the
prefabricated construction shall also be applied to the
following newly built construction which needs to meet
the requirement of the prefabrication assembly rate
stipulated under “Construction Appraisal Criteria of Green
Prefabricated Construction in Hunan Province” stating
that such criteria shall be applied to: 1. the commodity
housing projects by social investment with construction
height less than 100 metres which are newly built (with
reconstruction for expansion) within smaller residential
communities in the old downtown areas under the core
districts of the city; and 2. the prefabricated construction
projects implemented within the specified zones as
required by the local People’s Governments of the core
districts of all cities in the province.

BROAEE ARBNRABRBARINMREE R RERR
ME S ) CREEE (2017)285%) R CHREA 1E B M
MEREBANE TS RE RN BRELREBALE
KRN ORERF(2018)2165%) HIREMIE B &HESN - T
PR LRIE R hE R AR A B - WiER OB 4%
BRENBETERE)PRERER L. HMFA LT
EZHEER D RIE(CUER) BERESE 100K AT
MtEREEMEEE 2 8mINARBNTETE S E
NE B EEER -
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW

New Development under New Leadership with New
Shareholder

The Group has become the fifth largest business segment
among the companies of Mr. Wu Po Sum (“Mr. Wu") ever
since it is officially acquired by Mr. Wu in July 2019. Ever
since Mr. Wu joined the Group, we have gained enormous
support and immense development scales from the real
estate developers, and thus the future prospect of the
Group is benefitted with powerful support in relation to
capitals, business, innovation synergy which is backed up
by the presence of brand effect, which results in an
increase by 31.2% for the annual turnover of the Group as
compared with that in 2018.

Ever since Mr. Wu joined the Group, we have been in
proactive engagement of business exploration with a
substantial effort of synergy and innovation with the
companies of Mr. Wu in other segments, culminating with
the insight of synergetic mode as “Industry + Property” for
better market feedback received.

It is worth to note that this year sees a huge enhancement
on the social presences of the industry and brand effect of
the Company ever since Mr. Wu joined the Group that its
news conference of announcement of acquisition of the
Company alone has garnered a wide coverage of
mainstream media reports under the categories of
property, construction and economy across China. In
October 2019, the Company’s industrial parks are greeted
by a group of nationwide envoys from mainstream media
representatives who have also conducted a site inspection
visit to the working sites of the prefabricated construction
projects of demonstration models by having a deeper level
of understanding of the technology of prefabricated
construction as well as the recent updates of our business
under the leadership of Mr. Wu, thereby the brand
presence is greatly improved with a better publicity
promotion of the Group'’s business to the public in general.

EEE WKk ()

() RIEERE
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Expansion of our industrial parks

This year sees our efforts made with great emphasis placed
on the enhancement of the expansion and creation of the
industrial parks of prefabricated construction in Henan
Province.

In August 2019, the Group’s green construction industrial
park in Jiaozuo is regarded as the industrial base of
prefabricated construction in Henan Province. The
industrial park is built with a site area of 80 mu comprising
four lines of production including one automatic line of
production, two fixed lines of production and an extra
production line made of rebar reinforcement steel, a
modernized mixing plant as well as a depositary for bulky
building construct components which are dedicated to
those construction markets principally in the peripheral
cities of Zhengzhou, Jiaozuo, Xinxiang, Jiyuan and Kaifeng.

In November 2019, a ceremony of contract signing of
Dengfeng'’s green construction science park is held in
Zhengzhou. The contract outlines the prospective base of
green construction industry for prefabricated construction
in Dengfeng where an industrial park will be built with a
planned site area of 500 mu with annual production
capacity designed to be 0.30 million cubic metres with the
construction details including construction plants of precast
concrete for prefabricated construction, manufacturing
plants of aerated lightweight concrete panels (also known
as its abbreviation of ALC panels), manufacturing plants of
moulds with the markets principally aimed as far as
covering regions of Zhengzhou, Luoyang and Xuchang.

Our business plan in the year 2020 will be laid out for its
continuous effort of realization of the expected completion
of industrial parks located in Nantong, Wuxi, Tianjin,
Zhoukou and Dengfeng, based on its current 10
prefabricated construction plants in operation, for a
proactive approach to facilitate the construction of smart
factories for prefabricated construction.

Operation of our industrial parks

Our plants of prefabricated construction this year
experience steady improvement in respect of profitability; 8
plants of the Group have realized making profit as
represented by the year-on-year growth approximately
250% of net profit.
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The annual net profit is amounted to RMB25.70 million for
the plants in Nanjing, which become the top-ranking profit-
making prefabricated construction plants in Jiangsu
Province; the annual contract filings for the plants in
Jianzuo reach over RMBO0.3 billion, which become the
champion of sales among all prefabricated construction
plants in Henan Province; the cost of price for each single
unit of metre per square for the plants in Changsha realizes
RMB1,850, which has become the benchmark plant of cost
control.

There are 5 contracts relating to management consultation
which are signed by us this year with our effort of the
external management of export of orders relating to
consultation by means of advanced technology of plant
management by way of giving assistance to the realization
of better operation for small and medium sized
prefabricated construction plants with annual charge of
management consultation.

Technology Innovation

In the Fifth National Academic Conference on BIM this year,
the intelligent construction ecology system of the Company
is officially launched by us with such a new system having
integrated the technology of BIM as its core components
which aid in the creation of intelligent management
platform comprising four major platforms and one centre
which are respectively intelligent design platform, intelligent
production cloud platform, intelligent production cloud
platform, intelligent operation and maintenance cloud
platform as well as big data centre covering all production
chains of prefabricated construction buildings. Based on
the enormous amount of data generated by BIM technology
with combination of the technology innovation and
incorporation of core stages of whole life cycle of
construction (which are respectively, stages of design,
production, manufacture, operation and maintenance), the
basic information at the lowest tier can be continuously
refined which is contributed to the construction of
operation platform based on big data and Internet of
Things. Hence, the artificial intelligence of the platform will
be realized in reliance of the population effect of
researchers and the automatic function of machinery self-
learning which gives shape to the service of open ecology
system for the whole industrial production chains of
prefabricated construction in its entirety.

EEE WKk ()
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It is prospectively planned that the system is dedicated to
its core users of construction enterprise operators whilst
providing different types of information services to real
estate developers, construction enterprise providers,
building operators, intelligent community managing staff as
well as smart city managing staff alike.

Equipment innovation and its operation

The innovation of technology for our plants have been
continuously reinforced by us who are also engaged in the
external promotional sales to the market for our specialized
equipment and production lines of the prefabricated
construction plants with good performance.

In terms of research and design at national level, we
completed planning of the production lines for automatic
combination and formation of rebar reinforcement steel
scaffolding skeletons supporting wall slab component
construct structures of demonstration plants model which
obtained approval of experts’ validation on 11 November
2019; we also commenced the imaging identification
technology study of certain rebar reinforcement steel
scaffolding skeletons which are completed with validation
proof of scientific experiments which have successfully
passed the interim examination by the China’s 21st
Century Agenda Management Center directly affiliated to
the Ministry of Science and Technology of China and
completed the summary report of our engagement of work
tasks for the year of 2019 after which is uploaded to the
management system of national technology projects.

In terms of research and design of cost reduction for
plants, we completed standard IV regarding the
optimization of cost reduction at cross-plants level whereas
the application design in Zhoukou projects is realized by
means of that particular technology.

In terms of the external operation of equipment, we
completed signing of contracts with external clients in
respect of 11 production lines and the delivery of
installation which is realized by achieving the target of
successful project delivery within 48 days without
interruption, which is recognized with compliments by the
presentation of banners of merit and gratification letters
received from the clients in Ningxia, Tianjin and Shandong.
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Culmination in our projects

With reliance upon the business mode of whole EMPC-
based industrial chains of the parent company, we are
proactive in facilitating of promotion of the culmination in
the prominent projects of all kinds by leverage of
prefabricated construction technology which enables us to
be repeatedly recognized by the industry and the
communities as a whole:

The Greenland Intercity Space Station
R 22 vk

EEE WKk ()
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The Greenland Intercity Space Station Project located in
Changsha, a project which is the very first high-rise
prefabricated residential building with a height of over 130
metres constructed with concrete, is built with the
prefabricated construction components provided by
Changsha plants of the Group. The building is constructed
based on the mode of EMPC for such a project which is a
building with assembly by prefabricated construction of
comprehensive shear wall structure as high as 43-storey
levels from the ground level construction where the
prefabrication assembly rate is 50.3%. There are “three
maximums” characterized by virtue of technology
application of prefabricated construction for the project
which is summarized as below: the maximum of building
height of construction is represented by the super height of
the buildings as high as 43 levels of 126.6 metres; the
maximum of prefabrication assembly rate of over 50% for
the construction of buildings of super height which is the
very first of its kind nationwide under investigation and
verification; the maximum of precision in accuracy of
construction for the building of super height which is
constructed by the technology of vertical components of
sleeve coupling grout with a maximum of stringent demand
of installation precision with precise accuracy of
construction. Now the project is appraised as “the
demonstration model of engineering construction of
highlighted ad-hoc projects for green buildings and
construction industrialization under the crucial national
research and design schemes during the period of 13t
Five-Year Plan”, “the project in the construction scheme of
demonstration models of engineering construction with
application of new technology for construction industry at
provincial level in Hunan Province” as well as a unanimous
feedback of positive appraisal from a group of inspection
experts who have complimented with praise for the project
with all approvals and recognitions under the authorized
inspection action on safety supervision of construction
market and engineering quality as coordinated and
implemented nationwide by the Ministry of Housing and
Urban-Rural Development (also known as its abbreviation
of “inspection nationwide”).
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Nine projects under the Standing Committee of Hunan
Province, which is the main venue to play host to the First
China-Africa Economic and Trade Expo which is opened on
27 June 2019 for those projects, are built with the
prefabricated construction components provided by plants
of the Company in Changsha. The buildings for those
projects are constructed based on the mode of EMPC with
the rapid pace of construction ahead of the schedule ever
since the commencement of those projects on 26
December 2018 where the designs of those buildings are
completed and delivered within one month. Those projects
reach hoisting installation stage on 18 January 2019,
achieve full capping-off on 10 March 2019, pass the
acceptance inspection on 10 May 2019 and culminates in
completion and delivery on 23 June 2019. In October 2019,
those projects were appraised as demonstration models of
prefabrication construction in Hunan Province of the Year
2019 at Changsha Prefabricated Building and Construction
Technology Expo.

Xianghe - Xingchengchunxiao Project in Changsha, a
project with 53% of its prefabrication assembly rate with
gross floor area of approximately 0.24 million square
metres, is the very first of its kind of the high-rise
prefabricated construction project of height over 100
metres in Changsha county and also the largest of its kind
of the prefabricated construction of residential buildings in
the same county. The project is built with prefabricated
construction components provided by plants of the Group
in Changsha based on the mode of EMPC. As a pilot project
of management information process of production of the
Group, the project is processed with the daily record and
feedback on work tasks with the proactive use of tools of
information process by the management staff of the project
ever since the information process system was strategized
to commence its operation in April 2019 under which the
management staff have collected a wealth of production
management data and imaging information the
accumulation of which has provided an invaluable practical
experience of work tasks of standardization and
digitalization. The project is selectively recognized to be
demonstration model of engineering construction projects
for information process of the construction industry at a
provincial level while it is also appraised as the green
demonstration model of work site of construction of
buildings in Changsha City.
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Huaruncheng in Qingdao
BEEEEH
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Phase Two of Huaruncheng Projects located in Qingdao,
with the gross floor area of approximately 0.64 million
square metres, is the first comprehensive and largest
complex operated under TOD mode jointly developed by
China Resources (Holdings) Co., Ltd. and the subway. The
project is constructed based on the mode of EMPC as
initiated first by the Group under which the plants in
Jiaozhou provide the prefabricated construction
components for the project with the building at level 22 of
overall height over 100 metres for its shear wall structure in
vertically perpendicular to building limb which is also built
by prefabricated construction, which is the very first of its
kind of the high-rise prefabricated construction with its
prefabrication assembly rate of 35% in Shandong Province.
The project not only serves as the specified work site for
demonstration display purpose of construction of
engineering project with prefabricated construction of
residential building in Laoshan District of Qingdao City but
also serves as the work site of demonstration model of
standardization in the same city.

Project of Chenhuiyuan Court as government apartments
for young talents directly administered by Henan Province,
with the gross floor area of 0.37 million metres square and
prefabrication assembly rate of 55%, is the project
comprising 11 residential buildings together with
engineering construction of complimentary amenities of
business buildings and kindergartens. The project is also
the highlighted engineering work for the people’s welfare
under the provincial reinforcement strategy of “Retaining
Talents by Construction of Accommodation” for retaining
talents of Henan Province, which is also by far one of the
twelve commitments of social affairs to be addressed with
highlighted priority in terms of development of Henan
Province since 2018 whereas the project is built with the
prefabricated construction components provided by the
plants of the Group in Jiaozuo and the current project with
the highest speed of construction among ten government
apartments for talents under construction in Henan
Province.
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Binhuxin Yuan Project located in Anhui is a project which is
the current largest project of residential building under
construction with process of industrialization of the
construction nationwide with the gross floor area of
approximately 0.95 million square metres for its total
investment of RMB3.0 billion. The project is provided with
precast building components of prefabricated construction
supported with prefabricated construction technology
furnished by the plants of the Group in Hefei. The project is
the shortlisted candidate of the Ninth “Guangsha Prize” of
the Year 2019 to 2020 while the project is not only the one
and the only one shortlisted candidate recognized in Anhui
Province but also the one and the only one project to be
admitted as one of the shortlisted candidate of
resettlement housing community project nationwide.

Platform of academic exchanges

As a leading enterprise equipped with cutting edge of
industry technology, we not only take a proactive position
to explore the most advanced technology but also organize
and participate on our own initiatives in the exchanges
activities involving scientific research of much significance
and trade exchanges so that we can make our contribution
to the promotion and prosperity of the prefabricated
construction industry.

On 16 and 17 November 2019, we are the host to organize
“The Fifth National BIM Academic Conference”, which is
the only one of its kind of such a large-scale academic
conference with its theme dedicated to BIM held in China.
It is the very first time for the private enterprise to be the
organizer of such academic conference during which we
launch our intelligent construction ecology system.
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Between 15 and 17 October 2019, China (Changsha)
Prefabricated Building and Construction Technology Expo
2019 was opened and held at Changsha International
Convention and Exhibition Centre. As the demonstration
model of base of industrialization of residential properties
in Hunan Province and the base of prefabricated
construction industry at national level, we present
ourselves with the practical results of our prefabricated
construction boasted for the most advanced technological
innovation of the whole industry production chains with our
strategic layout of our business locations in China, which
has drawn tremendous attention from the leaders of
officials of various governmental authorities, media
coverage as well as attendants for the Expo.

BUSINESS PROSPECT

The year 2020 will be a critical year of the prefabricated
construction industry passing over the threshold mark with
a market share of 15% as stipulated by the requirement of
the central government against the backdrop of continuous
expansion of the market size of the prefabricated
construction industry. On the large platform of the
companies of Mr. Wu, we will continue our effort of
facilitating the advancement of technological innovation
and output of actual results, particularly in the synergetic
effect of the industry and enhancement in efficiency by
cost reduction which will be implemented with our added
devotion and determination so as to target at a higher level
of technology development with better products while
better business turnover and return of profitability will be
achieved.

Industrial Synergy

The Group has carried out copious amount of synergetic
explorations with each and every sector of the companies
of Mr. Wu, including the facilitation of collaboration of much
substance with the group of Central China Real Estate
Limited involving several projects of EMPC-based contract
packages as executed in Henan area with the prospective
plan of collaboration scale over 2.00 million square metres;
our effort will be made for our strategic market layout of
business location in China by way of the our output of
brand effect and technology export subject to the
prospective exploration of the industrialization mode of real
property development with Henan Zhongyuan Central
China City Development Company Limited (“CCRE
Zhongyuan”).
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Efficiency Enhancement by Cost Reduction

We will carry out full engagement with dedicated effort of
achieving efficiency enhancement by cost reduction by
taking all measures for the fields of research and
development, design and production in the following
manners: continuous optimization of existing system of
construction technology by reduction of cost initiated with
the endeavour of research and development; continuous
creation of standardization system with an aim to reduce
cost by standardization for the purpose of establishment of
business operation system under standardization for the
production management by the plants; establishment of
the management systems complemented with cost
reduction in purchasing of supply chains in order to reduce
the cost of investment of plant establishment and reduce
the cost of moulds with the increasing rate of utilization of
moulds with the objective of achieving gradual reduction in
cost.

The Group will continue its perseverance of proactive
facilitation of building more and more prefabricated
construction plants in the locations with potential markets
of better prospects in the future when the culmination in
well-defined policy regarding prefabricated construction
industry takes place based on the existing strategic
business layout of our presence in China. Our business
plan in the year 2020 will be laid out for its continuous
effort of realization of prospective completion of
construction for the industrial parks located in Nantong,
Wuxi, Tianjin, Wuhan, Zhoukou and Dengfeng with its
current plan of operation commencement of 10
prefabricated construction plants with an aim of further
expansion in the market size and the proportion of market
share so as to increase our income and profitability
continuously for lifting our status in the industry in an all-
round way with our objective to become the most
competitive enterprise in the industry.
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Business and future growth may be affected by the
macro economic conditions in the PRC

The Group's business and future growth prospect relies on
the general economic conditions in the PRC. From 2013 to
2019, China’s economy achieved a rapid growth. Since
2020, China’s macro economy may experience a soft
landing during which it is predicted that China’s economy
growth may slow down, and various ongoing reforms may
be carried out in the PRC, aiming to transform China’s
macro economy from investment-driven to consumer-
driven. In addition, the cooling down of China’s fixed asset
investment reflects a combined effect of the economy
deleveraging, reinforcement of environmental protection
control and redundant production capacity elimination in
the heavy industry. This economic structure adjustment is
expected to improve the quality and efficiency of China’s
economic development. Some of these measures are
beneficial to China’'s general economy, but may also
adversely affect the Group. For example, the PRC
government has tightened its control over capital
investment, which may decrease government’s
investments in low-income housing projects and/or public
facility construction projects in China; and the deleveraging
of economy may affect real estate development
construction activities.

As a result, our ability to supply prefabricated construction
units or prefabricated construction equipment or undertake
housing and public facilities construction projects at a
reasonable price may be hindered. The Group involves in
construction projects of commercial real estate
development, government-funded low-income housing and
municipal construction, and these projects are developed
or funded by real estate developers or government,
government authorities or public organizations, therefore
any change of economic conditions in the PRC may affect
the availability of funds to the project developers or owners
which may result in suspension or termination of the
project, and our ability to supply PC units to these projects
may be in turn materially and adversely affected.
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In addition, enhanced control over environmental
protection by the PRC government may lead to a massive
shutdown or prolonged inspection to the construction site
by government departments, which in turn may affect our
supply to the construction projects. Any economic
structural changes in the PRC may cause changes in the
taxation regulation system or foreign exchange control
system currently applied to the Group, resulting in adverse
effect on the Group’s financial condition and results of
operation.

Construction activities in the PRC are very sensitive to
economic fluctuations and market uncertainties, and are
regulated by the PRC government through political
decisions. Any slowdown or regression of economy or
other changes in China's society, politics or legal
environment may decrease the number of new real estate
construction projects or infrastructure projects, or lower
the purchasing power of residents, and therefore decrease
the demand towards our products and affect our results of
operation.

Intensive competition in the industry of the PRC

The Group is facing intense competition from nationwide
large scale construction companies, which may have stable
supply of projects or abundant technological resources as
well as from regional competitors, which may have
abundant long-term customer resources, extensive
network in the region, or the advantage of low
transportation cost.

Provided that the adoption of prefabricated construction
method is not required by the relevant policies or
regulations, customers may prefer the traditional
construction method, on which the Group do not have
competitive edge due to its advantages in respect of low
cost and low technology barrier as well as the level of
acceptance and familiarity of consumers. In addition, the
industrial standards of the prefabricated construction
industry are in their early stage of development and the
national standards and local standards have just been
promulgated and are in their early stage of implementation
as well. The development, promulgation or implementation
of such standards may affect the Group’s products or
production, or the Group will incur additional cost to
comply with the standards or any changes thereof. In that
case, the profitability and prospects of the Group may be
adversely affected.

2)

EEE w2 ()

ESN -+ Fp B R S 7 SR AR AR R 1 1) 9 N5 7T
EERBFRFIZREETHE T RERFT
SEHFEAFANRSE - EMPERMRKE
TIRE MR o () B G 1 R TR
AIRER B B A E AN H IR ARE R
SN I 1 [ - 1 T 4 5 B O B A A0 B AR
EREELTNZE -

BRI SRR B B R B AR B K T 5 TN
MREE AR YHPBEBAEBEUR
RONAT R o EAAIEHE A - FIR P B
g BURSUARRBENEME ST A g BT
MEMERZEBANEREREBEEHAM
Lo HEPHBESITR - #MmEBERMA
EmHF RO TFERFIRELRE -

EFEEHBUNTERS
SEmREDEMEALZERA AR
F o REARAREARENABHELE
BRI E IR IR B (R I 3 5 B RIRY
B HAgeaitR AAEENRMEFE
R B SUEBRANENES -

AR R BOE MUY EARE R A RET
A B ARERRMALERFELNESR
BESR - RESE ARG KRAE K B P
BENESE  BREEZMUATERRES
A e SN - REARZETENTRELEER
BRVMEE - BRRERMTIRERRR
fh AR EN BRI B - 5] - B
KEREHAFERSGTERENERIE
B SERESELRINKANETERT
EREMES - RUILIBERT - KREEBKHOE
Mg AT S A RE R BT FIFE -

33



DIT Group Limited
EREEREERFRLF

2019 Annual Report
ZE-NEER

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EEE WKk (F)

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Review of Results

The Group was principally engaged in the production and sale of
prefabricated construction units and equipments, and granting
licensing in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

Revenue

The revenue of the Group increased by approximately 31.2%
from approximately HK$530.2 million for the year ended 31
December 2018 to approximately HK$695.9 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019. The significant increase in revenue
were mainly attributable to (i) the increase in the operation for
the manufacture and sale of prefabricated components and the
continuous increase in the production capacity utilized by
technology parks during the year; and (i) a significant growth in
the sales income of equipment for smart devices from the third
party customers. As a result, the Group recorded sales revenue
for year ended 31 December 2019 of prefabricated construction
units of approximately HK$579.9 million (2018: approximately
HK$423.6 million), granting licenses of approximately HK$36.4
million (2018: approximately HK$84.9 million), sales of
construction equipment of approximately HK$65.0 million (2018:
approximately HK$18.6 million), rental income of approximately
HK$13.3 million (2018: approximately HK$1.9 million) and
consulting service income of approximately HK$1.3 million (2018:
approximately HK$1.2 million).

Cost of sales

The Group recorded cost of sales of approximately HK$518.1
million (2018: approximately HK$372.1 million) for the year ended
31 December 2019. The increase was primarily attributable to the
increase in sales of prefabricated construction components,
while the corresponding cost of sales also increased at the same
time; as the additional plants which have been in its initial
operation were in low production volume, the increase in each
fixed expense therefore resulted in the increase of cost.
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Gross profit and gross profit margin

The gross profit of the Group increased by approximately HK$19.7
million from approximately HK$158.1 million for the year ended
31 December 2018 to approximately HK$177.8 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019. The gross profit margin slightly
decreased to 25.5% in 2019 from 29.8% in 2018. As the income
achieved by granting licenses for the year decreased by 57%
when compared with last year, resulting in the overall decrease
in gross profit; the actual gross profit of prefabricated
construction components decreased by around 5% when
compared with the corresponding period of last year.

Other income

The other income of the Group increased by approximately
HK$2.4 million from approximately HK$3.5 million for the year
ended 31 December 2018 to approximately HK$5.9 million for the
year ended 31 December 2019. Other income mainly comprised
of (i) interest income arose from bank deposits of approximately
HK$5.1 million and (ii) income arose from penalty income of
approximately HK$0.4 million.

Other losses — net

For the year ended 31 December 2019, other losses — net
amounting to approximately HK$5.5 million mainly comprised of
(i) loss arising from deposit loss and penalty on early termination
of a lease contract in respect of the previous location of business
in Pacific Place in Admiralty of approximately HK$5.2 million; and
(i) gains on fair value from investment properties of
approximately HK$0.6 million.

Selling and distribution expenses

The selling and distribution expenses amounted to approximately
HK$55.4 million (2018: approximately HK$34.7 million) for the year
ended 31 December 2019. The increase in expense was primarily
attributable to the organizational structure adjustment to the
Group, the increase in regional salesforce, the increase in salary
and the number of plants in operation and growth of income with
the moderate growth in transportation fees for product sales.
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Administrative expenses

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the administrative
expenses increased by 6.9% to approximately HK$117.3 million
from approximately HK$109.7 million in 2018, which was mainly
attributable to the staff bonus increased to approximately HK$6.9
million in 2019 (2018: Nil), while the remaining increase is
attributable to the increment of other general administrative
expenses, such as rental expenses, professional fee,
entertainment, travelling expenses and office expenses etc.

Finance costs

Finance costs of approximately HK$25.9 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019 represented (i) the interest expenses
of approximately HK$31.0 million for the borrowings; (ii) the
finance charges of approximately HK$1.3 million on the lease
liabilities; and (iii) capitalisation of approximately HK$6.4 million
interest in plant under development for prefabricated
construction business for the year.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2019, the cash and bank balances of the
Group amounted to approximately HK$82.4 million (2018:
approximately HK$110.8 million) and the current ratio of the
Group is 1.1 (2018: 1.4).

As at 31 December 2019, the borrowings of the Group amounted
to approximately HK$474.7 million (31 December 2018: HK$496.6
million) and the gearing ratio (calculated as set out on page 37) is
12.1% (2018: 11.0%).

Disposal of Subsidiaries

In December 2019, the Group disposed of its 99% equity interest
in Zhoukou Jianheng Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.* (J& Ak
18 55 ib B B 2 A IR 2 &) (“Zhoukou Jianheng”) to Henan Jigang
Real Estate Development Limited Liability Company* (57 &5 7 3
B ERZEERETLAER AR The Group recorded a gain on
disposal of approximately HK$120.5 million.

In 2019, the Group disposed of its 100% equity interest in Haikou
China Minsheng DIT Limited* (8 0 REREERFER A

to Jianhua Construction Materials (China) Limited* Lﬁ}@ﬂ
(FRE)ARAF). The Group recorded a gain on disposal of
approximately HK$13.3 million.
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Capital Structure

The Shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange on 25 July 1991. The capital structure of the
Group comprised issued share capital and reserves. Details of
the share capital of the Company are set out in Note 27 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Structure of Borrowings and Deposits

The Group continued to adopt a prudent principle on financial
management and centralise our funding and financial
management. Therefore, we maintained a high proportion of
cash with a reasonable level of borrowing. As at 31 December

EEE w2 ()

RAEEE

ARBBMDR—NANA—F LA+ A AEBRAA
ERED - AEENBRARBERRESHITHRAR
B - RARIRAF BN R G M MARME27 -

BERFHME

AEBEERSREENRA - KR ESMUB
B AUBUERSRSFELH - A RREF
BEMEEKFE R_F-NF+-_A=t—8"
AEERTERIEERBNERFHMOT

2019, the repayment schedule of the Group’s bank loans and
lease liabilities was as follows:

As at As at
Repayment Schedule BREH 31 December 2019 31 December 2018
R-ZE-NE RZE—N\F
+=A=+-H +=—A=+—H~H
HK’000 HK'000
FET FET

Bank borrowings RITER
Within one year —FR 351,649 155,900
More than one year, but not exceeding two years ~ —4E A _H{B R BiBME 78,702 283,897
More than two year, but not exceeding five years ~ M4EA_HERBBRE 44,375 56,779
474,726 496,576

Lease Liabilities HESRE
Within one year —FR 10,968 -
More than one year, but not exceeding two years — —4E A H{BRBBMRE 2,770 -
More than two year, but not exceeding five years  M4ELA B RBRTE 237 -
13,975 -

Obligations under finance lease MERE
Within one year —F R - 1,524
More than one year, but not exceeding two years — —£E LA _F{B R BiBME - 2,827
More than two year, but not exceeding five years ~ M4EA_HERBBRE - 53
- 4,404
Total debt EREE 488,701 500,980
Interest payable FEFTF 8 58 375
Less: restricted cash for borrowings W XREIREEE (114,000) (130,000)
Less: cash and cash equivalents o RE MRS EEER (82,415) (110,802)
Net debt BEK 292,344 260,553
Total equity BB 2,419,043 2,378,529
Gearing ratio BB = 12.1% 11.0%
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FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil).

DIVIDEND POLICY

Under the Dividend Policy, provided the Group is profitable and
without affecting the normal operations of the Group, the
Company may consider to declare and pay dividends to the
shareholders of the Company. In deciding whether to propose a
dividend and in determining the dividend amount, the Board shall
take into account, among others, the operating results, cash
flow, financial condition and capital requirements of the Group
and the interests of the shareholders of the Company.
Declaration of dividend by the Company is also subject to the
Laws of Bermuda, the Bye-Laws of the Company and any
applicable laws, rules and regulations.

The Dividend Policy will continue to be reviewed from time to
time and there can be no assurance that a dividend will be
proposed or declared in any specific periods.

DETAILS OF FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL ASSETS

Except as disclosed in the paragraphs headed “Business
Overview” above, the Group does not have any future plans for
material investments or capital assets as at the date of this
annual report.
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HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had a total of 630 (2018: 784)
employees excluding the Directors. 627 (2018: 778) of them
worked in Mainland China and 3 (2018 6) of them worked in
Hong Kong, China.

Employees are basically remunerated based on the nature of
their job and their performance as well as the prevailing market
trend. Other employee benefits include mandatory provident
fund, medical benefits and year end discretionary bonus.
Following a people-oriented approach, we implement a
systematic recruitment, training and incentive platform, providing
internal fuel for the growth of the Company. In doing so, we
create a desirable workplace for our employees to develop and
flourish.

CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had no significant assets
pledged to banks to secure general banking facilities and bank
loan granted to the Group, except for the one as disclosed in the
Note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

LITIGATION

As at 31 December 2019, the Group was not involved in any
material litigation threatened against the Group.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wu Po Sum (“Mr. Wu") (formerly known as Hua Jianming),
aged 69, the ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company,
was appointed as an executive Director on 17 September 2019.
Mr. Wu is currently the chairman of the Board. Mr. Wu has over
27 years of experience in real estate development and
investment. He is currently an executive director and the
chairman of the board of directors of Central China Real Estate
Limited ("CCRE") as well as a director of a number of its
subsidiaries.

Mr. Wu started his career with China Textile Import and Export
Corporation Henan Branch in 1979. From 1982 to 1985, Mr. Wu
was sent by the Department of Foreign Trade of Henan Province
to work in Hong Kong. From 1985 to 1986, he was the assistant
general manager of Central China International Economic Trade
Company Limited. From 1986 to 1988, Mr. Wu worked as the
president and the general manager in Guoguang Industrial
Company Limited. From 1988 to 1991, Mr. Wu served as the
assistant general manager and the general manager in Central
China International (Group) Limited and Central China Overseas
Development Company Limited, respectively. Mr. Wu entered the
PRC real estate market in May 1992, when he found the CCRE
Group and established the “Jianye” ("i#£%") brand name and
thereafter devotes himself to the development of the CCRE Group.

Mr. Wu graduated from Zhengzhou University majoring in English
in 1979 and completed the CEO Program for China in China
Europe International Business School on 27 March 2005.

In 2017, Mr. Wu was invited to the selection of Golden Sunlight
Public Welfare Awards of Henan Daily and was awarded the
“Meritorious Person of the First (2017) Central China Social
Responsibility” prize. In 2018, Mr. Wu was appointed as the
“Deputy Director of the Advisory Committee of Industry and
Commerce Association of Henan Province (A& Ll ARE
Bg g E)", received the "Outstanding Contribution
Entrepreneur of Henan (£ 5B 35)" award at the "40
Years of Reform and Opening up of Henan (Al EI& 42 a2k £ F
404F)" event organised by Henan Daily, and was awarded the
highest accolade of a leading entrepreneur in the real estate
industry in Henan at the “40 Years of Reform and Opening up,
Development of Central China (2% B AP0+ & R T A ZER)"
by Henan Province Real Estate Business Chamber of Commerce.
Mr. Wu also received the “Golden Camel Award" granted by the
SEE Foundation for his significant contribution in promoting

projects concerning environmental protection.
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Mr. Wu is the father of Ms. Wu, a non-executive Director. As at
the date of this announcement, Mr. Wu is (i) interested in
7,121,769,700 Shares, representing approximately 63.53% of the
issued share capital of the Company; and (i) interested in 49% of
the equity interests in Changsha China Minsheng DIT Limited* (&
SRR HERKE AR A A, an associated corporation (as
defined under Part XV of the SFO) of the Company. Save as
disclosed aforesaid, Mr. Wu does not have any interests in the
shares of the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.

Mr. Guo Weiqiang (“Mr. Guo”), aged 42, was appointed as an
executive Director on 17 September 2019. Mr. Guo is currently
the chief executive officer of the Company.

Mr. Guo joined the CCRE Group in 2001 and has held various
positions in the CCRE Group since then. Throughout the 18 years
in the CCRE Group, Mr. Guo worked as the manager of the
treasury department, the assistant general manager of the
finance center and the deputy director of the office of the board
of directors of the CCRE Group. Mr. Guo also served as the
executive deputy general manager of the CCRE Group'’s office in
Nanyang City, the executive general manager of the CCRE
Group's office in Xinxiang City, the general manager of the CCRE
Group’s regional head office in Xinxiang and the assistant
president and vice president of CCRE. Mr. Guo was also the
secretary of the party committee of CCRE in 2018.

Mr. Guo obtained a Bachelor's Degree in Real Estate Operation
and Management from Henan University of Economics and Law
in 2001. He obtained a Master’s Degree in Engineering from
Wuhan University in 2009 and a Postgraduate Diploma in
Professional Accounting from The University of Hong Kong in
2011.

Mr. Guo obtained the qualification of Senior Accountant in Henan
in 2009 and was qualified as a Senior International Finance
Manager by the International Financial management Association
2011. Mr. Guo has been a member of the CPA Australia since
2012.

Mr. Guo served as the representative of the 13th and 14th
National People’s Congress of Honggi District, Xinxiang City, as
well as the representative of the 13th National People’s Congress
of Xinxiang City.
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Mr. Yang Hongwei (“Mr. Yang"), aged 54, was appointed as
an executive Director on 1 July 2018. Mr. Yang has worked in
various government departments, state-owned enterprises and
private corporations in the past 30 years. He served as a Deputy
General Manager of Suntown Technology Group Co. Ltd. and an
Assistant General Manager of Wuling Power Corporation Ltd..
Prior to that, Mr. Yang was a member of a Standing Committee of
Hunan Gonggingtuan Organization* (X & E#HFE Z) and was a
Minister of Ministry of Qingnong* (& 2Z#&B). Mr. Yang graduated
from Beijing Sport University and obtained a bachelor degree in
Education. He then obtained a master degree of Public
Management from National University of Defense Technology in
2007.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Wu Wallis (“Ms. Wu"), alias Li Hua, aged 38, was appointed
as a non-executive Director on 17 September 2019. Ms. WU is
currently a non-executive director of CCRE.

Ms. Wu obtained a Bachelor's Degree in Architecture from the
University of New South Wales in Australia in 2006, and a
Master’s Degree in Applied Finance from Macquarie University in
2007. Before joining the CCRE Group in 2006, she worked in
Woodhead International (Beijing) and Banatex Architects Pty Ltd
in Sydney Australia in 2005. Ms. Wu is the daughter of Mr. Wu, an
executive Director, the chairman of the Board and the ultimate
controlling shareholder of the Company.

Mr. Wang Jun ("Mr. Wang"), aged 39, was appointed as a non-
executive Director on 17 September 2019. He has over 16 years
of experience in the real estate industry and capital market.

From 2003 to 2007, Mr. Wang served in PricewaterhouseCoopers
Zhong Tian CPAs Limited Company with the latest position as a
senior associate; from 2007 to 2011, he served as the head of
investor relations and a senior manager of the finance
department in Country Garden Holdings Company Limited; and
from 2011 to June 2018, he served in Morgan Stanley Asia Limited
with the latest position as an executive director. Mr. Wang has
served as CCRE's executive director since August 2018.

Mr. Wang obtained a Bachelor’s Degree in English from
Guangdong University of Foreign Studies in 2002 and a Master’s
Degree in Business Administration from Hong Kong University of
Science and Technology in 2011.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Jiang Hongqing (“Mr. Jiang"), aged 53, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 2 February 2015. Mr.
Jiang holds a Ph.D. in Engineering majoring in Architectural
Design and Theory from South China University of Technology.
He also holds a Master of Engineering Degree majoring in
Landscape Architecture Design and a Bachelor of Engineering
Degree majoring in Urban Planning from Chongging Institute of
Architecture and Engineering. Mr. Jiang had also been studied in
Ecole d' Architecture Parisla-Seine in Paris, France. He is a
Professorate Senior Urban Planner and a Certified Planner of the
People’s Republic of China. Mr. Jiang presided over and
participated in a number of major engineering technology or
research projects at national, provincial and ministerial level; and
he has a certain extent of study in Xiongan New Area, China’s
Hainan Free Trade Zone, Guangdong — Hong Kong — Macau — Bay
Area, urban and rural development, urban renewal and health
(pension) industry. Mr. Jiang was an executive director of the
Hong Kong Life Sciences and Technologies Group Limited (stock
Code: 8085) from 1 December 2012 to 29 September 2017. Mr.
Jiang was also an executive director of Birmingham International
Holdings Limited (stock code: 2309) from 30 August 2011 to 20
January 2012.

Mr. Lee Chi Ming (“Mr. Lee"), aged 67, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 30 December 2014. He is
a fellow member of Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants ("ACCA") and Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“"HKICPA"). Mr. Lee graduated from Hong Kong
Polytechnic. He also holds a LLB degree from University of
London and a master degree in Business Administration from
University of Hong Kong. Mr. Lee has over 25 years' experience
in the fields of accounting, regulations and asset management.
He held various senior positions with the Securities and Futures
Commission (“SFC"), Hong Kong since 1995, as director of
Licensing, director of Corporate Planning and director of Finance
and Administration. Mr. Lee retired from SFC in July 2014, and he
is the director and managing partner of Benington Capital Partner
Ltd. Mr. Lee is an independent non-executive director of Huatai
Securities Company Limited (stock code: 6886) which is listed on
the Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Ma Lishan ("Mr. Ma"), aged 69, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 28 June 2016. He has
extensive experience in operation and management of modern
large-scale corporations and listed companies. Mr. Ma graduated
from Beijing Foreign Studies University in the PRC in 1975. Mr. Ma
served in various positions such as chairman, executive director,
general manager in certain large-scale joint ventures under China
Oil & Foodstuff Corporation. From January 1996 to June 2003, Mr.
Ma served as an executive director of China Foods Limited, a
company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 506). From
May 1997 to June 2003, Mr. Ma served as an executive director
and the managing director of China Foods Limited. From June
2000 to June 2003, Mr. Ma served as the deputy general manager
of China Foods Import and Export (Group) Co., Ltd. From June
2008 to January 2009, Mr. Ma was an executive director of Sino
Resources Group Limited (now known as Elife Holdings Limited),
a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 223). From
March 2008 to present, he is an independent non-executive
director of Silver Base Group Holdings Limited, a company listed
on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 886). From 2 August 2009 to
present, he is an independent non-executive director of Sunac
China Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 1918). From September 2010 to August 2012, he was
also the executive director, managing director and chairman of
Hao Tian Resources Group Limited (now known as Hao Tian
Development Group Limited), a company listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 474). He was the senior consultant in Hao
Tian Development Group Limited from August 2012 to August
2016. From March 2016 to present, he is also an independent
non-executive director of SRE Group Limited, a company listed
on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1207). From August 2016 to
present, he is an independent non-executive director of Huarong
International Financial Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 993).
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Yu Dayou (“Mr. Yu"), aged 58, was appointed as chief
technology officer of the Company on 1 May 2016. Mr. Yu has
over 29 years of experience in architectural design and property
industry. He has held technical management positions as Deputy
General Manager of Hunan Office of China Poly Property* (4
RFHE MR A A]) and General Manager of Hunan Architectural
Design Institute. Mr. Yu graduated from architectural profession
university in 1989. He has led or involved in formulating
numerous local standards and has personally owned more than
40 patent rights. He also received 3 Elite Awards in Science
Technology* (1 Im Bt £ #% 1i7 #%). Mr. Yu is a Senior Engineer,
Certified Level-one Architect, an expert of Hunan Province
Committee of Experts of Engineering Construction
Standardisation* (#if & TIEEZR M HTIZELEREZE ) and
an expert of Committee of Information Management of National
Construction Enterprise CIO Development Union* (BIZ s 2
COERBBEEAMEEEZER)

* For identification purpose only

EEREREEAERE (B)

BREEAS

MABRE(@ELE]D 85 R-_FT—"Fh
A—HEBZERARBERERME - i EHA
BOFHMEEARTEFSMETETHFLR - BB
EETFBERNSEAE QR RAKLEAEER
ERABAEEERMEERMGT - ILER
—N/NFRELEEXAEEE  FEIRAL
SRS AT RESE - EAERORBZF
IREFREIRBRME - L RSRTIZE -
B — AL EEhm ~ Himd TRERM T RE
TEFZEGERLEAREELXCOERKA
EREMBEXZEEER -

45



DIT Group Limited
EREEREERFRLF

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EEREREE

2019 Annual Report
e

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standard
corporate governance practices as the Board considers that
good and effective corporate governance is essential for
enhancing accountability and transparency of a company to the
investing public and other stakeholders. During the year ended
31 December 2019, the Company has complied with the code
provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the
“Code") contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules on the
Stock Exchange, except for:

(@ code provision A.4.1 of the Code in relation to the non-
executive director for a specific term;

(b) code provision A.6.7 of the Code in relation to Directors
should attend the general meetings of the Company. Due
to their respective engagements, Mr. Yin Jun, Mr. Yang
Hongwei, Mr. Peng Xiongwen and Mr. Ma Lishan were
unable to attend the special general meeting of the
Company held on 4 July 2019.

Code provision A.4.1 of the Code requires that non-executive
director should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-
election. Mr. Peng Xiongwen was not appointed for a specific
term, but was subject to retirement from office by rotation and
re-election in accordance with the provisions of the Company's
bye-laws.
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CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its code of
conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions. In response
to the specific enquiry made to all Directors by the Company, all
the Directors confirmed that they have fully complied with the
required standard as set out in the Model Code throughout the
year ended 31 December 2019.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

All the Directors are high caliber executives with diversified
industry expertise and bring a wide range of skills and experience
to the Group. As at the date of this annual report, the Board
comprised three executive Directors, two non-executive
Directors and three independent non-executive Directors, whose
biographies are set out on pages 40 to 44 of this annual report.
Save as disclosed under the section headed “Directors’ and
Senior Management Biography”, there is no financial, business,
family or other material or relevant relationships between Board
members, and in particular, between the Chairman and the chief
executive officer of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Board maintained
a high level of independence, with more than one-third of the
Board comprised of independent non-executive Directors, who
had exercised independent judgement. The independent non-
executive Directors are expressly identified in all corporate
communications whenever the names of Directors are disclosed.
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Meetings e
The composition of the Board and their respective attendance in - gz —E—hE+ —_A=+—BHItEENESEe
the general meeting and the Board meetings during the year HEB4AEARKESENREASEETe e

ended 31 December 2019 are as follows: RIS

Number of meetings attended/
held during the respective

tenure
REBEBBEEE
BIHNEBERE
General Board
meetings meetings
BRRAE EzgEl
Executive Directors BiTES
Mr. Wu Po Sum (Chairman) HRREE(EE) 1/1 2/2
(appointed on 17 September 2019) (RZE-NFALATEBEZE)
Mr. Yin Jun (appointed on 3 July 2015, re-designated BEAE(RN-_ZE—AF+A=ZHEZT 2/3 5/6
as Chairman on 3 October 2016, resigned on R-Z—RF+AZHATATRE
30 November 2019) RZFE-NFT—A=THEHE)
Mr. Guo Weigiang (Chief Executive Officer) SRR A (FTRAEE) 1/1 2/2
(appointed on 17 September 2019) (RZE-NFNA+HEZME)
Mr. Yang Hongwei (appointed on 1 July 2018) BRERE(RZE-\E+A—BEZHE) 2/3 6/6
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Ms. Wu Wallis (alias Li Hua) FEZT(RZE-NFNA +HEZME) 111 2/2
(appointed on 17 September 2019)
Mr. Wang Jun (appointed on 17 September 2019) TEREERZZ-NFNA +HBEZT) 11 2/2
Mr. Peng Xiongwen (appointed on 1 July 2018, P EE(RZT-\FLA—HEZE 12 2/4
resigned on 17 September 2019) RZZE—NFALA+HHEHT)
Independent non-executive Directors BUKHTES
Mr. Jiang Hongging (appointed on 2 February 2015) ERERE(W-_Z—AF_F-HEZT) 3/3 6/6
Mr. Lee Chi Ming (appointed on 30 December 2014) ZERATER_E—NF+-A=+HEZ 3/3 6/6
)
Mr. Ma Lishan (appointed on 28 June 2016) EvkE(RZE—F~FESA-+/\BEZ 2/3 6/6

1£)

STRIMSTRIMGEXE AL TIRRE - B IFMITES
EHEARARBIRAE - BELLE - HRELE
ZHEXERERBFIILELERB HEBHRELFER
RAR-T-NEFLANBRTORREIAS -

Code provision A.6.7 of the Code which provides that
independent non-executive directors should attend the general
meetings of the Company. Due to their respective engagements,
Mr. Yin Jun, Mr. Yang Hongwei, Mr. Peng Xiongwen and
Mr. Ma Lishan were unable to attend the special general meeting
of the Company held on 4 July 2019.
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Responsibilities and Delegation

The Board has delegated the supervision of the day-to-day
management of the Company’s business to the executive
Directors. However, the Directors are collectively responsible for
promoting the success of the Company by guiding and
monitoring the Company to achieve its strategic objectives. The
Board’s primary functions are to set corporate policy and overall
strategy for the Group and to oversee the management’s
performance. Accordingly, the Board approves strategic plans,
major disposals and acquisitions, connected transactions and
other significant operational issues. Furthermore, Board meetings
may be held on occasions when a Board level decision on a
particular matter is required; otherwise daily operational
decisions as well as the implementation of the Board's policies
and strategies are delegated to the executive Directors and
management of the Group.

Directors’ Continuous Professional Development

To ensure their contributions to the Board remain informed and
relevant, all the Directors are encouraged to participate in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skill.

During the year, all the Directors were provided with regular
updates and presentations on changes and developments of the
Group's business and the latest developments in laws, rules and
regulations relating to director’s duties and responsibilities.

The Company organised two in-house seminar conducted by an
international law firm in May 2019 and September 2019. Most of
the Directors and certain senior management of the Company
attended this seminar accordingly. For the year ended 31
December 2019, all of the Directors confirmed that they have
obtained sufficient continuous professional development training.
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EEREREE (B)

Throughout the Report Period, the Directors have participated in
continuous professional training as follows:

BEFEE EEC2MBET LD
zzw :

Type of
continuous professional

development training™®@

HESERIE
Name of directors ESnS BFESEEIIERO@
Mr. Wu Po Sum HEREE A&B
Mr. Yin Jun MESE A&B
Mr. Guo Weigiang e A&B
Mr. Yang Hongwei GRERE A&B
Ms. Wu Wallis (alias Li Hua) FHEZ T A&B
Mr. Wang Jun FlEEE A&B
Mr. Peng Xiongwen T AE A&B
Mr. Jiang Hongaing EHAERE A&B
Mr. Lee Chi Ming TERBLE A&B
Mr. Ma Lishan Bkt A&B
Notes: st :
(1) A: Attending seminar(s), conference(s), forum(s) and/or training (1)  AHEHFE - & « w8 &%SHIFIRE

course(s)

2 B: Reading materials provided by external parties or by the Company
including but not limited to updates relating to the Company’s business
or directors’ duties and responsibilities, corporate governance and
regulatory update, Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Code provision A.4.1 of the Code requires that non-executive
director should be appointed for a specific term, subject to
re-election. Mr. Peng Xiongwen was not appointed for a specific
term, but was subject to retirement from office by rotation and
re-election in accordance with the provisions of the Company'’s
bye-laws.

At each annual general meeting, one-third of the directors for the
time being, (or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the
number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from
office by rotation, provided that every director shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years. As such,
the Company considers that such provision is sufficient to meet
the underlying objective of this code provision.
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According to the bye-laws of the Company (the "Bye-laws”),
Directors appointed to fill casual vacancies shall hold office until
the next following general meeting and can be eligible for re-
appointment at that time.

Insurance of the Directors and Officers

The Company has bought liability insurance for Directors and
officers in respect of legal action against the Directors and
officers which is in compliance with Code provision A.1.8 of the
Code.

Board Diversity Policy

Under code provision A.5.6 of the Code, the nomination
committee (or the board) should have a policy concerning
diversity of board member, and should disclose the policy in the
Corporate Governance Report.

The Board adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) on 4 July 2014. The Company recognises and embraces
the benefits of having a diverse Board and endeavors to ensure
that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s
business. In determining the optimum composition of the Board,
diversity of Board members will be considered from a number of
factors in order to maintain an appropriate range and balance of
talents, skills, experience and knowledge on the Board. The
Company will also take into account its own business model and
specific needs from time to time.

The Board currently consists of one female director and seven
male directors and Directors are at ages ranging from late-30s to
over 70 years old, serving on the Board for different tenures. The
Board will take opportunity to increase the proportion of female
members over time when selecting and making recommendation
on suitable candidates for Board appointments. The Board would
ensure that appropriate balance of gender diversity is achieved
with reference to stakeholders’ expectation and international and
local recommended best practices, with the ultimate goal of
bringing the Board to gender parity.
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Board Nomination Policy

The Nomination Committee shall endeavor to find individuals of
high integrity who have a solid record of accomplishment in their
chosen fields and who possess the qualifications, qualities and
skills to effectively represent the best interests of the Group and
its Shareholders. Candidates will be selected for their ability to
exercise good judgment, and to provide practical insights and
diverse perspectives. Candidates will also be assessed in the
context of the then-current composition of the Board and the
operating requirements of the Group. In conducting this
assessment, the Nomination Committee will, in connection with
its assessment and recommendation of candidates for director,
consider diversity (including, but not limited to, gender, race,
ethnicity, age, experience and skills) and such other factors as it
deems appropriate given the then-current and anticipated future
needs of the Board and the Company, and to maintain a balance
of perspectives, qualifications, qualities and skills on the Board.

The Nomination Committee considers the following qualifications
at a minimum to be required of any Board members in
recommending to the Board potential new board members, or
the continued service of existing members:

—  reputation for integrity

— accomplishment and professional knowledge and industry
experience which may be relevant to the Company

— commitment in respect of available time

— merit and potential contributions that such candidate could
bring to the Board with reference to the Company'’s Board
Diversity Policy (as adopted and amended by the Board
from time to time), including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, independence, skills, knowledge and length of
service

— in case of a candidate for an independent non-executive
director of the Company, to assess: (i) the independence of
such candidate with reference to, among other things, the
independence criteria as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules; and (i) the guidance and requirements relating to
independent non-executive directors as set out in Code
Provision A.5.5 of Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules and in
the “Guidance for Boards and Directors” published by The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

— board succession planning considerations and the long-
term needs of the Company
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

The position of Chairman is held by Mr. Wu Po Sum, and the
position of Chief Executive Officer is held by Mr. Guo Weigiang.
These two separate positions have clear distinction in
responsibilities.

Mr. Wu Po Sum, being the Chairman, is responsible for the
management and leadership of the Board to formulate overall
strategies and business development directions for the Group, to
ensure that adequate, complete and reliable information is
provided to all Directors in a timely manner, and to ensure that
the issues raised at the Board meetings are explained
appropriately.

Mr. Guo Weigiang, being the Chief Executive Officer, is
responsible for the daily operations of the Group and the
implementation of business policies, objectives and plans as
formulated and adopted by the Board, and is accountable to the
Board for the overall operation of the Group.

BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

The Company has set up an audit committee (the "Audit
Committee”) with specific written terms of reference which
clearly deal with its authorities and duties. The primary role and
function of the Audit Committee is to assist the Board in
providing an independent review of the Group's financial
reporting and risk management and internal control systems as
well as the internal and external audit functions.

The Audit Committee currently comprises all of the three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Jiang Hongging,
Mr. Lee Chi Ming and Mr. Ma Lishan. The composition and
members of the Audit Committee comply with the requirements
under Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules. Mr. Lee Chi Ming is an
independent non-executive Director with appropriate
professional accounting qualification as required under Rule
3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.
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EEREREE (B)

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Audit Committee
held three meetings to review with the management the Group's
adopted accounting principles and practices, internal controls
and financial reporting matters in conjunction with the external
auditors, including reviews of the half-year and annual financial
results and reports. The Audit Committee has also discussed on
the financial, operational and compliance controls in particular
the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff
of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting function, and
their training programmes and budget. The Audit Committee has
not taken a different view from the Board regarding the selection
and re-appointment of the external auditors. The attendance of
each member of the Audit Committee is set out below:

HE_T-NF+-_A=+T—HILFE BEERZ
BERT-AgH HEEERIIMNEZEBAMER
HHAEEMEAN G RAIRER - AEPEE
LM BEREEE  ERREEMNYFEREF
MBEERRE BRZEGNHUE EER
BRETIELFH  BFRRAERESF KUK
ERee T EMER BEIERELREHREREH
URBIFEINEIRERAHEERERE
EREZESUENEREEINEZEM T EEES
EWEAANERSIE SBEZEZESNENLE
EERAAT

Name of Members

Number of meetings attended

REHZHE HESERE
Mr. Lee Chi Ming (Chairman) TEREE(EE) 3/3
Mr. Jiang Hongging EREBLAE 3/3
Mr. Ma Lishan Bl 3/3

The audit committee of the Company has reviewed with the
management and the independent auditor of the Company the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and
has discussed the auditing, internal control and financial
reporting matters, including a review of the annual results and
the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

Nomination Committee

The Company has set up a nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”) with specific written terms of reference
which clearly deal with its authorities and duties. The primary
duties of the Nomination Committee are to review the structure,
size and composition of the Board on a regular basis (including
the skills, knowledge and experience), to recommend to the
Board on the selection of suitable candidates for directorships
and on the succession planning for the Directors.

The Nomination Committee currently comprises one executive
Director, namely Mr. Wu Po Sum; and two independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Jiang Hongging and Mr. Lee Chi
Ming.
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During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Nomination
Committee held one meeting to review the structure and
composition and the succession plan of the Board, and to
evaluate and make recommendations on individuals nominated
for directorship. The attendance of each member of the
Nomination Committee is set out below:

EEREREE (])

—NE+-A=+—HLFE" %%%
& UBERESTENRE
Eﬁ%k%%%LﬁEﬁ%&kﬁ
SREBMHELCEIT

REEZZT
ZagRT—Rke
ﬁ %Eﬁﬂ

c BIREZEZE

Name of Members

Number of meetings attended

RERE HESERE
Mr. Wu Po Sum (Chairman) (appointed on HEREE(EE)(RZT—NF

17 September 2019) NA+EtBEZRT) N/A i A
Mr. Yin Jun (resigned on BELEE(RZZ—NF

17 September 2019) NA+tEBEHT) 11
Mr. Jiang Hongging EREBLAE il
Mr. Lee Chi Ming TEREAE i
Remuneration Committee FMEES
The Company has set up a remuneration committee (the ARBEKIFMEE S ((FMEZES]) A
“Remuneration Committee”) with specific written terms of AKX EEH I E RS EEHLBE %ﬁ@ﬂ%é
reference which clearly deal with its authorities and duties. The E&HMTEBEAMARRZEEELSHEEA
primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to make B A ERBR S BN ER M 224 - ’E%#@ﬁﬁﬂm CiR

recommendations to the Board on the overall remuneration
policy and structure relating to all Directors and senior
management of the Company, including benefits in kind, pension
rights and compensation payments including any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment, and
make recommendations to the Board of the remuneration of
non-executive Directors. The Remuneration Committee should
consider factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies,
time commitment and responsibilities of the Directors, and
ensure no Director or any of his associates may be involved in
any decisions as to his own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises one executive
Director, namely Mr. Wu Po Sum; and two independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Jiang Hongging and Mr. Lee Chi
Ming.
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During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Remuneration
Committee held one meeting to review the remuneration
packages of the executive Directors and senior management,
consider and approve the renewal of the Company’s service
agreements with its executive Directors and matters relating to
the early termination of such agreements upon change of Board
composition of the Company. The attendance of each member of
the Remuneration Committee is set out below:

“E-AFTA=T—BLEEFEE FMZ
BIT—REF UEBRATESLSRER
BMFHMGA N R F& RIERA R RHRTT
ERERTNRBHE - UWRBERARARERTGK
EHMBRFRLABRENER - EFHZ
IgREMHECENT

m B
D H

0 1§

\
i

m m e >
i

\

Name of Members

Number of meetings attended

REE]E HESERE
Mr. Jiang Hongaing (Chairman) ERERE(EE) 171
Mr. Wu Po Sum (appointed on HEREFER=ZZFE—NLFNA

17 September 2019) ++HEZE) N/A i A
Mr. Lee Chi Ming FEALE 11
Mr. Ma Lishan (resigned on BIIWEER=ZFE—NFNA

17 September 2019) +-£HEFHT) 171

The existing Remuneration Committee will continue to make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s remuneration
policy and structure for all Directors and senior management of
the Group, and to ensure that no Director or any of his associates
will participate in deciding his own remuneration.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS

All Directors are entitled to a fee as approved by the Board with
reference to the prevailing market conditions. Executive Directors
are entitled to fees, salaries, housing allowances, other
allowances, benefits in kind (including contribution to the pension
scheme on behalf of our Directors) or discretionary bonuses,
which are determined by the Board having regard to the Group's
performance and the prevailing market conditions and approved
by the remuneration committee of the Company. Details of
Directors’ emoluments and emoluments of five highest paid
individuals of the Company (including senior management of the
Group) are set out in notes 11 and 9 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for ensuring sound and effective risk
management and internal control systems to safeguard the
shareholders’ interests and the Company's assets. The Board has
the responsibility to evaluate and determine the nature and
extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Company’s
strategic objectives, and to ensure the Company establish and
maintain appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control systems on an ongoing basis. The risk management and
internal control systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or 10ss.

The audit committee assists the Board in leading the
management and overseeing their design, implementation and
monitoring of the risk management and internal control systems.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group conducts
an annual review on whether there is a need for an internal audit
department. Given the Group’s simple operating structure, as
opposed to a separate internal audit department, the Board is
directly responsible for internal control of the Group and for
reviewing its effectiveness. It formulates the annual internal audit
plan and procedures, conducts periodic independent reviews on
the operations of individual divisions to identify any irregularities
and risks, develops action plans and recommendations to
address the identified risks.

The Board conducts a review on the risk management and
internal control system of the Group on an annual basis and has
the responsibility to maintain an effective risk management and
internal control system. The review involves all material
monitoring aspects, including but not limited to finance,
operation, compliance and risk management. The Board also
reviews and monitors the effectiveness of the internal control
and risk management systems on a regular basis to ensure that
the systems in place are adequate. The Group's internal control
system is comprised of a system of controlled management
wherein various authoritative limits are placed to ensure that the
Group is able to supervise, control and assess various functions
within Group. The system further permits the Group to safeguard
its accounting records to minimise material errors in order to
provide financial information as accurately as possible.
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The Company has developed its disclosure policy which provides
a general guide to the Company’s Directors, officers, senior
management and relevant employees in handling confidential
information, monitoring information disclosure and responding to
enquiries. Meanwhile, the Company handles and disseminates
the inside information according to the related policy to ensure
that the inside information is kept confidential before being
approved for dissemination and the relevant information will be
released effectively and conformably.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company engaged
an external independent consultant to conduct a review on the
internal control system of the Group in order to maintain high
standards of corporate governance. The Board has also reviewed
the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Company'’s accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting function. Based on the
above, the Board is of the view that the Company has established
a proper risk management and internal control system which is
effective and adequate.

AUDITORS AND AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The auditor of the Company for the financial year under review is
PricewaterhouseCoopers. During the year ended 31 December
2019, remuneration in respect of audit and non-audit services
provided by the auditor of the Company to the Group was
approximately HK$1,930,000 and HK$182,000 respectively.

DIRECTORS AND AUDITOR’'S RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2019. The auditor of the Company acknowledges its
reporting responsibilities in the auditor’s report on the financial
statement during the year. The Directors are not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as
going concern. The statement made by the auditor of the
Company regarding their reporting responsibilities on the
consolidated financial statements is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 85 to 94 of this annual report.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Tsang Ho Pong was appointed as the company secretary of
the Company (the “Company Secretary”) since 14 June 2017. He
is full-time employee of the Company and has day-to-day
knowledge of the Company’s affairs. The Company Secretary
reports to the Chairman and is responsible for advising the Board
on corporate governance matters and facilitating communication
between Board members, the Shareholders and management of
the Company. For the year under review, the company secretary
has confirmed that he has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Rights to convene special general meetings

(1) Under the Company'’s bye-laws
Pursuant to Bye-law 62 of the Company’s bye-laws, a
special general meeting (“SGM") shall be convened on
requisition by shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”, or individually the “Shareholder”), as
provided by the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended) (the “Companies Act”), or, in default, may be
convened by the requisitionists.

(2) Under the Companies Act

Pursuant to Section 74 of the Companies Act, a
Shareholder or Shareholders holding at the date of the
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid-up capital of the Company as at the date of the
deposit carries the right of voting at general meetings of
the Company may requisition the Directors to forthwith
proceed duly to convene a SGM by depositing a written
requisition at the registered office of the Company.

The written requisition must state the purposes of the
meeting (including the resolutions to be considered at the
meeting), signed by the requisitionists, deposited at the
registered office of the Company at Victoria Place, 5th
Floor, 31 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM10, Bermuda and may
consist of several documents in like form each signed by
one or more requisitionists.
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If the Directors do not within twenty-one days from the
date of the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to
convene a SGM, the requisitionists, or any of them
representing more than one half of the total voting rights of
all of them, may themselves convene a SGM, but any SGM
so convened shall not be held after the expiration of three
months from the date of deposit of the requisition.

A SGM so convened by the requisitionists shall be
convened in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as
that in which meetings are to be convened by the Directors.

Rights to put forward proposals at general meetings
Shareholders may put forward proposals at general
meetings of the Company pursuant to the provisions of the
Companies Act as follows:

Sections 79 and 80 of the Companies Act allow certain
Shareholder(s) to requisition the Company to give notice to
the Shareholders in respect of any resolution which is
intended to be moved at an annual general meeting of the
Company (“AGM") or circulate a statement in respect of
any proposed resolution or business to be considered at a
general meeting of the Company.

Under Section 79 of the Companies Act, at the expense of
the requisitionists unless the Company otherwise resolves,
it shall be the duty of the Company on the requisition in
writing by such number of Shareholders:

(@ to give to the Shareholders entitled to receive notice
of the next AGM notice of any resolution which may
properly be moved and is intended to be moved at
that meeting.

(b)  to circulate to the Shareholders entitled to have
notice of any general meeting sent to them any
statement of not more than one thousand words with
respect to the matter referred to in any proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with at that
meeting.
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The number of Shareholders necessary to make the above
requisitions to the Company shall be:

(@a)

either any number of Shareholders representing not
less than one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all
the Shareholders having at the date of the requisition
a right to vote at the meeting to which the requisition
relates; or

not less than one hundred Shareholders. Notice of
any such intended resolution shall be given, and any
such statement shall be circulated, to Shareholders
entitled to have notice of the meeting sent to them by
serving a copy of the resolution or statement on each
such Shareholder in any manner permitted for service
of notice of the meeting, and notice of any such
resolution shall be given to any other Shareholder by
giving notice of the general effect of the resolution in
any manner permitted for giving him notice of
meetings of the Company, provided that the copy
shall be served, or notice of the effect of the
resolution shall be given, as the case may be, in the
same manner and, so far as practicable, at the same
time as notice of the meeting and, where it is not
practicable for it to be served or given at that time, it
shall be served or given as soon as practicable
thereafter.

Section 80 of the Companies Act sets out the conditions to
be met before the Company is bound to give notice of any
resolution or to circulate any statement. Pursuant to
Section 80 of the Companies Act, the Company shall not be
bound under Section 79 to give notice of any resolution or
to circulate any statement unless:

@)

a copy of the requisition signed by the requisitionists,
or two or more copies which between contain the
signatures of all the requisitionists, is deposited at the
registered office of the Company:

() inthe case of a requisition requiring notice of a
resolution, not less than six weeks before the
meeting; and

(i) in the case of any other requisition, not less
than one week before the meeting; and
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(b)  there is deposited or tendered with the requisition a
sum reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s
expense in giving effect thereto;

provided that if, after a copy of the requisition requiring
notice of a resolution has been deposited at the registered
office of the Company, an AGM is called for a date six
weeks or less after the copy has been deposited, the copy
though not deposited within the abovementioned time shall
be deemed to have been properly deposited for the
purposes thereof.

Rights to put enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may at any time put enquiries to the Board. All
enquiries shall be in writing and be sent by post to the principal
place of business of the Company in Hong Kong at Room 7707-
7708, 77th Floor, International Commerce Centre, 1 Austin Road
West, Kowloon, Hong Kong. Shareholders may also make
enquiries with the Board at the general meetings of the
Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

To manage its relationship with its Shareholders and the
investment community, the Company communicates through
publication of announcements, circulars and annual and interim
reports. Such information is disseminated through the Stock
Exchange at its designated website (http://www.hkexnews.hk),
and can also be accessed via the Company’s website
(http://cmdrawin.todayir.com). The Directors, company secretary
and other appropriate members of the senior management will
also respond to inquiries from the Shareholders and the
investment community put to the Company in the manner as
mentioned under the heading “Shareholders’ Rights” in the
Corporate Governance Report.

During the year, the Company did not make any changes to the
memorandum of association of the Company and Bye-laws, the
current versions of which are available on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company.
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The Directors have pleasure in presenting their annual report and
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in the research and
development, design, manufacture and sale of assembled
building prefabricated units, licensing and property investment in
the PRC.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group’s revenue is derived primarily from business activities
conducted in Hong Kong and China Mainland.

A fair review of the Group's business, including a description of
the principal risks and uncertainties facing the company, the
important events affecting the Group that have occurred since
the end of 2019 and the likely future developments, is set out in
the Business Review and Prospects and Financial Review
sections of this Annual Report.

Disclosure related to the Group’s environmental policies and
performance and relationships with major stakeholders are
included in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The profit and cash flows of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2019 and the state of affairs of the Group and the
Company at that date are set out in the consolidated financial
statements on pages 95 to 219.

DIVIDENDS

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil).

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the consolidated results and assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years/period is set out on
page 220.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in
Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group revalued its investment
properties by using the combinations of an income capitalisation
approach and a direct comparison approach. The increase in fair
value amounting to approximately HK$631,000 (31 December
2018: fair value gain of HK$367,000) has been credited to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

Details of the investment properties of the Group are set out in
Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of share capital for the year ended 31 December 2019 are
set out in Note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in the
statement of changes in equity on page 99 and Note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2019, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of
the listed securities of the Company.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year ended 31
December 2019 and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. WU Po Sum (Chairman)
(appointed on 17 September 2019)

Mr. GUO Weigiang (Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 17 September 2019)

Mr. YANG Hongwei

Mr. YIN Jun (resigned on 30 November 2019)

Non-executive Director:

Ms. WU Wallis (alias Li Hua) (appointed on 17 September 2019)
Mr. WANG Jun (appointed on 17 September 2019)

Mr. PENG Xiongwen (resigned on 17 September 2019)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. JIANG Hongging

Mr. LEE Chi Ming

Mr. MA Lishan

The Company has received from each of the existing
independent non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
considers all the independent non-executive Directors to be
independent.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Directors and Officers Liability Insurance undertaken by the
Company provides an indemnity to all the directors of the
Company under which every director will be indemnified by the
Company against all costs, charges, losses, expenses and
liabilities incurred by him in the execution and discharge of his
duties or in relation thereto. Such insurance has been in force
during the financial year ended 31 December 2019 and as of the
date of this report.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Wu Po Sum has entered into a service contract with the
Company pursuant to which Mr. Wu Po Sum agreed to act as
executive Director for a term of three years with effect from 17
September 2019. Mr. Guo Weigiang has entered into a service
contract with the Company pursuant to which he agreed to act
as an executive Director for a term of three years with effect
from 17 September 2019. Mr. Yang Hongwei has entered into a
service contract with the Company pursuant to which he agreed
to act as an executive Director without specific terms with effect
from 21 June 2018.

Mr. Yin Jun, who resigned on 30 November 2019, did not enter
into any se1-vice contract with the Company in acting as a non-
executive Director and his engagement was without specific
terms with effect from 3 July 2015.

Ms. Wu Wallis (alias Li Hua) has signed a letter of appointment
dated 17 September 2019 with the company pursuant to which
she agreed to act as non-executive Director for a term of three
years with effect from 17 September 2019. Mr. Wang Jun has
signed a letter of appointment dated 17 September 2019 with the
company pursuant to which he agreed to act as non-executive
Director for a term of three years with effect from 17 September
2019. Mr. Pang Xiongwen, who resigned on 17 September 2019,
did not enter into any service contract with the Company in
acting as a non-executive Director and his engagement was
without specific terms with effect from 1 July 2018.

Mr. Ma Lishan has signed a letter of appointment dated 28 June
2019 with the Company pursuant to which he agreed to act as
independent non-executive Director for a term of three years
with effect from 28 June 2019. Mr. Lee Chi Ming has signed a
letter of appointment dated 30 December 2017 with the Company
pursuant to which he agreed to act as independent non-
executive Director for a term of three years with effect from 30
December 2017 Mr. Jiang Hongging has signed a letter of
appointment dated 30 June 2019 with the Company pursuant to
which he agreed to act as independent non-executive Director
for a term of three years with effect from 30 June 2019.

Save as disclosed above, no Director has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by
the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence. The emolument of the Directors
are decided by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to
the Company’s operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an
incentive to the Directors and eligible employees, details of the
scheme are set in the section headed “Share Option Scheme”
below.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and five individuals
with highest remuneration are set out in Note 11 and 9 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2019, the following Directors and chief
executives of the Company had or were deemed to have
interests and short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO")) which
(i) have been notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which were taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO); or (i) have been entered
in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO; or (iii) otherwise have been notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code to
the Listing Rules.
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Long positions in the Shares and underlying Shares of the
Company

RAEXTRDKAEABROGPEENGTR

Name of Director or

Percentage
Number of of the Issued

chief executive Capacity Shares held Share Capital

e BT

EEHRETHASHS 1=27) BERGEAE BAEEDH

(note 1)

(HfaE1)

Mr. Wu Po Sum Interest of controlled corporation 7,121,769,700 (note 2) 63.53%

HHRARE A RYENEER 7,121,769,700 (K7 2) 63.53%
Note: Bz -

1. It was based on 11,209,602,920 Shares as at 31 December 2019.

2. 7,118,440,000 Shares were owned by Jianye Holdings Limited and
3,329,700 Shares were owned by Joy Bright Investments Limited. Mr.
Wu Po Sum holds 100% of the issued share capital of Joy Bright
Investments Limited and Jianye Holdings Limited. Accordingly, he is
deemed to be interested in 7,121,769,700 Shares by virtue of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at December 31, 2019, so far as is
known to any Director or the chief executive of the Company,
none of the Directors nor the chief executives of the Company
had any interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying
Shares or debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which (a)
were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to therein; or (b) were required, pursuant
to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contract, transaction or arrangement of significance to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which
any Director or an entity connected with any Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year ended 31
December 2019.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance had been entered into between the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, and the controlling
shareholder of Ihe Company or any of its subsidiaries during the
year ended 31 December 2019.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of
all or any substantial part of the Group’s business was entered
into or existed during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S RIGHT
TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Save as disclosed in this report, at no time during the year ended
31 December 2019 was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangement to enable the Directors or their
respective spouses or minor children to acquire benefits by
means of acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company
or any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTEREST
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2019, as far as known to the Directors or
chief executive of the Company, the following persons (other
than the Directors or chief executive of the Company) had the
interests or short positions in the Shares and underlying Shares
of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO:
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EEEHS (H)

Long positions in the Shares and underlying Shares of the

Company

RAEXTRDKAEABROGPEENGTR

Percentage of

Number of the Issued
Name of Shareholders Capacity Shares held Share Capital
HE®T
BREE g4 BHERGOEE BRAB DL
(note 1)
(Ftat1)
Jiayao Global Investments Limited (“Jiayao”)  Beneficial owner 5,880,440,000 52.46%
R (B IREBRAB ([F2IR]) EmBEAA
Jiamin (Holding) Investment Limited Beneficial owner 320,000,000 2.85%
B (EBRKREARAA E=BAA
Jianuo (Holding) Investment Limited Beneficial owner 310,000,000 2.76%
Ean (BR)IREBR LA EmBEAA
Jiaxin (Holding) Investment Limited Beneficial owner 274,000,000 2.44%
=iz (BER)IKREBR A EmBAA
Jiaheng (Holding) Investment Limited Beneficial owner 269,000,000 2.40%
BT (ER)REBRATA EnlEAA
Jiacheng (Holding) Investment Limited Beneficial owner 65,000,000 0.58%
B (ER)REFRAF EREAA
Jialing (International) Investment Limited Interest of controlled corporation 1,238,000,000 11.04%
ER(EF)REBRAA SN AR
Jiayao Interest of controlled corporation 1,238,000,000 11.04%
= SN AR
Jiaye Summit Global Investment Limited Interest of controlled corporation 7,118,440,000 63.50%
=& (BB REERAA SN L
Drawin Intelligent Manufacture Technology Interest of controlled corporation 7,118,440,000 63.50%

Industry Group Limited (formerly known

as China Minsheng Drawin Technology

Industry Limited)
EREENMREXEEFR AR

(A1 - PRERBIHEZEBRAF)

70

RN



2019 Annual Report DIT Group Limited
TE-NEER | EXEENEEEERAR

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEHE (A)

Percentage of

Number of the Issued
Name of Shareholders Capacity Shares held Share Capital
HE®T
REREHE g4 BHERGOEE BRABDL
(note 1)
(Btat1)
Tianjin Drawin Technology Limited (formerly  Interest of controlled corporation 7,118,440,000 63.50%
known as Tianjin China Minsheng Drawin 3R Al#EzS
Technology Limited)
REBEREEMBRBR AR (FIHE : KiEH
RERBARRR)
Henan Hongdao Business Information Interest of controlled corporation 7,118,440,000 63.50%
Consultancy Company Limited SR NEIL o
A ShBE S E R EABRAR]
Construction Development (H.K) Company Interest of controlled corporation 7,118,440,000 63.50%
Limited FiE N AR
BEERR(EB)BRAA
Construction Housing Group Company Interest of controlled corporation 7,118,440,000 63.50%
Limited TN AR
BEAEEERARAA
Jianye Holdings Limited Interest of controlled corporation 7,118,440,000 63.50%
YR ERERS (note 2)
(Htat2)
Joy Bright Investments Limited Beneficial owner 3,329,700 0.03%
B ERR A A EmEE A (note 2)
(Htat2)
Zhu Yuehai Beneficial owner 1,000,000,000 8.92%
KEE Emla A
Notes: Hiat -
1. It was based on 11,209,602,920 Shares as at 31 December 2019. 1. BRZF-NEF+ZA=+—HmM11,209,602,920 iz {7

B

2. Mr. Wu Po Sum holds 100% of the issued share capital of Joy Bright 2. MERELRAREREER QA Klianye Holdings
Investments Limited and Jianye Holdings Limited. Limited #9 2 #FE B ITRLA ©
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Save as disclosed above, and as at 31 December 2019, the
Directors were not aware of any persons (other than the
Directors and chief executive of the Company) who had any
interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares
which would fall to be disclosed under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme adopted by the Company on 7
November 2003 (the “Old Scheme”) was terminated pursuant to
an ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders of the
Company on 7 August 2013. A new share option scheme (the
“New Scheme”) in place of the Old Scheme was adopted
pursuant to such resolution with effect from 7 August 2013 which
has a term of 10 years. No share options have been granted,
exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the New Scheme since its
adoption on 7 August 2013. As at 31 December 2019 and up to
the date of this report, there were no outstanding share options
that have been granted and remained outstanding and
exercisable under both the Old Scheme and the New Scheme.
The following is a summary of the New Scheme:

(@) Purpose
The purpose is to enable the Company to grant options to
eligible participants as incentives and/or rewards for their
contribution or potential contribution to the growth and
development of the Group.

(b) Eligible participants
Eligible participants include employees or officers (including
executive Directors), non-executive Directors (including
independent non-executive Directors), suppliers,
customers, consultants or advisors, and securities holders
of the Company, as to be determined by the Board at its
absolute discretion within the categories.
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Total number of shares available for issue

The maximum number of Shares which may be allotted and
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under the New Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company must not in
aggregate exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from time to
time. The total number of Shares which may be allotted
and issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under
the New Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Group must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the Shares
in issue as at 7 August 2013, but the Company may seek
approval of its shareholders in general meeting to refresh
the 10% limit under the New Scheme.

Maximum entitlement of each eligible participant
The total number of share issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the share options granted under the New
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company to each eligible participant in any 12-month
period up to the date of grant must not exceed 1% of the
shares in issue at the date of grant. In addition, any share
options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive Director, or to any of their
associate must not exceed 0.1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time and with an aggregate value
(based on the closing price of the Company’s shares at the
date of each grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any
12-month period up to and including the date of such grant.
Subject to separate approval by the shareholders in general
meeting with the relevant participant and his associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) abstaining from voting provided
the Company shall issue a circular to shareholders before
such approval is sought, the Company may grant options to
a eligible participant which would exceed this limit.

Option period
The option period within which the shares must be taken
up under an option shall be determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion at the time of grant, but such period
must not exceed 10 years from the date of grant of the
relevant option.
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Minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised

The minimum period, if any, for which an option must be
held before it can be exercised shall be determined by the
Board in its absolute discretion. The New Scheme itself
does not specify any minimum holding period.

Payment on acceptance of the option

HK$10 is payable by the grantee to the Company on
acceptance of the option offer. An offer must be accepted
within 28 days from the date of grant.

Basis of determining the exercise price

The exercise price shall be determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion at the time of the grant but shall not be
less than the higher of: (i) the closing price of the shares on
the date of grant; (ii) the average closing prices of the
shares for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant; and (iii) the par value of a share.

Remaining life of the New Scheme

The New Scheme will remain valid for a period of ten years
commencing on 7 August 2013 unless otherwise
terminated by resolution of shareholders in general
meeting.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

EPC Service Arrangement and Park Design Services
Arrangement, Supply arrangement and PC Design Service
arrangement and Property leasing agreement

On 3 April 2019, (i) the Company and China Minsheng Drawin
Construction Technology Group Co., Ltd* (F RER 2R EHI LB
BBR2A7]) ("CMDCT") entered into the Framework Agreement | in
relation to (a) the provision of EPC general contracting services
by the CMDCT and its subsidiaries (collectively “CMDCT Group”)
to the Group, namely the EPC Service Arrangement and (b) the
supply of prefabricated construction components and products
by the Group to the CMDCT Group, namely the Supply
Arrangement; (ii) the Company and China Minsheng Drawin
Construction Design Co., Ltd* (FREKEEXA AR AR
(“CMDCD") entered into the Framework Agreement Il in relation
to (a) the provision of design services by the CMDCD and its
subsidiaries (collectively “CMDCD Group”) to the Group in respect
of the Group's technology parks in the PRC, namely the Park
Design Service Arrangement and (b) the provision of design
services by the CMDCD Group to the Group in respect of the
design of prefabricated construction components and products,
namely the PC Design Service Arrangement and (iii) Changsha
China Minsheng Drawin Intelligent Technology Co., Ltd.* (X
RERESERFEAR2AT) ("CM Changsha”), an indirect non
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and Drawin Intelligent
Manufacture Technology Industry Group Limited* (58 & # R
EXEEAFRAR) ("Drawin Manufacture”) entered into the
Property Leasing Agreement, pursuant to which CM Changsha
shall lease to Drawin Manufacture (or its subsidiaries) the
properties within the Changsha technology park. The Framework
Agreement | and the Framework Agreements Il are collectively
referred to as the Framework Agreements.
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Pursuant to the EPC Service Arrangement, the contractual price
of EPC general contracting services to be provided by the CMDCT
Group to the Group should be determined with reference to the
estimated costs of a construction project plus a profit margin and
management fee of not more than 5% of the construction costs.
As disclosed in the announcement dated 3 April 2019, the
Company estimated that the maximum value of the transactions
under the EPC Service Arrangement over the term of the
Framework Agreement | may reach RMB250 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$289.79 million).

Pursuant to the Supply Arrangement, the integrated unit price of
the prefabricated construction components and products to be
supplied by the Group to the CMDCT Group should be the
prevailing market price of each unit and the price quotation to be
provided by the Group should be determined with reference to
the estimated costs of each unit plus a profit margin of not more
than 10% margin of the unit cost. As disclosed in the
announcement dated 3 April 2019, the Company is required
under Rule 14A.53 of the Listing Rules to set an annual cap over
the term of the Framework Agreement |. Accordingly, such
Proposed Supply Arrangement Annual Cap over the term of the
Framework Agreement | has been determined to be RMB300
million (equivalent to approximately HK$347.75 million).

Pursuant to the Park Design Service Arrangement, the
contractual price for the design services to be provided by
CMDCD to the Group should be determined with reference to the
estimated costs of the design services plus a profit margin and
management fee of not more than 5% of the design costs.
Pursuant to the PC Design Service Arrangement, the contractual
price for the design services in respect of the design of the
prefabricated construction components and products to be sold
by the Group to third parties should be determined with
reference to the estimated costs of the design services plus a
profit margin and management fee of not more than 5% of the
design costs.
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As disclosed in the announcement dated 3 April 2019, the
Company estimates that the maximum value of the transactions
under the Park Design Service Arrangement over the term of the
Framework Agreement Il may reach RMB6 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$6.95 million). The Company is required under
Rule 14A.53 of the Listing Rules to set an annual cap over the
term of the Framework Agreement II. Accordingly, such Proposed
PC Design Service Arrangement Annual Cap has been
determined to be RMB9 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$10.43 million).

Pursuant to the Property Leasing Agreement, CM Changsha
agreed to (i) lease to the relevant Drawin Manufacture Group
Entity the office premises, staff dormitories, finished production
warehouses, test plants and prefabricated components
manufacturing plants, and (ii) provide to the same the ancillary
services including the supply of heating, hot water and the
provision of technology park maintenance services (“Leasing and
Ancillary Services Arrangement”). The rentals and service fees
under the Property Leasing Agreement have been determined by
Drawin Manufacture and CM Changsha after arm’s length
negotiation with reference to the comparable rental in the
relevant market under a normal commercial lease for a term of
two to three years as set out in the valuation report on rental
appraisal prepared by an independent valuation firm. The total
amount of fees payable by Drawin Manufacture on behalf of the
Drawin Manufacture Group Entities to CM Changsha for the
entire lease term will be calculated based on the following
formula:

RMB1,350,748.50 X (N + M)

where N = the number of clear calendar months elapsed
during the term of Property Leasing Agreement
M = the actual number of days elapsed in the first

month of the term of the Property Leasing
Agreement (approval date inclusive) over 30
days

As disclosed in the announcement dated 3 April 2019, the
Company is required to set an annual cap over the value of the
annual payment by Drawin Manufacture to CM Changsha in
respect of the Leasing and Ancillary Services Arrangement
pursuant to the Property Leasing Agreement. Under the Leasing
and Ancillary Services Arrangement, the maximum transaction
value for the year ended 31 December 2019 is RMB16,210,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$18,789,845.8).
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Drawin Manufacture indirectly holds approximately 63.5% of the
issued Shares; hence, a controlling shareholder of the Company.
Drawin Manufacture is also indirectly wholly-owned by Mr. Wu
Po Sum, who is an executive Director. Therefore, Drawin
Manufacture is a connected person of the Company under the
Listing Rules.

CMDCT is direct wholly-owned subsidiary of Drawin Manufacture,
and therefore a connected person of the Company pursuant to
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Accordingly, each of the EPC
Service Arrangement and the Supply Arrangement under the
Framework Agreement | constitutes a connected transaction of
the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

CMDCD is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Drawin
Manufacture, and therefore a connected person of the Company
pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Accordingly, each
of the Park Design Service Arrangement and the PC Design
Service Arrangement under the Framework Agreement I
constitutes a connected transaction of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

As the EPC Service Arrangement and the Park Design Service
Arrangement are both capital in nature which involve different
aspects in the construction of a technology park and CMDCD is a
direct wholly-owned subsidiary of CMDCT, the EPC Service
Arrangement and the Park Design Service Arrangement require
aggregation under Rule 14.22 of the Listing Rules. As the
applicable percentage ratios in respect of the estimated
maximum values of the EPC Service Arrangement under
Framework Agreement | and the Park Design Service
Arrangement under Framework Agreement Il over the term of
the Framework Agreements exceed 5% but are less than 25%,
the EPC Service Arrangement and the Park Design Service
Arrangement constitute (i) connected transactions of the
Company which are subject to the reporting, announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules, and (i) discloseable transactions of the
Company which are subject to the reporting and announcement
requirements under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules.
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As the Supply Arrangement is of revenue nature and one or more
of the applicable percentage ratios in respect of the Proposed
Supply Arrangement Annual Cap exceed 5%, the contemplated
transaction under the Supply Arrangement constitutes a
continuing connected transaction which is subject to the annual
review, reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Further, the highest applicable percentage ratios in respect of
the Proposed PC Design Service Arrangement Annual Cap is
more than 0.1% but less than 5%, the contemplated transaction
under the PC Design Service Arrangement constitutes a
continuing connected transaction which is only subject to the
annual review, reporting and announcement requirements and is
exempted from the independent shareholders’ requirement
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Drawin Manufacture indirectly holds approximately 63.5% of the
issued Shares; hence, a controlling shareholder of the Company.
Drawin Manufacture is also indirectly wholly-owned by Mr. Wu
Po Sum, who is an executive Director. Therefore, Drawin
Manufacture is a connected person of the Company under the
Listing Rules. Accordingly, the transactions under the Property
Leasing Agreement constitute a continuing connected
transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. As the highest applicable percentage ratios in respect of
the continuing connected transactions under the Property
Leasing Agreement is more than 0.1% but less than 5%, the
contemplated transaction under the Property Leasing Agreement
constitutes a continuing connected transaction which is only
subject to the annual review, reporting and announcement
requirements and is exempted from the independent
shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

On 4 July 2019, a special general meeting was held. Under the
ordinary resolution, shareholders are confirmed, approved and
ratify the Framework Agreements dated 3 April 2019 and the
transactions contemplated thereunder (including the Proposed
Supply Arrangement Annual Cap and the estimated transaction
values under the EPC Service Arrangement and the Park Design
Service Arrangement).
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Confirmation from Independent Non-executive Directors
The independent non-executive directors confirmed that they
have reviewed the above arrangement (except in respect of PC
Design Service Arrangement and Property Leasing Agreement
and confirmed that:

() the terms and conditions of the Framework Agreements
are on normal commercial terms which are fair and
reasonable;

(i)  the Proposed Annual Caps (except in respect of the
Proposed PC Design Service Arrangement Annual Cap and
the Proposed Property Leasing Annual Cap) are fair and
reasonable; and

(i) the Framework Agreements and the transactions
contemplated thereunder were entered into and will be
conducted in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Company and its subsidiaries, and are in the interest of
the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

In respect of PC Design Service Arrangement and Property
Leasing Agreement, the independent non-executive directors
confirmed that they have reviewed :

() the terms and conditions of the Framework Agreement II
and the Property Leasing Agreement are on normal
commercial terms which are fair and reasonable;

(i) the Proposed PC Design Service Arrangement Annual Cap
and the Proposed Property Leasing Annual Cap are fair and
reasonable; and

(i)  the Framework Agreement Il and the Property Leasing
Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereunder
were entered into and will be conducted in the ordinary
and usual course of business of the Company and its
subsidiaries, and are in the interest of the Company and
the Shareholders as a whole.

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge and belief after having
made all reasonable enquiries, other than (1) Mr. Wu Po Sum (an
executive Director) who indirectly holds the entire equity interests
in Drawin Manufacture and is a controlling shareholder of the
company, and (2) Ms. Wu Wallis (alias Li Hua) (@ non-executive
Director) who is the daughter of Mr. Wu Po Sum, none of the
Directors has a material interest in the Framework Agreements,
the Property Leasing Agreement and the transactions
contemplated thereunder.
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Confirmation from auditors

The Company's external auditor was engaged to report on the
continuing connected transactions of the Group under the above
EPC Service Arrangement, Park Design Service Arrangement, PC
Design Service Arrangement, Property Leasing Agreement and
Supply Arrangement in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information”, and with reference to Practice Note 740 "Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The external auditor has issued an
unqualified report containing its findings and conclusions in
respect of the disclosed above in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of
the Main Board Listing Rules. The Company provided a copy of
the report to the Stock Exchange.

The external auditor of the Company confirmed that nothing has
come to their attention that causes them to believe that the
continuing connected transactions for the year ended 31
December 2019 under the Framework Agreements and the
Property Leasing Agreement:

(i) have not been approved by the Board,

(i) were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the
price policies of the Group;

(i) were not entered into, in all material respects, in
accordance with the relevant agreements governing such
transactions; and

(iv)  have exceeded the annual cap as set by the Company.

Provision of financial assistance

On 29 November 2019, Xiangtan China Minsheng Drawin
Technology Limited* (48 #f R 2 K £ £ 8 IR A 7)) ("Xiangtan
Drawin”) (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company)
entered into the Mortgage Agreement with the Yuhua Sub-
branch of Changsha Rural Commercial Bank Co. Ltd. (the “Bank”),
pursuant to which Xiangtan Drawin agreed to provide the
mortgage over Xiangtan Drawin’s land use rights of a stated-
owned construction land and six constructions in process
thereon (with a gross floor area of approximately 89,025 square
metres) (the “Mortgage”) in favour of the Bank as security for the
repayment obligations of Drawin Manufacture (an indirect
controlling shareholder of the Company) under the Loan
Agreement in respect of a loan facility of up to RMB40,000,000
granted by the Bank to Drawin Manufacture for on-lending to
China Minsheng Drawin Technology Investment Limited* (52 %2
SRS EBRAR]) (“Drawin Investment”) (an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company) on the same terms as the
Loan Agreement (the “Shareholder’s Loan”) without receiving any
fee or commission nor any counter-security or guarantee from
Drawin Investment.
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Drawin Manufacture indirectly holds approximately 63.5% of the
issued Shares, thus an indirect controlling shareholder of the
Company. Drawin Manufacture is also indirectly wholly-owned by
Mr. Wu Po Sum, who is an executive Director; hence, Drawin
Manufacture is a connected person of the Company under the
Listing Rules. The provision of the Mortgage by Xiangtan Drawin
under the Mortgage Agreement therefore constitutes a
connected transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

As the applicable percentage ratios in respect of the provision of
the Mortgage are more than 0.1% but less than 5%, the provision
of the Mortgage is subject to reporting and announcement
reguirements but exempt from the independent Shareholders’
approval under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The on-lending of the loan from Drawin Manufacture to Drawin
Investment also constitutes a connected transaction of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, but is fully
exempted from Shareholders’ approval, annual review and all
disclosure requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.90 of the Listing
Rules.

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge and belief after having
made all reasonable enquiries, other than (1) Mr. Wu Po Sum (an
executive Director) who indirectly holds the entire equity interests
in Drawin Manufacture, and (2) Ms. Wu Wallis (alias Li Hua) (a
non-executive Director) who is the daughter of Mr. Wu Po Sum,
none of the Directors has a material interest in the Mortgage
Agreement, the Shareholder’s Loan and the transactions
contemplated thereunder.

Save as disclosed above, during the year ended December 31,
2019, the Company had no connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions which are required to be disclosed under
the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules with respect
to the connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions entered into by the Group during the year ended
December 31, 2019.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of material related party transactions of the Group
undertaken in the normal course of business are set out in Note
36 to the consolidated financial statements. Save for the
connected transaction as disclosed above, none of these related
party transactions is required to be disclosed under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2019:

()  The Group’s largest customers and the five largest
customers accounted for approximately 8.0% and 27.1% of
the Group's total turnover respectively.

(i) The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group's five
largest suppliers were less than 30% of the Group’s total
purchases.

China Minsheng Drawin Construction Technology Group
Company Limited (formerly known as China Minsheng Drawin
Construction Co., Ltd) (“CMDCT"), a substantial shareholder of
the Company, is a key customer of 18.1% sales of the Group. The
connected transactions with CMDCT have been approved at the
Board meeting and Shareholders’ meeting (if applicable) of the
Company.

Save for this, none of the Directors, their associates, or any
shareholders (which to the best knowledge of the Directors
owned more than 5% of the Company's share capital) has any
beneficial interests in these major customers and suppliers.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to the shareholders of the Company by reason of their
holding of the Company’s securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights in respect of the
shares of the Company under the Company’s byelaws although
there are no restrictions against such rights under the laws of
Bermuda.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained sufficient public float throughout the year ended 31
December 2019 and up to the latest practicable date prior to the
issue of this report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year, to the best knowledge of the Directors, the
Group has complied with all the relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the Group.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS, SUPPLIERS AND OTHERS

The Group fully understands that employees, customers and
suppliers are the key to our sustainable and stable development.
We are committed to establishing a close relationship with our
employees, enhancing cooperation with our suppliers and
providing high-quality products and services to our customers so
as to ensure the Group's sustainable development.

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers shall retire in the forthcoming
annual general meeting and being eligible, will offer themselves
for re-appointment. A resolution for re-appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditor of the Company will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting .

By Order of the Board of
DIT Group Limited
Wu Po Sum

Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 April 2020

84

DRFBRE

MANBIFTEAREREEERAR  ARARH
BHE-_Z-NAE+-A=+—HILEERAET
BEARARENNREATREE—BHEESTZHNAR

FRE -

BriEBIRRGI

FA - BEEMAAN ARBECETHARESR
BEAFENAERBAD LR

HES -FF  HEHREMALH
EEAE

AEERDBHIES  TPMEREEZHMAR
BREHRNOER MBI EBETREIRY)
FAR - el EEENAE RRMANEFEHR
DB MERMRE - WRRASERFEER -

23

RO KBEMEBAHNERERRBFEAS
RETEERERSER - ARRAHRERERRE
FRELRE-BRZR NWERERKES
FHRDEIE AT R AN B A AZ BLED o

EEEEM
EREENEERERATF
Et

HHER

FE —Z-TFOA-+H



_E
pwec

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
DIT Group Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited
The consolidated financial statements of DIT Group Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages
95 t0 219 which comprise:

o the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2019,

o the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the year then ended,;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the
year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

o the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include a summary of significant accounting policies.

PIEUNRRE | mxmansamnRLR
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB BENR S
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s HEZBILFEMNGEBEREMAEMEEK
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s  FAMBHmENE  BEIZSFBEME -

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

B KB SN BT - BEFIRAFAE =1
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2019, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAS") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.
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Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised
as follows:

1. Impairment assessment on property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets

2. Impairment provision for trade receivables

B BET RS ()

B K R R E
BAVER BB R BT BER T -
1 nE BERREREARAERETE

2. EBHRWFERERRE

Key Audit Matter 1
ARETEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BB A EYERETEE

Impairment assessment on property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets
W BERZEREAEEERETS

Refer to Note 5.1 (Critical accounting estimates —
Impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets), Note 15 (Property, plant and equipment) and
Note 16 (Right-of-use assets) to the consolidated financial
statements.

FL2HEREVBHREMES N (EESE T — W% - W
EREHERERAELZERE) ME15W%E - BERE
&) R sE16 (FREEE) -

As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amounts of
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets of
the Group were HK$1,416,328,000 and HK$726,587,000,
respectively.

RZEBE-NF+ZA=+—80  BE5EYXE- BEKX
R RS ENREES 5 /1,416,328000% 7T &
726,587,000 ¢ °

With regard to the identification of impairment indicators
relating to property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets, we evaluated management’s assessment by
taking into account macroeconomic data (including
industry trends), management’s business plans.

AR EYE  BRERREREAEEERBEORER
EmE B ERLBLCBESE(RETEBYE)RE
BEMEBKTE - HEBEMNMEETE -

With regard to the recoverable amounts of the underlying
CGUs with impairment indicators:
AREBRESRNERRCEELESMUAAIWESEE

e \We assessed the appropriateness of the valuation
model adopted by management.
o BIFHETEEERANGHEEIMNEE M
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Key Audit Matter 1 (Continued)
BRESE (F)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMOET MRS ERETSE

Impairment assessment on property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets (Continued)
M BERZRERFERAEEERENS(E)

Management has assessed whether any impairment
indicators of property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets existed as at the balance sheet date and has
identified that impairment indicators of the property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets existed for certain
subsidiaries which are loss-making for consecutive years.
EREDTEME BERRXERCABEENREESR
BEXRAMREHFEEMRETR  WRTEELFTHRE
EENETHBARGFEYNE BERSERFERES
EREDR o

For the purpose of assessing the impairment,
management identified each subsidiary as a Cash
Generating Unit (“CGU"). The recoverable amount of the
underlying CGUs were determined based on the present
value of estimated future cash flow. No provision for
impairment was made based on management’'s
assessment.

RETRENG EEESSHEBARARER —EARE
EEBEM([ReEEEMN]) HARSEEBMHAK
EeBIORBEAEFAKESRENREETE - BREERE
EearL - WEELRERE -
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e We evaluated the appropriateness of discount rates
by comparing them with the costs of capital of
comparable companies as well as considering territory
specific and other factors.

o BMBBMITIAERER L R A ERKAEITLE -
AR R e R R R R ARGHE T IR R e EE 1 -

e \We evaluated the reasonableness of revenue growth
rates by comparing them with historical operating
results, budgets approved by management and future
business projections.

o HMBEBKKNEREEFELLLES  SHEMNE
BITEE AR IR ST TR R 1T L BORETE AL R R/
BN o

e We tested the mathematical accuracy of the
underlying present value of estimated future cash flow
calculations.

o EMAIRTHFARRESREFTENIEFARENEZE
W -
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B BET RS ()

Key Audit Matter 1 (Continued)
HREEH(H)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMET A EEERETSE

Impairment assessment on property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets (Continued)
M - BERBZENRETS (E)

We focused on this area as the carrying amounts of
property, plant and equipment and right-of use assets are
significant to the consolidated financial statements and
the identification of impairment indicators and
assessment on the recoverable amounts of the underlying
CGUs involved significant management's estimates and
judgement, including applying key assumptions such as
revenue growth rates and discount rates.

BMFEZRE  RARYE  BEMKERERESR
ENERAEYSEVBREAMS BEXN - METHEDR
SMNAHERRSELEEMNAIKESE I REXNEE
Bt kAL 2REERRABRERTREELIZR

e We evaluated management’s sensitivity analysis
around the key assumptions to ascertain the extent of
changes in these assumptions required to trigger an
impairment of the relevant assets, and considered the
likelihood of such changes in those key assumptions.

o HMAMBREEEZEBAREBRENGRESN - UEE
EEEEEEREMENZERENELCREE  1F
RZEHABRERRBENSE AR o

Based on the work we performed, we considered the
valuation model used by the management was
appropriate and the key assumptions were supported by
the evidence we gathered.

BERMFETHNIE  BMRREREFERNMGER
ADBEE  REMARENSEIFHARES -
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Key Audit Matter 2
FRETEIR2

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
B ETNAEEERETSE

Impairment provision for trade receivables
E 2 EWFIERERE

Refer to Note 5.1 (Critical accounting estimates —
Impairment of trade receivables) and Note 22 (Trade and
other receivables and prepayments) to the consolidated
financial statements.

B2 EPBHRERWTS1(EEEF T — BEHEK
KIERE) K22 (8 5 K E M pE W R IE KRB HKIE) °

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s gross trade
receivables amounted to HK$516,098,000, against which
an impairment provision of HK$5,134,000 was provided.
RZZE-—NF+ZA=1+—H  E&EBENEFERFE
4RFE /516,098,000 7T + N ¥ E 5HR RN (B £ 5,134,000
I e

The Group applied the simplified approach as permitted
under Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard 9 —
Financial Instruments to measure expected credit losses
which used a lifetime expected loss allowance for all
trade receivables, grouped by shared credit risk
characteristics by taking into account the days past due.
EEERAERAMBREEREIR— @RI AAFTH
bR At ERBEEEE  HERMEE S EKGIA
WEEREAPEERE EZEAMRBBEARE
ERREEN A -

We focused on this area due to the magnitude of trade
receivables balances and the significance of management
judgements applied in determining the impairment
provision.
HRESERFIAGEHNEEEEREEEHEBAET
WERFERNEZMN - BOTENZES -
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Our audit work in relation to impairment provision for
trade receivables included:
HZMEHEESERGIERERENSET LIERTE

e \We assessed the reasonableness of key input data
and major assumptions adopted in expected credit
losses of trade receivables, including the historical
default loss rates and the adjustments for the
historical default loss rates based on forward looking
macroeconomic data.

o HMEHE T FEWMABBNSIEMLARE S R FIETE
HMEEBEERERANEERE - SRR LEABRERN
ERATE M RECBEUR R DB B R RN -

e \We tested the accuracy of the aging analysis of trade
receivables by tracing items in the aging analysis, on a
sample basis, to the relevant supporting documents.

o HFBBMEBMEREIITHNIEEZB BRI
R 7 2 AOR B 5 FE IR IR BR e o AT RO ZE R ©

e We tested the expected credit losses calculation
schedule for mathematical accuracy.
o BMAIRBEEESBTERBERNBSERN -

e \We checked subsequent settlements relating to trade
receivables as at 31 December 2019, on a sample basis.

o BMUMEARAKRER-_ZE—NEF+_A=+—HE
SRERFIBNEBEESE -

Based on the work performed, we considered that the
management’s judgements in assessing the impairment
of trade receivables were supported by the evidence we
gathered.

BRBMETHIE  RMRAEERELTHE S ERK
HRES B A GERRMESENBR S -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not and will not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

By BET RS ()

Hith &
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WA — I ER (A EHRER R E hArEm K
PR BB R ERRIN) ©
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5 TIX 4 =A
EEEW o
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The audit committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR'’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAS, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

By EREHRE (E)
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o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with the audit committee all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Mang, Kwong Fung Frederick.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 22 April 2020
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FaRmRkEMZEKRESR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 &2 —E—hE+-_A=+—HILFE

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
Bz HE
—E-hEF —FE-N\F
t=A=t—-8B +-A=+—~H
IEFE LEFE
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
HtaE FET FET
Revenue A 6 695,901 530,232
Cost of sales SHE KA 9 (518,126) (372,107)
Gross profit EF 177,775 158,125
Gains on disposal of subsidiaries HEN BRI Rk E 33 134,178 -
Government subsidies S B 23,495 14,029
Other income HAbdgA 7 5,892 3,510
Other (l0sses)/gains — net Hib (F18), WaE — 58 8 (5,452) 7,151
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHFAX 9 (55,371) (34,745)
Administrative expenses ITERX 9 (117,308) (109,710)
Net impairment losses on financial assets 4 g1 & & R E BB F 4 (2,837) (1,633)
Share of gains/(losses) of associates Bt N R Es(E518) 4,491 (1,329)
Operating profit B EF 164,863 35,398
Finance costs BE KA 10 (25,928) (9,155)
Profit before income tax MRETEH AR 138,935 26,243
Income tax expenses 3R X 12 (25,318) (6,903)
Profit for the year F BT 113,617 19,340
Profit/(loss) for the year, ABUTALTHENEE
attributable to AL (B5E8)
— Owners of the Company — ARREEEA 110,749 27,427
— Non-controlling interests — JEPERRAE 2,868 (8,087)
113,617 19,340
Earnings per share attributable to KATEBAFLER
owners of the Company EF 14
(expressed in HK$ cents per share) (AEFRBILZ7)
— Basic and diluted —HEAREE 0.99 0.24
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 &&= T —AFE+_-_A=+—HILFE

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
Bz HE
—E-hEF —EFE-N\F
+=—A=+-H +=A=+—H
IEFE IFFE
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
HtaF FET FET
Profit for the year FEEER 113,617 19,340
Other comprehensive loss, Hit2HEEE HEWRE
which may be reclassified WEHFIEZER
subsequently to profit or loss
— Currency translation differences — GBI E = EE (51,115) (105,416)
Other comprehensive 10ss FEEMEEERE -
for the year, net of tax HERBIE (51,115) (105,416)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) SFEZmEWE (EE) 445
for the year 62,502 (86,076)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) BUTALFRENEESE
for the year, attributable to Wi (E58) 85
— Owners of the Company i NEIE 2 SN 60,217 (76,811)
— Non-controlling interests — JEIE R R 2,285 (9,265)
62,502 (86,076)
The above consolidated statement of profit or loss and other — E&R & B8 K B i 2 E1 Y ot 2 78 SR B B P o —

comprehensive income should be read in conjunction with the

accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
FE R R

As at 31 December 2019 R=—E—h&E+-_A=+—H

As at As at
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
R-ZF-hE RZZT—N\HF
+=-—B=+—-HB +=—A=+—H
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
BtaF FET FEIT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - HENREE 15 1,416,328 1,483,219
Right-of-use assets EREEE 16 726,587 -
Land use rights T b fsh A 17 = 732,937
Investment properties B EEME 18 17,080 17,348
Intangible assets mELEE 19 3,619 4,118
Deferred income tax assets BB EE 30 44,973 37,442
Investments in associates A REE R T] 20 192,883 192,697
Financial assets at fair value through NAREBEFEEEEY
profit or 10ss SFAEENEREE 24 43,480 23,967
2,444,950 2,491,728
Current assets REEE
Inventories & 21 89,672 96,095
Trade and other receivables and B 5 KR E M EWFIE
prepayments SEURE/CE 22 725,589 505,793
Cash and cash equivalents B RIS EEEE 25 82,415 110,802
Restricted cash A PR #1FE R 26 124,371 153,588
1,022,047 866,278
Total assets EERE 3,466,997 3,358,006
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to owners of KATEB A LR
the Company
Share capital (nominal value) g (EE) 27 1,120,960 1,120,960
Reserves e 28 710,485 649,946
1,831,445 1,770,906
Non-controlling interests FERES 29 587,598 607,623
Total equity SRR 2,419,043 2,378,529
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)

BRI &R ()

n'.R
As at 31 December 2019 R=—Z—hE+-A=+—H
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
R-ZE—-hE RKRZZT—)\F
+=—H=+—8 +-—A=+—H
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
it FET FEIT
LIABILITIES =L
Non-current liabilities FRBERS
Deferred income LUW\ 1,708 1,427
Deferred income tax liabilities FEIEFTSRaE 30 12,916 8,010
Lease liabilities HEAE 16 3,007 -
Obligations under finance lease REMRE - 2,880
Borrowings R 32 123,077 340,676
140,708 352,993
current liabilities RBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 R E b T RIE 31 458,112 413,813
Contract liabilities XN 55,341 40,545
Current income tax liabilities MEFEHAE 31,176 14,702
Lease liabilities HEaE 16 10,968 -
Obligations under finance lease BERE = 1,524
Borrowings BE 32 351,649 155,900
907,246 626,484
Total liabilities BE8E 1,047,954 979,477
Total equity and liabilities EEREEARE 3,466,997 3,358,006

The above consolidated statement of financial position should be
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 95 to 219 were
approved by the Board of Directors on 22 April 2020 and were

signed on its behalf by:

Wu Po Sum

[HiRCs
Director

EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2019 &2 —E—hE+-_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

DIT Group Limited
EREEREEERAR

NG 2N T
Contributed Non-
Share Share  Exchange surplus Other Accumulated controlling Total
capital ~ premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total  interests equity
Bx  RGEE  ENRE HARBEE  RHBE  EHEE 4% FEREE  EHER
Notes HK$000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i3 TAL TA7 TAT TiAn T TAT TAT TAn T
Balance at 1 January 2018 R=8-NE-f-R
et 1,120,960 859,695 71976 131,166 28631 (375171) 1,843,257 560,864 2,404,121
Profit/(oss) for the year FEER/(BR) - - - - - 27427 27427 (8.087) 19340
Other comprehensive income/(loss): £ 2ERE/ (F8) :
Currency translation differences NEREZER - - (104,238) - - - (104,238) (1178) (105,416)
Total comprehensive loss/income ~ EE2EHE/ REHE
for the year = = (104,233) = = 240 (7681) (9.265) (86,076)
Transactions with owners; AEEARANRS
Disposal of ownership interests in LENBATEAEER
Subsidiaries without loss of control MELERRE - - - - 1180 - 1180 2714 2954
Capital inection by ownership RERERTAES
interests - 3,652 - - 372 - 3200 - 3280
Transactions with NCI: HFERERETNRE
Capital injection by non-controling FERRERTNES
shareholders - - - - - - - 2250 2250
Total transactions with owners REEAZRGLE = 3652 - - 808 - 4460 56,024 60484
Balance at 31 December 2018 RZE-NE
TZAZT-AlES 1,120,960 863,347 (26,262) 131,166 29,439 (347,744) 1,770,906 607,623 2,378,529
Balance at 1 January 2019 R=F-n&-A-A
et 1,120,960 863,347 (26,262 131,166 29439 (347,744) 1,770,906 607,623 2,378,529
Profit for the year EERA - - - - - 110,749 110,749 2,868 113,617
Other comprehensive loss: A2 ERE:
Currency translation differences NEREES - - (50,532) - - - (50,532) (583) (51,115)
Total comprehensive loss/income ~ £E2EHE/ KitE
for the year = = (50,532) = - 110,749 60,217 2,285 62,502
Transactions with owners: RERARGHR S
Disposal of ownership interests in HENBAREREER
subsidiaries without oss of control &KL TIE = - - - - - - 23,318 23,318
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAR - - - - - - - (57,421) (57,421)
Capital inection by ownership RERESTAES
Interests - 3 - - - - 322 - 3
Transactions with NCI: HFERERETNRE
Capital injection by non-controling FERRERENES
shareholders - - - - - - - 11,793 11,793
Total transactions with owners REEAZRALE - 322 - - - - 32 (22,310) (21,988)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-hE
tZA=t-A 1,120,960 863,669 (76,794) 131,166 29,439 (236,995) 1,831,445 587,598 2,419,043

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should
be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

iR A R e B )R FE SEBEFM BT S — GFBARE -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GERERE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 &&= - —"E+-_A=+—HILFE

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
Bz HE
—E-hF —E-N\F
+=A=+—-H +t=ZA=+—H
IEEE EEFE
Notes HK$000 HK$000
Hfa FET FE&T
Operating activities ReETE
Cash generated/(used) in operations g,/ (TR MRS 34 19,170 (55,246)
Income tax paid BRFTEH (11,728) (30,423)
Net cash generated/(used) in operating &2 EBIFTE . (FrA) #Y
activities e F5 7,442 (85,669)
Investing activities RETH
Purchase of properties, plants BEWME  BELEE
and equipments (116,019) (653,884)
Purchase of land use rights BE LM AE (392,062) (154,101)
Purchase of intangible assets BEREEE (1,083) (3,805)
Purchase of financial assets at fair value BEBEMNU AR EET=2HE
through profit or loss BEEFABENEREE (12,399) (846,037)
Payment for establishment of an associate Ak 37 — Rk & A 7] 3K - (35,533)
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries HEKB A RMTERIE 147,450 166,515
Proceeds from disposal of equipments & SRR TS 3R 10,442 4,873
Proceeds from disposal of HEREEEHENTS
investment properties EX QL] 763 722
Interest received EFI & 3,412 2,359
Proceeds from financial assets at fair IAREE=ZBHEE8H
value through profit or loss ABEZHNEREE
FriS k1A - 847,634
Net cash used in investing activities REEBFAMNIREFRE (359,496) (671,257)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
HBeBRER(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 HEZ—ZT—hNF+_A=+—HILFE

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
BZE HE
—E-hF —E-NF
+=A=+-8 +t=ZA=+—H
ILEE IEFE
Notes HK$000 HK$'000
Hfa FET FETL
Financing activities RMEES
Interest paid EfTFLE (9,670) (13,364)
Decrease/(increase) in restricted cash ZERBIR SR, () 16,000 (130,000)
Repayments of bank borrowings BERITEE (108,118) (43,826)
Proceeds from a third party borrowing REE=FEREEIA 334,904 -
Proceeds from partial disposal of equity & P B A B1AY 3615 B A
interests in subsidiaries without loss of ka2 IR FIER ATS
control SKIE = 28,954
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITEERFIERIA 97,122 426,272
Payment of lease liabilities MEBGEMNHKIE (18,292) -
Payment of obligation under finance lease @& & #IE T W AT A - (2,047)
Capital contributions by R ERTE
non-controlling interests 11,793 31,530
Net cash generated from financing BEESEEANRES FE
activities 323,739 297,519
Net decrease in cash ReRkELESEERRD
and cash equivalents K F 5 (28,315) (459,407)
Cash and cash equivalents at FYINRe MEeFEERE
beginning of the year 110,802 582,511
Net exchange losses on cash and RENFSEEBEMER
cash equivalents B8 558 (72) (12,302)
Cash and cash equivalents atend of FRMRERBRELEEER
the year 25 82,415 110,802

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read L4 AR SR EREETM A —HFRIE -
in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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n'.R

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZEZ—Z—

102

CRUE R E

GENERAL INFORMATION

DIT Group Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated as an
exempted company with limited liability in Bermuda on 28
February 1991 under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
and its issued shares are listed on the main board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) starting from 25 July 1991.

The address of the registered office of the Company is
Victoria Place, 5th Floor, 31 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM 10,
Bermuda. The principal place of business of the Company
is Room 7707 and 7708, 77th Floor, International Commerce
Centre, 1 Austin Road West, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the "Group”) are prefabricated construction work, granting
licenses and sales of equipment in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC").

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") and rounded to the nearest
thousand ("HK$'000"), unless otherwise stated.

As at 31 December 2019, the ultimate controlling
shareholder of the Company is Mr. Wu Po Sum.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements have been
consistently applied to the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the
Company have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSS")
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance Cap. 622. The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of certain financial assets and investment
properties which are carried at fair value.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 &2 —E—hE+-_A=+—HILFE

DIT Group Limited
EREEREEERAR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2 EAEHHERBIE@®

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 RPEE(E)
New and amended standards of HKFRSs REBFRWGE B IR EERFET
adopted by the Group R RIEFT R

The Group has applied the following standards and
amendments for the first time for their annual
reporting period commencing 1 January 2019:

° HKFRS 16 Leases

o Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation — Amendments to HKFRS 9

o Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint
Ventures — Amendments to HKAS 28

o Annual Improvements to HKFRS Standards
2015-2017 Cycle

o Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement —
Amendments to HKAS 19

o Interpretation 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments.

The impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 Leases is
described in Note 3 below. The other amendments
listed above did not have any impact on the amounts
recognised in prior periods and are not expected to
significantly affect the current or future periods.

New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations
have been published that are not mandatory for 31
December 2019 reporting periods and have not been
early adopted by the group. These standards are not
expected to have a material impact on the Group in
the current or future reporting periods and on
foreseeable future transactions.

AEBER-F—NE—A— Bk
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o EHAMBHREERE16RMEE

s AFRFBEZENENFE —
BB HEERE IR (£a]
)

o« RBEARRAERANRAE
it — BB REPRAIE 285 (15T
%)

o FBEUBHEEN_F-—HFE
—F L F AN FRIE

o FENERT HEHEEE — B
BRI 1958 (182 K)

s REERBRAFHEENTEE
%

RABEMBRELANF16RHEED
FEN T XM EIMA - A LPIFIRE
e A BEHMERN SRR
EaFE  YABFTSHEHIKR
KEHELEAZE -

15 R ER AN B9 HT 2E R R 22

BE_Z-AF+_A=+—HHR
THIE STH LA LREER
B 3ESR B ERAN - T AR B IR R IR AT
Ry ZFEFEA T EHAKER
B B SRR 3R & HA R K AT R B AR 2R A2
PEERTE -

103



DIT Group Limited

EREENREBARLF

2019 Annual Report
ZE-NEER

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 &&= - —"E+-_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries
2.2.1 Consolidation

104

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power
to direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries
are fully consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

Intra-group transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the
transferred asset. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

(@) Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is
used to account for all business
combinations, regardless of whether
equity instruments or other assets are
acquired. The consideration transferred
for the acquisition of a subsidiary
comprises the:

o fair values of the assets transferred

o liabilities incurred to the former
owners of the acquired business

o equity interests issued by the group
o fair value of any asset or liability
resulting from a contingent

consideration arrangement, and

o fair value of any pre-existing equity
interest in the subsidiary.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HE—Z

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)
2.2.1 Cconsolidation (Continued)

(@

Business combinations (Continued)
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are, with limited
exceptions, measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date. The Group
recognises any non-controlling interest in
the acquired entity on an acquisition-by-
acquisition basis either at fair value or at
the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquired
entity’s net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

The excess of the:
° consideration transferred,

o amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquired entity, and

o acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the
acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If
those amounts are less than the fair value
of the net identifiable assets of the
business acquired, the difference is
recognised directly in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase.

n'.F

B 5 R R RE ()

—NEFETZA=T—RLFE

2 EXEBREE@®

2.2 HEBLXE(E)
221 AR ()

(@)

EBEv ()
RETA G P U # AT 3
RIBENRAENEBER
HRBERRDEOIIMER
SN AR IR B e A
iﬁﬁi AEBERARE
R?“¥E&%¢k%
DEREEERN A E
ﬂﬁ%ﬁ@ﬁﬂF%Wﬁ
BRI -

WRE AR AR E LR X
B

s FEEAE

o BB RV EMSE
2l Fatibfak LN

o [EMEATFRANKEK
BT RN ME B
HH R REE

78 38 P UK B8 BT 3B R B R

BRARBENEZEBEARS

BE - Wk F e BIERA

WkE X7 Al Rl B E R B

WAYE: RELENESRE

EENBSERRZRER

o

105



DIT Group Limited

EREENREBARLF

2019 Annual Report
e

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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n'.R

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZEZ—Z—

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

106

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)
2.2.1 Cconsolidation (Continued)

(b)

(c

Changes in ownership interests in
subsidiaries without loss of control

The Group treats transactions with non-
controlling interests that do not result in a
loss of control as transactions with equity
owners of the Group. A change in
ownership interest results in an
adjustment between the carrying
amounts of the controlling and non-
controlling interests to reflect their
relative interests in the subsidiary. Any
difference between the amount of the
adjustment to non-controlling interests
and any consideration paid or received is
recognised in a separate reserve within
equity attributable to owners of the
Company.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to consolidate or
equity account for an investment because
of a loss of control or significant influence,
any retained interest in the entity is
remeasured to its fair value with the
change in carrying amount recognised in
profit or loss. This fair value becomes the
initial carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained
interest as an associate or financial asset.
In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
This may mean that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss or
transferred to another category of equity
as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSS.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A B A5 R R B R (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 H#&Z T~ NFE+_-_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)
(c) Disposal of subsidiaries (Continued)

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is re-measured to
fair value at the acquisition date; any
gains or losses arising from such re-
measurement are recognised in profit or
loss.

2.2.2 Separate financial statements
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at
cost less impairment. Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving a
dividend from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the
subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared
or if the carrying amount of the investment in
the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets.

2.3 Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has
significant influence but not control or joint control.
This is generally the case where the Group holds
between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for using the
equity method of accounting, after initially being
recognised at cost.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZEZ—Z—

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

108

2.3

24

Associates (Continued)

Under the equity method of accounting, the
investments are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of
the post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee
in profit or loss, and the Group's share of movements
in other comprehensive income of the investee in
other comprehensive income. Dividends received or
receivable from associates are recognised as a
reduction in the carrying amount of the investment.

When the Group’s share of losses in an equity-
accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest
in the entity, including any other unsecured long-term
receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associates and joint ventures are eliminated
to the extent of the Group’s interest in these entities.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred. Accounting policies of equity-
accounted investees have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision maker. The chief operating
decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified as the board
of directors of the Company (the “Board of Directors”)
that makes strategic decisions.

The Group is managed centrally and the Directors are
of the view that the whole Group is one single
reporting segment and hence no segment
information is presented.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 &2 —E—hE+-_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency
ltems included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured using
the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(“the functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (HK$), which is the Company’s
functional and the Group's presentation
currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are generally recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income. They are
deferred in equity if they relate to qualifying
cash flow hedge and qualifying net investment
hedge or are attributable to part of the net
investment in a foreign operation.

Foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income
on a net basis within “Other (losses)/gains —

"

net”.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value
was determined. Translation differences on assets
and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as
part of the fair value gain or loss. For example,
translation differences on non-monetary assets
and liabilities such as equities held at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised in profit or
loss as part of the fair value gain or loss and
translation differences on non-monetary assets
such as equities classified as at fair value through
other comprehensive income are recognised in
other comprehensive income.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

110

2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the
group entities (none of which has the currency
of a hyper inflationary economy) that have a
functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(@ assets and liabilities for each balance
sheet presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;

(b) income and expenses for each
consolidated statement of profit or 10ss
and other comprehensive income are
translated at average exchange rates
(unless this is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on the
dates of the transactions); and

(c) all resulting currency translation
differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and
translated at the closing rate. Currency
translation differences arising are recognised in
other comprehensive income.
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DIT Group Limited
EREEREEERAR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2 EAEHHERBIE@®

2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued) 2.5 HNEIE(E)
(d) Disposal of foreign operations and partial (d) HEBIEERBHHE

disposals

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of
control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, a disposal involving loss of joint
control over a joint venture that includes a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of
significant influence over an associate that
includes a foreign operation), all of the currency
translation differences accumulated in equity in
respect of that operation attributable to the
owners of the Company are reclassified to
profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not
result in the Group losing control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, the
proportionate share of accumulated currency
translation differences is re-attributed to non-
controlling interests and is not recognised in
profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (that
is, reductions in the Group’s ownership interest
in associates or joint ventures that do not result
in the Group losing significant influence or joint
control), the proportionate share of the
accumulated exchange difference is reclassified
to profit or loss.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.6

112

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance costs are charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate their costs or revalued amounts,
net of their residual values, over their estimated
useful lives or, in the case of leasehold improvements
and certain leased plant and equipment, the shorter
lease term as follows:

— Buildings 30 years
— Computer equipments 3-6 years
— Motor vehicles 5 years

— Furniture and fixtures 5-7 years
— Equipments 10 years
— Leasehold improvements 3-5years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.

2.6
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.6

2.7

2.8

29

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with the carrying amount and
are recognised within “Other gains — net” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

Construction in progress represents property, plant
and equipment under construction or pending
installation and is stated at cost less provision for
impairment loss, if any. Cost includes the costs of
construction and acquisition. When the assets
concerned are available for use, the costs are
transferred to property, plant and equipment and
depreciated in accordance with the policy as stated
above.

Investment properties

Investment properties, principally freehold office
buildings, are held for long-term rental yields and are
not occupied by the Group. Investment property is
initially measured at cost, including related
transaction costs and where applicable borrowing
costs. Subsequently, they are carried at fair value.
Changes in fair values are presented in profit or loss
as part of a valuation gain or loss in “Other (losses)/
gains — net"”.

Intangible assets

Computer software licences

Acquired computer software licences are capitalised
on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and
bring to use the specific software. These costs are
amortised over their estimated useful lives of three to
five years.

Land use rights
From 1 January 2019, land use rights is presented as
right-of-use assets.

All land in PRC is state-owned or collectively-owned
and no individual ownership rights exist. Land use
rights represent upfront payments made for the
leasehold land in the PRC. It is stated at cost less
accumulative amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Amortisation is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocated the cost of
land use rights over the remaining period of the lease.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

114

2.10 Impairment of non-financial assets

2.11

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or
intangible assets not ready to use are not subject to
amortisation but are tested annually for impairment
or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that they might be impaired.
Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-
financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.

Financial assets

2.11.1Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

° those to be measured subsequently at
fair value (either through OCI, or through
profit or l0ss), and

° those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Group's
business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual terms of the cash
flows.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2 EXEBREE@®

2.11 Financial assets (Continued)
2.11.1Classification (Continued)

211 SRMEE (&)
2111 55 (&)

For assets measured at fair value, gains and
losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or
OCI. For investments in equity instruments that
are not held for trading, this will depend on
whether the Group has made an irrevocable
election at the time of initial recognition to
account for the equity investment at fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when
and only when its business model for managing
those assets changes.

2.11.2 Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date, the date
on which the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from the
financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership.

2.11.3 Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss (FVPL), transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset. Transaction costs of financial
assets carried at FVPL are expensed in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZEZ—Z—

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Financial assets (Continued)
2.11.4 Debt instruments
Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

116

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are
measured at amortised cost. Interest
income from these financial assets is
included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method. Any gain
or loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in profit or loss and
presented in other gains, together with
foreign exchange gains and losses.
Impairment losses are presented as
separate line item in the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Financial assets (Continued)
2.11.4 Debt instruments (Continued)

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows and for selling
the financial assets, where the assets’
cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest, are measured at
FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount
are taken through OCI, except for the
recognition of impairment gains or losses,
interest revenue and foreign exchange
gains and losses which are recognised in
profit or loss. When the financial asset is
derecognised, the cumulative gain or 10ss
previously recognised in OCI is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss and
recognised in other (losses)/gains — net.
Interest income from these financial
assets is included in finance income using
the effective interest rate method. Foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented
in other gains and impairment expenses
are presented as separate line item in the
statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria
for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured
at FVPL. A gain or 10oss on a debt
investment that is subsequently
measured at FVPL is recognised in profit
or loss and presented net within other
gains in the period in which it arises.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZEZ—Z—

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Financial assets (Continued)
2.11.5 Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in OClI,
there is no subsequent reclassification of fair
value gains and losses to profit or loss following
the derecognition of the investment. Dividends
from such investments continue to be
recognised in profit or loss as other income
when the Group's right to receive payments is
established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at
FVPL are recognised in other gains in the
statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as applicable.
Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment
losses) on equity investments measured at
FVOCI are not reported separately from other
changes in fair value.

2.11.6 Impairment

118

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its
debt instruments carried at amortised cost and
FVOCI. The impairment methodology applied
depends on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the
simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9,
which requires expected lifetime losses to be
recognised from initial recognition of the
receivables.

For other receivables (excluding value-added
tax recoverable), the Group applies the general
model for expected credit losses prescribed by
HKFRS 9.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.12

2.13

2.14

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the
weighted average method. The cost of finished goods
and work in progress comprises raw materials, direct
labour, other direct costs and related production
overheads (based on normal operating capacity). Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable
selling expenses. Costs of inventories include the
transfer from equity of any gains/losses on qualifying
cash flow hedges for purchases of raw materials.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers
for goods sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business and related receivable. If
collection of trade and other receivables is expected
in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle
of the business if longer), they are classified as
current assets. If not, they are presented as non-
current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
the amount of consideration that is unconditional
unless they contain significant financing components,
when they are recognised at fair value. The Group
holds the trade and other receivables with the
objective to collect the contractual cash flows and
therefore measures them subsequently at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less loss
allowance.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held
at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months
or less that are readily convertible to known amounts
of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value. In the consolidated and
Company's statements of financial position, bank
overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current
liabilities.
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2.15

2.16

2.17

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Mandatorily
redeemable preference shares are classified as
liabilities.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of
new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are obligations to pay for
goods or services that have been acquired in the
ordinary course of business from suppliers. Trade and
other payables are classified as current liabilities if
payment is due within one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If
not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the
extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility
will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred
until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a
pre-payment for liquidity services and amortised over
the period of the facility to which it relates.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.17

2.18

Borrowings (Continued)

Preference shares, if mandatorily redeemable at a
specific date or redeemable at the option of the
holder, are classified as liabilities. The dividends on
these preference shares are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as finance costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the end of the reporting period.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs include interest expense, finance
charges in respect of lease liabilities and exchange
differences arising from foreign currency borrowings
to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment
to interest costs. The exchange gains and losses that
are an adjustment to interest costs include the
interest rate differential between borrowing costs
that would be incurred if the entity had borrowed
funds in its functional currency, and the borrowing
costs actually incurred on foreign currency
borrowings. Such amounts are estimated based on
interest rates on similar borrowings in the entity’s
functional currency.

When the construction of the qualifying assets takes
more than one accounting period, the amount of
foreign exchange differences eligible for capitalisation
is determined for each annual period and are limited
to the difference between the hypothetical interest
amount for the functional currency borrowings and
the actual interest incurred for foreign currency
borrowings. Foreign exchange differences that did
not meet the criteria for capitalisation in previous
years should not be capitalised in subsequent years.
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2.18

2.19

Borrowing costs (Continued)

When the construction of the qualifying assets takes
more than one accounting period, the amount of
foreign exchange differences eligible for capitalisation
is determined on a cumulative basis based on the
cumulative amounts of interest expenses that would
have been incurred had the entity borrowed in its
functional currency. The total amount of foreign
exchange differences capitalised cannot exceed the
amount of total net foreign exchange differences
incurred on a cumulative basis at the end of the
reporting period.

Income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the
tax payable on the current period’s taxable income
based on the applicable income tax rate for each
jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax
assets and liabilities attributable to temporary
differences and to unused tax losses.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period in the countries
where the Company and its subsidiaries and
associates operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis
of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2 EXEBREE@®

2.19 Income tax (Continued) 2.19 Fii8%i (&)

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantially enacted by
the end of the reporting period and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

The deferred tax liability in relation to investment
property that is measured at fair value is determined
assuming the property will be recovered entirely
through sale.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be available
to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised
for temporary differences between the carrying
amount and tax bases of investments in foreign
operations where the Company is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax
balances relate to the same taxation authority.
Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where
the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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2 EAEHEERBIE@®

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.19 Income tax (Continued)

2.19 FriS®L(4&)

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

(i)

Tax incentives

Companies within the Group may be entitled to
claim special tax deductions in relation to
qualifying expenditure (e.g. the Research and
Development Tax Incentive regime in Oneland).
The Group accounts for such tax incentives as
tax credits, which means that the tax incentives
reduce income tax payable and current tax
expense. A deferred tax asset is recognised for
unclaimed tax credits that are carried forward
as deferred tax assets.

2.20 Employee benefits

(a)

Pension obligations

The Group has participated in the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance for its Hong
Kong staff. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The MPF
Scheme is generally funded by payments from
employees and by the Group. The Group’s
contributions to the MPF Scheme are expensed
as incurred in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme and are not reduced by
contributions forfeited by those employees who
leave the MPF Scheme prior to vesting fully in
the contributions.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Employee benefits (Continued)

2.21

(a)

(b)

Pension obligations (Continued)

In accordance with the PRC regulations, the
Group is required to pay social security
contributions for its PRC staff based on certain
percentage of their salaries to the social
security plan organised by related governmental
bodies (“PRC plan”).

The Group has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid to the
MPF Scheme and PRC plan. The Group’s
contributions to the MPF Scheme and PRC plan
are recognised as employee benefit expense in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income when they are
due.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and
only when, the Group demonstrably commits
itself to terminate employment or to provide
benefits as a result of voluntary redundancy by
having a detailed formal plan which is without
realistic possibility of withdrawal.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events; it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation; and
the amount has been reliably estimated.
Restructuring provisions comprise lease termination
penalties and employee termination payments.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating
losses.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Provisions and contingent liabilities (Continued)

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of
obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even
if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one
item included in the same class of obligations may be
small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the
provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Group. It can also be a
present obligation arising from past events that is not
recognised because it is not probable that outflow of
economic resources will be required or the amount
of obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed
in the notes to the consolidated financial statements.
When a change in the probability of an outflow occurs
so that outflow is probable, it will then be recognised
as a provision.

2.22 Revenue recognition

(i)  Sales of prefabricated construction units
Sales of prefabricated construction units are
recognised when control of the products has
transferred, being when the products are
delivered to the customers, and there is no
unfulfilled obligation that could affect the
customer’s acceptance of the products.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.22 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Sales of prefabricated construction units
(Continued)

When either party to a contract has performed,
the Group presents the contract in the
consolidated balance sheet as a contract asset
or a contract liability, depending on the
relationship between the Group’s performance
and the customer’s payment.

Revenue from granting licenses

Revenue from granting licenses is recognised in
conjunction with related services at one point in
time when the required training of the licensing
is provided to the customers and then the
customer can direct the use of, and obtain
substantially all of the remaining benefits from
alicense.

Sales of prefabricated construction
equipments

Sales of prefabricated construction equipments
are recognised when the control of the
prefabricated construction equipments has
transferred, being when the prefabricated
construction equipments are delivered to the
customer and accepted by the customer in
accordance with contract.

Financing components

The Group does not expect to have any
contracts where the period between the
transfer of the promised goods or services to
the customer and payment by the customer
exceeds one year. As a consequence, the
Group does not adjust any of the transaction
prices for the time value of money.

Revenue from consulting service income
Revenue from consulting service is recognised
over the service period when the service are
render to the customers as the customers can
benefit simultaneously as the Group
performing.

n'.F
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HE—Z

B 5 R R RE ()

—NEFETZA=T—RLFE

2 HFAETHRBSE @

2.22 WATER (&)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

ARELABEAMFHE (H)

EAANEMN—TEEN A%
ERGREERBRBANZS
RENBERENERE BIEX
SENEABREREFNRZE
B BRI E °

KERTEFRMEFELRA
BRNAE PR EEN M

Bl 2R EFAIEEMER
W RSB BAIED G
Rgp a2 B R RGAS - RIZRE R
T ERIEAMTE AR A AR
AR — RIHERR -

HEARELABERE

BRI AL BRI A
EERRSERAHEEERERN

RERE - B RER
HERNTEPEEFPIREESH
B LR 2 PR o

AEZS
REEN TR B S O ARG
Emad R T EPER PR
HEBA—FRrEEMNE480 - B
Ut - AR B E S S EE
BEMRZSHEE o

K E BRI KA

HREFP A AEAEEETHR
B las - HUR B & ARTS B A
R PR 4 AR 50 R 7% B A e

27
e

127



DIT Group Limited
EREEREERFRLF

2019 Annual Report
ZE-NEER

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B S SRR B R (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 &&= - —"E+-_A=+—HILFE

128

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.23

2.24

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.

Leases

As explained in Note 2.1 above, the Group has
changed its accounting policy for leases where the
Group is the lessee. The new policy is described
below and the impact of the change in Note 3.

Until 31 December 2018, leases of property, plant and
equipment where the Group, as lessee, had
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
were classified as finance leases. Finance leases
were capitalised at the lease’s inception at the fair
value of the leased property or, if lower, the present
value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding rental obligations, net of finance
charges, were included in other short-term and long-
term payables. Each lease payment was allocated
between the liability and finance cost. The finance
cost was charged to profit or loss over the lease
period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability for
each period. The property, plant and equipment
acquired under finance leases was depreciated over
the asset’s useful life or over the shorter of the
asset’s useful life and the lease term if there is no
reasonable certainty that the Group will obtain
ownership at the end of the lease term.

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership were not transferred to the
Group as lessee were classified as operating leases.
Payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessor) were charged to
profit or l0ss on a straight-line basis over the period of
the lease.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
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2.24 Leases (Continued) 2.24 HE (F)

From 1 January 2019, leases are recognised as a
right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the
date at which the leased asset is available for use by
the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease
components. The Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to the lease and non-lease components
based on their relative stand-alone prices. However,
for leases of property, plant and equipment for which
the Group is a lessee, it has elected not to separate
lease and non-lease components and instead accounts
for these as a single lease component.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following lease
payments:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable

o variable lease payment that are based on an
index or a rate, initially measured using the
index or rate as at the commencement date

o payments of penalties for terminating the lease,
if the lease term reflects the Group exercising
that option.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in
the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is
used, being the rate that the individual lessee would
have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain
an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a
similar economic environment with similar terms,
security and conditions.
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2.24 Leases (Continued)
To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the
Group:

where possible, uses recent third-party
financing received by the individual lessee as a
starting point, adjusted to reflect changes in
financing conditions since third party financing
was received.

uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-
free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for
leases held by the Group, which does not have
recent third party financing, and

makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g.
term, country, currency and security.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or
loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising
the following:

the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability

any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received

any initial direct costs, and

restoration costs.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.24

2.25

Leases (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over
the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease
term on a straight-line basis. If the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the
right-of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying
asset’s useful life. While the Group revalues its land
and buildings that are presented within property,
plant and equipment, it has chosen not to do so for
the right-of-use buildings held by the Group.

Payments associated with short-term leases of
equipment and vehicles and all leases of low-value
assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an
expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases
with a lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value
assets comprise IT equipment and small items of
office furniture.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group
is a lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line
basis over the lease term. Initial direct costs incurred
in obtaining an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the underlying asset and
recognised as expense over the lease term on the
same basis as lease income. The respective leased
assets are included in the balance sheet based on
their nature. The Group did not need to make any
adjustments to the accounting for assets held as
lessor as a result of adopting the new leasing
standard.

The Group did not need to make any adjustments to
the accounting for assets held as lessor under
operating leases as a result of the adoption of HKFRS
16.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the
Company's financial statements in the period in
which the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders or directors, where appropriate.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
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2.26 Earnings per share
(a) Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by
dividing:

the profit attributable to owners of the
Company, excluding any costs of servicing
equity other than ordinary shares

by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the
financial year, adjusted for bonus
elements in ordinary shares issued during
the year and excluding treasury shares.

(b) Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures
used in the determination of basic earnings per
share to take into account:

the after-income tax effect of interest and
other financing costs associated with
dilutive potential ordinary shares, and

the weighted average number of
additional ordinary shares that would
have been outstanding assuming the
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares.

2.27 Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) A person or a close member of that
person’s family is related to the Group, if
that person:

(i)

has control or joint control over the
Group;

has significant influence over the Group;
or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group's
parent.

2 HFAETHRBSE @

2.26 SREF
(a) EREZXEF

BRERBHTIBRAATIEAE

SHEE

o  AREHEAARERN (G
bR BB AN 2 (E o #E 21

PRA)

o BBRAMBEERFKE
TEBBRMNEFSE X
READETEER(TE
HREF R AR ) H A 8

Ko

(b) EREBERF

BREERNARANEEEK

EAXBNOEF - Uathk

e FEMKRABHRFER
HEEHEEBARABN

HiBERA - &

© BRERFEECESE
VISR SSE VS
RO B B8 0 -

2.27 BAERH
HEBATIEMR
EEEEE

(@ 1A TAL  BIZALHZA
THERTEXERLEEERH

-

() EHRARENARER

(i) HAKBBEEATE:

(i) "AAEERAKEEGRA

WEZEEEKE -

AR A TR A B A



2019 Annual Report
—E—NEER

DIT Group Limited
EREEREEERAR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HE—Z

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.27 Related parties (Continued)
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of
the following conditions applies:

2.28

(i)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

(Vi)

(vii)

the entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

the entity and the Group are joint ventures
of the same third party.

one entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity.

the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the
Group.

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a).

a person identified in (a) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close family members of an individual are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with

the entity.

A transaction is considered to be a related party
transaction when there is a transfer of resources or
obligations between related parties.

Subsequent events

Events after the reporting period that provide
additional information about the Group’s position at
the end of the reporting period (“adjusting events”)
are reflected in the consolidated financial statements.
Events after the reporting period that are not adjusting
events are disclosed in the notes when material.
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CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This note explains the impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16
Leases on the Group's financial statements.

As indicated in Note 2.1 above, the Group has adopted
HKFRS 16 Leases from 1 January 2019, but has not restated
comparatives for the 2018 reporting period, as permitted
under the specific transition provisions in the standard. The
reclassifications and the adjustments arising from the new
leasing rules are therefore recognised in the opening
balance sheet on 1 January 2019.

On adoption of HKFRS 16 Leases, the Group recognised
lease liabilities in relation to leases which had previously
been classified as ‘operating leases’ under the principles of
HKAS 17 Leases. These liabilities were measured at the
present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted
using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate as of 1
January 2019. The weighted average lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate applied to the lease liabilities on 1 January
2019 was 4.68%.

For leases, previously classified as finance leases, the
Group recognised the carrying amount of the lease asset
and lease liability immediately before transition as the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset and the lease
liability at the date of initial application. The measurement
principles of HKFRS 16 are only applied after that date.

(a) Practical expedients applied
In applying HKFRS 16 Leases for the first time, the
Group has used the following practical expedients
permitted by the standard:

o relying on previous assessments on whether
leases are onerous as an alternative to
performing an impairment review — there were
Nno onerous contracts as at 1 January 2019

o accounting for operating leases with a
remaining lease term of less than 12 months as
at 1 January 2019 as short-term leases

o using hindsight in determining the lease term
where the contract contains options to extend
or terminate the lease.
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3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

()

Practical expedients applied (Continued)

The Group has also elected not to reassess whether a
contract is, or contains a lease at the date of initial
application. Instead, for contracts entered into before
the transition date the Group relied on its assessment

3
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made applying HKAS 17 and Interpretation 4 MRRBEAG AT HLHEL B
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a BB TS -
Lease.
Measurement of lease liabilities (b) FEHEERE
HK$'000
FHET
Operating lease commitments RZB-NF+-A=+—HEENK
disclosed as at 31 December 2018 EREAR 38,243
Discounted using the lessee's incremental  FFREABAEE XEHABPNEESEE
borrowing rate of at the date of initial F = HTIR
application 32,414
Add: finance lease liabilities recognisedas  fn: RZZE—N\FE+-_A=+—H#E
at 31 December 2018 ROBEHERE 4,404
(Less): Short-term leases and low-value CR) REHREMEEERERS
leases expenses (265)
Lease liabilities recognised as at R-IEB-hE-—A—HRIANEEERE
1 January 2019 36,553
Of which are: B A :
Current lease liabilities mEHERE 16,385
Non-current lease liabilities mEEams 20,168
36,553

Measurement of right-of-use assets

(c FEERAEEE

Right-of-use assets were measured at the amount
equal to the lease liabilities, adjusted by the amount
of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to
that lease recognised in the balance sheet as at 31
December 2018.
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B 5 SRR B R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZEZ—Z—

(Continued)

(d)

(e)

Adjustments recognised in the balance sheet

on 1 January 2019

The following tables show the adjustments
recognised for each individual item. Line items that
were not affected by the changes have not been
included. As a result, the sub-total and totals

NEFE+A=T—HILEFE
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disclosed cannot be recalculated from the numbers A E T A it
provided. The adjustments are explained in more
detail by standard below.
31 December 2018
As originally 1 January 2019
presented HKFRS 16 Restated
—T-N\F “E-hE
+-A=+-H BRI HRE —A-H
Financial position (extract) BRI & (%) REZT HERIZE 1657 E3l
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BEKERE 1,483,219 (4,904) 1,478,315
Right-of-use assets PRERE - 773,659 773,659
Land use rights +ife AE 732,937 (732,937) =
Total non-current assets FRBEEARE 2,491,728 35818 2,527,546
Current assets RBEE
Trade and other receivables and B 5 R E AR GRIE R
prepayments BIIE 505,793 (3,669) 502,124
Total current assets RBEELE 866,278 (3,669) 862,609
Total assets EEHE 3,358,006 32,149 3,390,155
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Obligations under finance lease MEMRE 2,880 (2,880) -
Lease liabilities HEaRE - 20,168 20,168
Total non-current liabilities FRBEEARE 352,993 17,288 370,281
Current liabilities TEAE
Obligations under finance lease BERE 1,524 (1,524) -
Lease liabilities AEaE - 16,385 16,385
Total current liabilities TBAELEE 626,484 14,861 641,345
Total liabilities REAE 979477 32,149 1,011,626
Total equity EREH 2,378,529 - 2,378,529

Lessor accounting

The Group did not need to make any adjustments to
the accounting for assets held as lessor under
operating leases as a result of the adoption of HKFRS

16 Leases.
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

4.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including foreign exchange
risk, cash flow and fair value interest rate risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk
management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance.

4.1.1 Market risk
(a) Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk that the
value of financial instruments will
fluctuate due to changes in foreign
exchange rates. The majority of the
Group's transactions and balances are
denominated in HKD and RMB, which are
the functional currencies of the Company
and its non-PRC mainland subsidiaries,
and its PRC mainland companies,
respectively.

The Company and its non-PRC mainland
subsidiaries’ assets and liabilities are
mainly denominated in HKD, except for
certain bank balances which are
denominated in RMB and United State
dollars (“USD"). As HKD are pegged to
USD, it is assumed that there would be no
material currency risk exposure between
these two currencies.

The PRC mainland companies’ assets and
liabilities are mainly denominated in RMB,
except for certain bank balances which
are denominated in HKD. Accordingly,
cash denominated in HKD is subject to
foreign exchange risk.
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

138

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
4.1.1 Market risk (Continued)

(@) Foreign exchange risk (Continued)
Fluctuations in the exchange rates of HKD
against RMB will affect the Group’s result
of operations. The Group does not have
any formal hedging policies. However,
management closely monitors the foreign
exchange exposure and will take actions

when necessary.

As at 31 December 2019, if RMB had
strengthened/weakened by 5%, against
HKD with all other variables held constant,
post-tax profit for the year would have
been HK$5,000 (2018: HK$284,000) higher/
lower, mainly as a result of net foreign
exchange losses/gains on translation of
HKD denominated bank deposits. All
borrowings are denominated in RMB.

(b) Cash flow and fair value interest rate

risk

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk
relates primarily to the Group's variable
interest generating bank balances and
bank borrowings with variable interest
rates in 2019 while the short term
borrowings with fixed rate exposed the
Group to fair value interest rate risk in

2019.

Except for cash deposits in the bank, the
Group has no other significant interest

bearing assets.
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
4.1.1 Market risk (Continued)

(b)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate
risk (Continued)

Management does not anticipate
significant impact to interest-bearing
assets and bank borrowings resulted from
the changes in interest rates, because the
interest rates of bank deposits and
borrowings are not expected to change
significantly.

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, if
interest rates on interest-generating bank
deposits and borrowings with floating
rates had been 50 basis points higher/
lower with all other variables held
constant, the post-tax loss of the Group
for the years ended 31 December 2019
and 2018 would have changed as follows:
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
4.1.2 Credit risk

140

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group's
maximum exposure to credit risk is trade and
other receivables and bank balances.

Trade receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for all trade receivables. As at 31 December
2019 and 2018, the loss allowance provision
was determined as follows.
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Less than 6 months  More than
6 months -1 year 1 year
Current past due past due past due Total
AHLR  BESEA BHZR
B &R ~EA Z-F —F Mast
As at 31 December RZ-ZE-h#
2019 +=A=+-H
Expected loss rate AHEEE 0.2% 2.2% 4.2% 7.3% -
Gross carryingamount  BRE41E 406,334 60,388 16,842 31,984 516,098
Loss allowance EREE 794 1,317 699 2,324 5,134
As at 31 December R=Z-N\F
2018 T2HETr=F
Expected loss rate BHBEX 0.1% 2.5% 3.1% 6.9% =
Gross carrying amount  BREI42(E 213,274 48,294 30,684 2,688 294,940
Loss allowance EREEE 263 1,218 944 184 2,614
For credit risk arised from trade receivable ,ﬁijﬁfg’j%ﬁgqy 1@%@%&55@ =g
balances, each local entity is responsible for BBTE  RETFEERZIRR
managing and analysing the credit risk for each Hﬁ%,}‘x&ﬂ%{# Al ST EES

of their new clients before standard payment
and delivery terms and conditions are offered.

BEEERRATERHELH
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 H#&Z T~ NFE+_-_A=+—HILFE

4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
4.1.2 Credit risk (Continued)

4 HEEKREENRESHMIAE @)

41 HBERAKREZ(E)
4.1.2 %ﬁ/ﬁt/&%(ﬁé‘)

The credit risk on bank deposits are limited
because the counterparties are banks with high
credit rating assigned by international credit-
rating agencies and are the PRC large state-
controlled banks. As such, no significant credit
risk from bank deposits is anticipated.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is
represented by the carrying amount of each
financial asset in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

Cash transactions are limited to high-credit-
quality financial institutions. The table below
shows the bank deposit balances as at 31
December 2019 and 2018:

MR SGEFHAERBEEEF
W%% ATREETRHRITR
FREARBEARIT  BIRITER
MIEERRER - Bt - FEEIER
NTEZBETrEELEEAEZER
B o

ReEERRAEEMBIRRR
AEREMEENKRMEE °

ReX5ERNEEERREN
TRIEE - TREIIR TN
FR-_F-N\F+-_A=1+—H
EVERTTIF SRABER -

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-NF

HK$’000 HK$'000

Counter party REGEF FETT FET
Deposits with the state-owned banks BIRITOFER

of the PRC 11,965 54,491
Deposits with other listed banks R E A EiERTTHY

of the PRC Fk 68,003 54,854

Deposits with other banks REMIRITHER 2,447 1,457

82,415 110,802

Management does not expect any losses from
non-performance of these counterparties.

EEERBHITERZERZIEF
TEAMBEUEMIEL -
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
4.1.2 Credit risk (Continued)

Other Receivables

Other receivables mainly comprise receivables
amount due from related parties, land auction
deposits and receivables relating to disposal of
subsidiaries. The Group closely monitors these
other receivables to ensure actions are taken to
recover these balances in the case of any risk
of default.

As at 31 December 2019, since credit risk has
not significantly increased after initial
recognition, the loss allowance for other
receivables recognised during the period was
therefore limited to 12 months expected losses.
Applying the expected credit risk model
resulted in a provision for impairment
amounting to HK$780,000 as at 31 December
2019 (31 December 2018: HK$580,000).

4.1.3 Liquidity risk

142

Cash flow forecast is prepared by the finance
department of the Company. Group finance
monitors rolling forecast of the Group's liquidity
requirements to ensure it has sufficient cash to
meet operational needs.

Surplus cash held by the Group over and above
balance required for working capital are
deposited with bank with good credit rating. As
at 31 December 2019, the Group held cash and
cash equivalent of approximately HK$82.4
million (31 December 2018: HK$110.8 million).

4 BIERBEEREMIAE@

4.1 HMEERKBEZ(E)

4.1.215E R (&)
H K E
HippE a2 e iEE IR
FRIE - tiERRESREH
HEWE R R A ERGRIE - A&
B ey Bz S HAamI
TH - DARERE IR ERE LR
R ERERFE HEUR 12 It S8R N -

R_F-NAFE+_A=1+—8"
BRI HERREERRI 8K
fEIEH0 - Eitt - BN R A
FE W R IR B R B AR R B 3 12 (&
RAEHEE R-_Z—NFt+=
A=t—R ERBHEERR
15 B 25 245 4 R (8132 780,000 8
T ZE-N\F+_A=t—8:
580,000/ 7T) °

413 B EL R
REMETEATIHAR BB EL
R - EESBEHAEEN
mBE SR IEITRETER - LA
BREEEAWVA BN EERN

%F'%o

REEMIFERREEESMTE
EHRNBRASTFHRAEBRI
EEFENIET - RZT—NF
+ZA=+—H8 AEEEFR
S RBEFEEELNRIBES
T (ZE—N\F+=ZRA=+—
H:1108E&%7T)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 H#&Z T~ NFE+_-_A=+—HILFE

4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 4 HEEREENRSFBMIAE @)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 41 HBERAKREZ(E)
4.1.3 Liquidity risk (Continued) 4.1.3 B ELER (&)
The table below analyses the Group’s financial TEROIMAEBN AR - jz
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based DRIBER-_ZE—NERZ
on the remaining period as at 31 December —N\E+-_A=+—BELHE J
2019 and 2018 to the contractual maturity date. HBE IR THRZEEBE R E
The amounts disclosed in the table are the T0H - RABBENESERELD
contractual undiscounted cash flows. KREGIRIBERE o
Total
Less than Between Between  contractual
1year 1and2years 2and5years  cash flows
EHNRE
PR—F —FERE MEZRE RERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT FET FET FET
As at 31 December 2019 R=Z-NIE
T=ZA=t-H
Trade and other payables B 5 REMERNFUE 405,620 52,492 = 458,112
Borrowings BE 370,725 82,215 45,171 498,111
Lease liabilities HEARE 11,413 2,835 250 14,498
787,758 137,542 45,421 970,721
As at 31 December 2018 R=-F—-N\#
T=ZA=t-H
Trade and other payables B 5 REMERNTA 413813 - - 413,813
Borrowings tE 178,565 300,892 80,462 559,919
Obligations under finance RATREAE
lease 1,765 2,952 53 4,770
594,143 303,844 80,515 978,502
4.2 cCapital risk management 42 EXEBEE
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to AEBEERERNF ERERNEEFE
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going KRR - BRRIBH BRI AR
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders SEBREELUREE AR A o
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce
the cost of capital.
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, REFRABEERRE  KEEAH
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid BRETRENKRE SR - BITHR

to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to M EBENBDER ©
reduce debt.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZEZ—Z—

4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 4

NEFE+A=T—HILEFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

4.2 Capital risk management (Continued)

4.2

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the
gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt
divided by total equity. Net debt is calculated as total
borrowings, obligations under finance lease, lease
liabilities and interest payable less restricted cash for

borrowings and cash and cash equivalents.

The gearing ratios of the Group at 31 December 2019

and 2018 were as follows:

HEEREERSHM T A @)

EXREREE (H)
AEENEEABHREREAR - Ei
R B ERRAES AR E -

BENBEE BERE - EEAL
&%Hﬂmﬂ&@ﬂﬁi%gﬁﬁi
MRS EEEEE -

AEER_F-NFR_F-N\F
TZA=+— Elﬂ’ﬂéf%fé% LT

As at As at

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

R=ZZB—-—hE RZZT-N\F

+=ZA=+—-H +=ZHA=+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Total borrowings BEE 474,726 496,576
Total obligations under finance lease REHEETE - 4,404
Total lease liabilities HEBEHRRE 13,975 -
Interest payable R AILE 58 375
Less: restricted cash for borrowings B XRHEeEE (114,000) (130,000)
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B RERIFAESEFEEER (82,415) (110,802)
Net debt HEIR 292,344 260,553
Total equity 4R 2,419,043 2,378,529
Gearing ratio BEREBELX 12.1% 11.0%
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 H#&Z T~ NFE+_-_A=+—HILFE

4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

4 HEEREENRSFBMIAE @)

4.3 Fair value estimation 4.3 RDREEMGE

The table below analyses financial instruments TRABBEEDTERAABEARK

carried at fair value by valuation method. The WERIA - TRERNESHT

different levels have been defined as follows:

—  Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for — HREESBGELERMISHR
identical assets or liabilities (Level 1). BOCREAZ)(F1H) »

— Inputs other than quoted prices included within — BRTB1RAEBENREN  Z
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or BESEBMNAEBRE AHE -
liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or A REE(BIER) SEE (AR
indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (Level 2). BER)BASEE2H) -

— Inputs for the asset or liability that are not — BENBEWIFKEREERTS
based on observable market data (that is, HEN G ARE(BFEr BRE
unobservable inputs) (Level 3). ABE)(B3H) -

The financial assets at fair value through profit or loss REFEWNIKEAALBHETAEBE SR

of the Group are measured at fair value by Level 3. BEFHEIDZALEBEE -

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
18 F2H FE3R it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Financial assets at fair value WAREEFABRZ
through profit or loss SREE - - 43,480 43,480
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE
+=B=+-F . = 43,480 43,480
Financial assets at fair value KAREEFABREZ
through profit or loss SREE - = 23967 23967
At 31 December 2018 R-ZE-N\%
+=ZA=+-H - - 23,967 23,967

There was no transfer between level 1 and 2 during
the year.

FRILESE 1REE 2R 2 REE -
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

146

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

4.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices at the
balance sheet date. A market is regarded as active if
quoted prices are readily and regularly available from
an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing
service, or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring market
transactions on an arm'’s length basis. The instrument
is included in Level 1.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market (for example, over- the-
counter derivatives) is determined by using valuation
technigues. These valuation techniques maximise the
use of observable market data where it is available
and rely as little as possible on entity specific
estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value
an instrument are observable, the instrument is
included in Level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based
on observable market data, the instrument is included
in Level 3. The following table presents the changes
in Level 3 instruments for the years ended 31
December 2019 and 2018.

4 BIERBEEREMIAE@

4.3

DRBEMGE (H)

REBMSEENSRITAQAAEBE
NiREERBERABNMSERETH -
WRZPT - R ~ &4~ TTRAR
BELAXEEERAES L EH
RURE - MEBETISRERER -
B BERRRIZAFEEERRE
FETHNMSERS - ZTAFARE

WINERMIGEEN TR TA (105
IRGITETR) RABENERGE
TEEE - R EhETEEENRAA
ESNABEMSEE  TEERD
REERBBMAT - HEETLAQR
EBEMFEHEANG ABEI B
ZTERIFEASE 28R

fid — Ak A £ B K A BEL IERE
AEEMISEEEL - MZITAETA
FEIZ - TRAIRBE=T—NF
R—_BE-N\FE+-_A=+—RIEE
FEIRTEMEE -
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

4 HEEREENRSFBMIAE @)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

4.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

Quantitative information
about fair value measurements
using significant unobservable

inputs (Level 3)
EREAABEFERANEE

s ABE (F34)
HEEBER
Fair value at Valuation
31/12/2019 technique
R=Z—hF
+=—A=+—H
Description L HAREE fEER*
(HK$'000)
(F7#&T)
Other equity securities: HEMRAES Asset-Based
approach
Equity instruments (Note 24) =T HE (MaF24) 43,480 A EEA

147



DIT Group Limited
EREEREERFRLF

2019 Annual Report
ZE-NEER

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B S SRR B R (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 &&= - —"E+-_A=+—HILFE

148

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements
requires the use of accounting estimates which, by
definition, will seldom equal the actual results.
Management also needs to exercise judgement in applying
the Group's accounting policies.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that may have a
financial impact on the entity and that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

5.1 Critical accounting estimates
(@) Impairment of trade receivables

The Group’s management determines the
provision for impairment of trade receivables
based on the expected credit losses which use
a lifetime expected loss allowance for trade
receivables. This assessment is based on the
credit history of its customers and other
debtors and the current market condition as
well as forward looking estimates at the end of
reporting period, and requires the use of
judgements and estimates. Management
reassesses the provisions at each balance
sheet date.

(b) Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in a
number of jurisdictions. Significant judgement is
required in determining the provision for
income taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit
issues based on estimates of whether additional
taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the current and deferred income tax
assets and liabilities in the period in which such
determination is made.

5 EEEGHEERAE

RER AP RRAERG A BEE
ERRIENERER - ERERERER
SETBORE INHBITEHIE

fhET RAE S TETRE - RETDRBBEL
BLREMCER(BREYREBERNASAEY
ERENMBTE  ABSENRREMHHN
FAH) M {E Y T TR

51 EE®TH&ET

(a) EZEKERE
rEBEEEREEEHEES
BRE S ERFIAFERATFERE
H B B B PR e e B 5 FE WRKIE
B ERE - ZAEERERP
REMEFANEELRERER
TSGR s B R A9 BT E
MR WHE 2 E R AE R
o BEETREEEEAER
HEMT AR -

(b) FREHE
REBABMZ (B RERER B FT
BHR -NRETHEHEBTE
B BEELEEHE - BT
REEHEEZRRRIANR 5 MaT
B AEEREBEREABNEIN
MR G RIER S EZEE

REAME - WX FEEHRED
BREREY) T LRS-
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5 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

5.1 Critical accounting estimates (Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Impairment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets

The Group assesses and analyses whether
property and equipment would impair on each
balance sheet date. When the carrying value of
an asset or a group of assets exceeds the
recoverable amount (the higher of the net
amount of fair value less cost of disposal and
the present value of estimated future cash
flow), it indicates that an impairment has
occurred. The net amount of fair value less cost
of disposal is determined by reference to the
agreed sales price or the observable market
price of similar assets in arm’s length
transactions, less incremental costs that are
directly attributable to the disposal of the asset.
During the estimation of the present value of
future cash flow, the management needs to
estimate the future cash flow of the asset or
group of assets, and select an appropriate
discount rate to determine the present value of
the future cash flow.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are
not traded in an active market (for example,
over-the counter derivatives) is determined by
using valuation technigues. The Group uses its
judgement to select a variety of methods and
make assumptions that are mainly based on
market conditions existing at the end of each
reporting period.

Fair value of investment properties

The fair value of investment properties is
determined by using valuation technigue. Such
assessment is made based on certain
assumptions, which are subject to uncertainties
and might materially differ from the actual
result. In making the judgement, reasonable
consideration has been given to the underlying
assumptions that are mainly based on market
condition existing at the reporting date. These
estimates are regularly compared to actual
market data and actual transactions in the
market.

5 EEEsETRAE @)

51 EEEIHEE (#)

(c)

(d)

(e)

V¥ BERIEREAEEE
HE
AEENEEEABRAHYE
RiBEE A GEREETTAHE
ot - BEEERBEMANKREE
BEeRAKEER(AIRAEE
HERE &R FEMB R
KRERENBEFTHERS
) RPABETRE - ARE
BEREREEMRRNFRE  £2
ERFXHFELUEENHE W
ZEBRLATBRIOTISER -
BERAERRBNZEEREN
ERARETE - et AKRBEER
ERER EEEFRMAZESR
EXEEANTEAARARRER
B WERRENFREREER
KREREMBAE -

ERMTARRAEE

YHNERTLEENESRMTA
(ISR ZITETR) MR R
BEDMNAGETEERE - A%
BREREHEERETR A A
TERENESERSHRORE
MmHERELRR °

REMEHENRAEE
REMEHENREETNA
RETDEETE - ZHEIRER
TR RR I K A g R EFR 4
RBEEREZENE THRREL -
RIEL AR  EAEEETR
RENRHE AHNREBMHENR
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5 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

150

5.1 Critical accounting estimates (Continued)

()

Estimated useful lives and residual values
of property and equipment

The Group’s management determines the
estimated useful lives, residual values and
related depreciation charges for the Group's
property and equipment. This estimate is based
on the historical experience of the actual useful
lives of property and equipment of similar nature
and functions. Management will revise the
depreciation charges where useful lives are
different to that of previously estimated, or it will
write-off or write-down technically obsolete or
non-strategic assets that have been abandoned
or sold. Actual economic lives may differ from
estimated useful lives and actual residual values
may differ from estimated residual values.
Periodic review could result in a change in
depreciable lives and residual values and
therefore depreciation expense in future
periods.

5.2 Critical accounting judgements

(a)

Costs attributable to disposal of a
subsidiary

In October 2019, a subsidiary of the Company,
China Minsheng Drawin Technology Investment
Limited (“DIT Investment”), entered into
investment agreements with the People’s
Government of Chuanhui District of Zhoukou
City. According to the investment agreements,
DIT Investment would acquire a industrial land
parcel in Zhoukou City to build a prefabricated
construction factory as well as a commercial
and residential land parcel in Zhoukou City. In
particular, DIT Investment commits to complete
the construction of the prefabricated
construction factory and commence production
within 8 months after obtaining the industrial
land parcel. Otherwise, DIT Investment should
pay delay penalty amounting to 25%
consideration of the commercial and residential
land parcel in Zhoukou City.

5 EEEHEFRAE@®

EREThE (F)
() YERZEHEGTTEFFHR
FerEE

AEEEEEREMEENIER
PR MR BERERFRY
BIELS:  EEHERAAIEAF
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R - BEREEEFHAERRER
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5 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

5.2 Critical accounting judgements (Continued)

n'.F
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HE—Z

B 5 R R RE ()

—NEFETZA=T—RLFE

5 EEEsETRAE @)

52 EEETTHEE)

(@) Costs attributable to disposal of a (a) HEKBAAELEEE (&)
subsidiary (Continued)
In November 2019, a subsidiary of DIT R-E—hE+—F  SRIEE
Investment, Zhoukou Jianheng Real Estate I B A BB O 21 B 1 A B B
Development Co., Ltd. (“Zhoukou Jianheng"), ERAS(EORE]) AR
succeeded in biding the commercial and 603.6 T B 7T 1K B K 1) 82
residential land parcel in Zhoukou City at a 7 5 R My « =2
consideration of RMB603.6 million. In December NG — A AEEEEED
2019, the Group disposed 99% equity interests 1B 10 99% BHE 8018 1 &= iy
in Zhoukou Jianheng and recorded a gain on ? f I
disposal of HK$120.5 million approximately 7 #)120.5 5 & 8 7T (H15E33) -
(Note 33). To the best knowledge of the Group’s BARBEOEREARARAE -
management and belief, it is remote to cause B R A BT IR PR R E e
any outflow of economic benefits from the ﬁ@“lﬁﬂ’ﬁ@“ BRAEEK
Group, due to unable to fulfil the commitment ERS AR DRI ER D - B
to commence production of the prefabricated t HEzE_Z—hLF+=A
construction factory on time. Thus, no delay =+ HIEFE  REETBR
penalty was accrued as costs attributable to KPP HERDEBERNRBGRAE -
disposal of Zhoukou Jianheng in the REHBIERS) N o
consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2019.
6 REVENUE 6 WA
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
BE-Z—h& BHE-Z—)\F
+=A=+—-H +ZHA=+—H
LFE IEFE
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
Revenue from sales of prefabricated KA HEBR LA GRRA
construction units 579,853 423,640
Revenue from sales of prefabricated KB HEZERENRA
construction equipments 65,032 18,586
Revenue from granting licenses REE T EFEMEAEA A 36,428 84,895
Rental income HBWA 13,271 1,919
Revenue from consulting service income BB AREHUWA 1,317 1,192
695,901 530,232

note (a):

Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities

Mt (@) -

BREHAENREDER
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 &&= - —"E+-_A=+—HILFE

REVENUE (continued) 6
The following table shows how much of the revenue
recognised in the current reporting period relates to
carried-forward contract liabilities and how much relates to
performance obligations that were satisfied in a prior year.

YA &)

TREINAHEHAMERRDNBESF
EEMNNEBEAOREBEMBORTARBOK
NI

31 December 31 December

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
+=HA=+—-H +=ZA=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Revenue recognised that was included in -~ REFIBEEA LB ELEHR
the contract liability balance at the BB R -
beginning of the year:
Sales of prefabricated construction RSB HEEEN
unit contracts 37,770 17,344
Sales of granting licenses contracts BRI REEES L 1,116 5,643
38,886 22,987

note (b):  Unsatisfied long-term sales of prefabricated construction

units contracts

The following table shows unsatisfied performance
obligations resulting from long-term sales of prefabricated
construction units contracts and granting licenses
contracts.

Bt b) - RENRAERZEAMHEARD

TREIRAEMARZEAHFHESH R
THENEOMELNRENBOEL -

31 December 31 December

2019 2018
—E-NF —E—)\F
+=H=+—-H +=ZA=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET

Sales of prefabricated construction TERERBHHEEEY
units contracts 938,668 266,444
Sales of granting licenses contracts B EAERAREEA LN 11,164 10,272
949,832 276,716
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 &2 —E—hE+-_A=+—HILFE

OTHER INCOME 7 EHggA

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
BE-Z-h§F HE-_ZT—N\F
+=-HA=+—8 +=—A=+—H

ILFE IEFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Interest income on bank deposits IRITIF RF B UA 5,100 2,359
Others Hith 792 1,151
5,892 3,510

OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS — NET 8 Hith(&58) ks — B8
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
BE-Z—N&F BZz=_Z—)\F
+=ZA=+—-H +=-—A=+—H
IEFE IEFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Fair value gains on investment properties & MEMEMN A A EE KD 631 367
Net exchange gains P H a5 258 4,537

Net gains on financial assets at fair value AR fEE 2 B E &t A

through profit or loss BaemEEN RS F5E - 2,789
Losses on disposal of right-of-use assets ~ HEFHAEEERNEIE (5,235) =
Losses on disposal of equipments &SR BRI E R (439) (930)
Others Efb (667) 388
(5,452) 7,151
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 &&= - —"E+-_A=+—HILFE

154

EXPENSES BY NATURE

Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and distribution

9 REUEEIZHMX

FX BREREENA « HERDHEAX RITK

expenses and administrative expenses are analysed as X DT
follows:
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
BZE H=E
—E-hF —E-N\F
+=BA=+-8 +=ZA=+—H
LEE IEFE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FE&r
Raw materials and consumables used E ARV R R EFE MR 273,652 186,309
Changes in inventories of finished goods, &M * B EE MR MER S
goods in transit and work in progress GFEEs) 5,694 (9,249)
Employee benefits expenses (note (a)) BIwMAX (Mt @) 125,395 106,263
Labour outsourcing BN 61,321 32,915
Depreciation e 72,454 50,360
Amortisation of right-of-use assets F A ER 23,969 -
Amortisation of intangible assets | B E R 1,518 401
Amortisation of land use rights b b P RE A 8E - 10,107
Short-term leases and low-value leases EHHEREEEEERS
expenses (2018: lease expenses) —E-)\F: HERY) 569 18,202
Transportation Eig & M 29,385 23,626
Legal and professional fees FEMEEER 18,373 13,181
Land use tax and value-added T R IR E R I &
tax surcharges 15,158 13,333
Utilities NEEEBH 9,458 8,136
Entertainment and travelling expenses RERERE R 7.213 10,322
Auditors’ remuneration Z RN &
— audit services — ZERT 1,930 1,890
— non-audit services — FEZERTS 182 =
Bank charges RITIE 1,458 1,009
Office expenses NS 807 832
Provision for inventories impairment FERERE 530 1,324
Registration expenses BB 277 565
Others HAi 41,462 47,036
Total of cost of sales, selling and HEMA « SHERDHHAZIA
distribution expenses and RITHR A 85
administrative expenses 690,805 516,562
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notes:

(a)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HE—Z

A B A5 R R B R (48)

—NEFETZA=T—RLFE

9 EXPENSES BY NATURE (continued) 9 ERMHISTHRAXZ @)
Wit :
Employee benefit expenses (including directors’ and (a) BIEIFZ(EREERESTRASHS)
chief executive’s emoluments)
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
BE-ZT-N& HE-_ZT—N\F
+=A=+—AH +=—A=+—H
ILEE IEFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Wages and salaries ITER¥® 114,920 96,509
Pensions BIKE 4,348 4,234
Other welfare benefit expenses Hib @A Z A 6,127 5,520
Charged to statement of profit or loss FFARIERREMEEmKERA
and other comprehensive income 125,395 106,263

(b)

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 include two (year
ended 31 December 2018: four) directors whose emoluments
are reflected in the analysis shown in Note 11. Details of the
remuneration for the year ended 31 December 2019 of the
remaining three (year ended 31 December 2018: one) highest

(b) HEGEEHMAL
BEZ-NAF+T-A=+—-HLFE F£H
hER=HFMALT  BEME(BE-ZT-N
FHZA=+—RALEFE  WR)EE - RENH
SERMENAZINDTHRR - BE—Z
—NF+ZA=+—BLLFE E#=%(EZE
“E-NF+ZA=+—BIEFE: —R)NK

paid employees are as follows: SBHMESMEFHBFENT
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
BE-_Z-h#&E HE-T—N\F
+=—B=+-—H +=—A=+—8H
WHEE IEFE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FAT

Salaries and other short-term HeRHEMGEESEF

employee benefits 2,642 824
Contribution to pension scheme BRIRESFEIME K 51 18
2,693 842
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 &&= - —"E+-_A=+—HILFE

9 EXPENSES BY NATURE (continued)

notes: (Continued)

(b)  Five highest paid individuals (Continued)

The remuneration to the remaining three (year ended 31
December 2018: one) highest paid employees fell within the

following emolument band:

9 REEIIHMZ @)
HiEE - ()
b) ERBEHMAL ()

Efp=2(BE_F-\F+-_H=+—BLLF
B —R)&RaHMERNTHETIEE

Number of individuals

A
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
BE-ZT-N& HE-_Z—N\F
+=BA=+—H +=-A=+—H
LHEE IHFE
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 % 1,000,000/ 7T 2 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 % 7T & 2,000,000 % 7T 1 0
10 FINANCE COSTS 10 MBERAR
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018

BE-8-hE BE-T NS
+=A=+-8 +=A=t+-H

IEEE LEFE

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FAET

Interest expenses on borrowings EEMERAX 31,048 13,739
Finance charges on lease liabilities HEBENRERSE 1,309 -
Less: Interest capitalised (Note 15) B BAREFE (KT 15) (6,429) (4,584)
25,928 9,155
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 &2 —E—hE+-_A=+—HILFE

11 BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS

(a)

11 ESEMRERS

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a) EERESTHRAENME
The remuneration of every director and the chief BREENESTHAENEESEY
executive is set out below. There is no chief executive WT - FrBZRESTRABHEARRN R
who is not a director of the Company. =
Emoluments paid or payable in respect of a person’s METEARAKENBRRIEENE
services as a director, whether of the Company or its ARGH D ek ENEE
subsidiaries:
For the year ended 31 December 2019: BE_Z—NFt+ZA=1+—HI=F
Z
Retirement
Fees Salary  benefit costs Total
Name "H ik He  BHREARE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FEn FEn FET
Executive Directors BITES
Wu Po Sum (Chairman) HEZ(TE)RZE-A - 578 - 578
(appointed on 17 Sep 2019) ENATHHRZM)
Guo Weigiang (CEO) SDER (FTH ) 231 289 - 520
(appointed on 17 Sep 2019) (RZF—h&F
NA+EBEZE)
Yin Jun BE(R-Z-N4F - 1,732 - 1,732
(resigned on 30 Nov 2019) +—A=+HET)
Yang Hongwei N - 1,364 - 1,364
Non-Executive Directors FHTES
Peng Xiongwen PEX(R_T-NE 45 - - 45
(resigned on 17 Sep 2019) NA+EHEE)
Wu Wallis FERENZZ-NEF 17 = = 17
(appointed on 17 Sep 2019) NA+EBEZE)
Wang Jun FERZZ-NF 17 = = 17
(appointed on 17 Sep 2019) NA+ERZE)
Independent Non-Executive BYF#HTES
Directors
Lee Chi Ming £ 240 - - 240
Jiang Hongging ZhE 240 - - 240
Ma Lishan EAvAll 240 - - 240
1,030 3,963 - 4,993
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2019 Annual Report
e

11 BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS 11 EEEFIRES @)

(Continued)
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a) EERESTHAENME (&)
(Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018: BE-_Z—\FE+-_A=+—HI#F
E
Retirement
Fees Salary  Dbenefit costs Total
Name 4 iikn e BRAEFKAE G
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FHET
Executive Directors HITES
Yin Jun (Chairman) BE(FE) - 1,950 - 1,950
Chen Domingo BHE(WN=—Z-\F~A - 1,400 9 1,409
(retired on 30 June 2018) =+BRA)
Mi Hongjun (retired on 30 June  SEME (R =ZT— N\FXA - 720 - 720
2018) =+HRME)
Yang Hongwei (CEO) BRE (T 2%) - 1,614 = 1,614
(appointed on 1 July 2018) (RZE-N\F+tA—H
Zf)
Non-Executive Directors FHTES
Chen Donghui BREE(R_T—N\F 30 - - 30
(retired on 8 May 2018) AANBRA)
Gan Ping (retired on 8 May 2018) &5 (R =2 —\F 30 - - 30
TANBRA)
Zhao Xiaodong HER(RN-_ZT-N\F 30 - - 30
(retired on 8 May 2018) TANBRME)
Peng Xiongwen EX(NZE-N\5F 30 = - 30
(appointed on 1 July 2018) tHA—RZMH)
Independent Non-Executive By FHiTES
Directors
Chan Chi Hung BEE(M - N\E 140 = = 140
(retired on 30 June 2018) NA=ZTHEM)
Jiang Honggjing e 240 - - 240
Lee Chi Ming LR 240 - - 240
Ma Lishan vl 240 - = 240
980 5,684 9 6,673
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 &2 —E—hE+-_A=+—HILFE

11 BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)

(a)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, the
Group did not provide any termination benefits, or
pay or receive any consideration to or from third
parties for making available directors’ service.

During the year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018,
the Group did not have outstanding loan, quasi loan
or other dealing enter into by the Company or its
subsidiaries, in favour of directors of the Company or
its controlling shareholder, or the body corporates
controlled by such directors or entities connected
with such directors.

The emoluments of the directors are decided by the
Board of Directors, having regard to the Group’s
operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics as well as the
recommendations of the Remuneration Committee of
the Board of Directors.

No significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Group's business to which
the Company was a party and in which a director of
the Company had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year ended 31 December 2019
and 2018.

11 EEREAREX @)

(@

EERBETRABNMS (F)

BE_Z-—NEFRZZE-NFTH
= t+—HLFE AEELELSRE
EEREMmAKEE = HRREE AR
B3 48 ) gk AT s ER A R R AE -

BE_Z-—NGERZZE-—NF+H
=t—HLEFE AEEWERET
AAARRASEWEB ARG ARA
AEFYIEITRRT  BEZEES
THAEABERBREZEEEHHE
MERBASXRANHMKEEENR %
BERHEMR S -

EEMEHEFELERAKENRE
BERE AARBRAELBMISHR
AHEBUANEEEFMEZBENER

R -

RAAREEMERR QBB EAR
ESEEBERERFRINEE=Z
—NEERZZE—N\F+=-A=+—H
LEFEAMABRAGTENEERS &
EREHNPHEBEMNEANEEKHEE

s o
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 &&= - —"E+-_A=+—HILFE

12 INCOME TAX EXPENSES 12 FASHAX

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

BE-—Z—N&F BE-ZT—)\F

+=HA=+—-H +=ZA=+—H

LFE IEEE

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FA&T

Current income tax REFTISH

— PRC corporate income tax — B ERREH 29,218 24,715
— Hong Kong profits tax —BBMEH = -
29,218 24,715
Deferred income tax (Note 30) EIEFTIS L (BY7230) (3,900) (17,812)
Total income tax expenses for the year FEMSHR 2% 25,318 6,903
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HE—Z

INCOME TAX EXPENSES (continued)

The income tax on the Group's profit before income tax
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using
the enacted tax rate of the home country of the companies
within the Group as follows:

A B A5 R R B R (48)

—NEFETZA=T—RLFE

12 FREHEAYX @)

AN 52 B BE R P15 B0 A g M) O TS B B8 A AR
EI)ﬁhT AITEBEREEMOHRERFTED
EwmTBAMTR  FEHIWT

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
BE-E-NEF H#z=z—_Z—N\F
+=B=+—H +=Z—RA=+—H
LFE HFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FE&T
Profit before income tax KR PS80 A A 138,935 26,243
Income tax calculated at respective AEBEEMERGTENMED
statutory rates 37,023 8,476
Preferential income tax rate BEFFHE (15,351) (5,066)
Previously unrecognised tax losses ﬂﬁﬂiﬁﬁu BIEBENAEE
recognised in current year as deferred RBELERIBEE
tax assets (990) (5,032
Non-deductible expenses AR SZ 916 2,458
Non-taxable income BAERBRKA (1,884) (66)
Research and development expenditure MO EE S
additional deduction (2,906) (392)
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax BB KRR IEEE
losses (412) (971)
Tax losses and temporary differences not KR AEERIBEENTIE
recognised as deferred tax assets EE LR EE 9,917 6,834
Prior year's tax filing differences F—EFEHRNER (995) 662
Total income tax expenses for the year FEMSHF 2% 25,318 6,903
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 &&= - —"E+-_A=+—HILFE

12

13

162

INCOME TAX EXPENSES (continued)

Hong Kong profits tax

The applicable Hong Kong profits tax rate is 16.5% (year
ended 31 December 2018: 16.5%) on the estimated
assessable profit derived in Hong Kong for the year.

PRC corporate income tax

Under the Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC (“CIT Law"),
the CIT rate applicable to the Group’s subsidiaries established
in mainland China is 25%, while certain subsidiaries are
applicable to the preferential tax rate of 15%.

The CIT Law and its implementation rules impose a
withholding tax at 10% for dividends distributed by a PRC-
resident enterprise to its immediate holding company outside
PRC for earnings generated beginning 1 January 2008 and
undistributed earnings generated prior to 1 January 2008 are
exempted from such withholding tax. A lower 5% withholding
tax rate may be applied when the immediate holding
companies are established in Hong Kong according to the tax
treaty arrangement between the PRC and Hong Kong. The
Company’s mainland China subsidiaries did not have plan for
distributing dividend to the Company for the year ended 31
December 2019, thus no such withholding tax was accrued (31
December 2018: Nil).

DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors did not recommend any payment of
dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2019
(year ended 31 December 2018: Nil).

12

13

FrE#imMXZ @)

EBFEH
REARREBBAGFTERBENERNS
ERETHB R B165% (B E T — )\ F
+—A=+—HBLLFE : 165%) °

REI R EFBHR
REFRPEMSBE(EEMSBIE]D -
ZNER B R B A AR S /O B /B A R A E A 4
EFEHRBMERE25%  mETHB2ARER
15% 2 BEME -

EEMGHAREERARNZTTREERER
R-ZEZNF-A—BRBELNHBENEE
274 FR BRI B IR P AR X B P 0 TR E B
BE10%TEHH - MR —_TENF—A—H
Al EE A )R 70 Ik B 7 R JERA S U B RE TR T
Moo RBPEEFBOWRBEHE L HE
BEER R RREERKIL - BIIF] s E ABE
S EHBRE-BHE_T—-NLEF+ A
=t+—BLFE  ARANF RN EBA
Al GBI A R R DRI - B &
FREHIH(—F-NF+_A=1+—8:
)

ExeTEBRBEEMEE T NFt+=
A=Z+—BLEEENRE(BE=ZF—N\F
TZA=+—HILFE : &) -



2019 Annual Report DIT Group Limited
TE-NEER | EXEENEEEERAR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A B A5 R R B R (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 &2 —E—hE+-_A=+—HILFE

14 EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a)

(b)

Basic

Basic earnings per share for the year is calculated by
dividing the consolidated earnings of the Group
attributable to owners of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year.

14 BREF

(@ #E=X
FEBREXBNDREARBESR
AFIEARRBEEBFRAFAD %
TEBEROIETFOHRAESS -

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018

BE-S-1F BE-T &
+=A=+-8 +=A=t+-H

IEFEE LEFE
Consolidated earnings attributable RN BEE AFILERE
to owners of the Company (HK$'000) &R (FHIT) 110,749 27,427
Weighted average number of ordinary BEITE BRI I9 8
shares in issue ('000) (FR%) 11,209,603 11,209,603
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) FREREF
(A 0.99 0.24
Diluted (b) #8

For the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018,
diluted earnings per share were equal to the basic
earnings per share as the Group does not have any
dilutive shares.

HE_Z-—NFRZZTE-N\F+=A
=T—RAILFE ARAEELET
MESERG  SREFRTEGRE
RBFIFER
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 &&= - —"E+-_A=+—HILFE

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 M% - BERRE

Plants under

development

for

prefabricated

Computer Motor  Furniture & Leasehold  construction

Buildings  equipments vehicles fixtures  Equipments  improvement business Total
RRERAR
BEEHN

By BlRE RE GLRRE B HEEE ERERE a3t
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
i i1 i Fin Fir i1 Fir i

At 1 January 2019 R=%2-1E-A-A

Cost HA 701,906 4,482 9,047 23,553 2407121 25,880 562,764 1,568,353
Accumulated depreciation 2iE (33,220) (1,439) (2,081) (3,362) (32,839) (12,193) - (85,134)
Net hook amount FETE 668,686 3,043 6,966 2019 207,882 13,687 562,764 1,483,219

Year ended 31 December 2019 BE-E-nE

TZAST-ALEE
Opening net book amount ENEESE 668,636 3,003 6,966 20,191 207,882 13,687 562764 1,483,219
Addtions HE 3521 708 1,940 2,349 240 12423 87,060 108,241
Transfers upon completion TREER 147,970 - - - 48,369 - (196,339) -
Decrease relating to disposal HREERBARHD
Of subsidiaries - - - - - - (49,825) (49,825)
Other isposals AfpitiE (#14) (50) (880) (333) (8,853) - (351) (10,881)
Depreciation charge HEER (27,568) (1,314) (2,814) (3,393) (30,977) (6,388) = (72,454)
Currency translation differences NEnEEE (24,992) (59) (121) (720) (5,135) (5.332) (5,607) (41,972)
Closing net book amount EXEETE 767,203 2328 5,085 18,094 21152 14,390 397700 1416328
At 31 December 2019 W=Z-NF+ZAZ1-
Cost s 826,018 4,683 7,498 25921 272911 35,563 397,702 1,570,368
Accumulated depreciation Zittig (58,815) (2,355) (2.413) (7.833) (61,451) 21113) > (154,040)
Net book amount FEAE 767,203 2,328 5,085 18,094 211,526 14,390 397,702 1,416,328

164



2019 Annual Report DIT Group Limited
TE-NEER | EXEENEEEERAR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR (]

For the year ended 31 December 2019 &2 —E—hE+-_A=+—HILFE

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 Y% - BENRERE @)
(Continued)

Plants under

development

for

Drefabricated

Computer Furniture & Leasehold ~ construction
Buldings  equipments  Motor vehicles fitures  Equipments  improvement business Total

BB

BERHH
B EHRE TE ELRRE By HEXE ERAR &3t
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000
T T T AT FEL AT FEL AT

At 1 January 2018 R=%F-NE-A-H

Cost B 615,19 4609 10426 13072 194,962 17847 113047 969,173
Accumulated depreciation Zithe (13320 (1,116) (1.661) (1863 (16,091 (6,430 - (10.465)
Net book amount FEAE 601870 3513 8,765 11209 178871 11413 113047 928,708

Year ended 31 December 2018 HE2o5-N\E

TIA=T-ALEE
Openingnet book amount ENEERE 01,870 3513 8765 129 178871 1413 1300 928708
Addtons 52 370 1401 1082 13905 478 8666 60199 653,668
Transfers upon completion TEER 111859 = = = 53424 - (165283) =
Disposals e - (634) (784) (1.371) (3,014) = = (5.309)
Depreciation charge HEER 21,287 (1,000) (1,8) (317) (19,194) (3863 - (50,360)
Currency ranslation cifferences NEREER (27478 (237) ) (400) (6,928) 2529 (5,199 301
Closing net book amount EXEETE 668,686 3083 6,966 2091 20788 13687 562,764 1483219
At 31 December 2018 WB-NETZA=t-A
Cost A 01906 1482 9017 B553 4071 2580 00 15683%
Accumulated depreciation ZiE (33220 (1439) (2081) (3362 (328%9) (12199 = (85,134)
Net book amount BE3E 668,686 308 6966 20191 27882 13687 061483219
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment of HK$72.5 ME - BERIXBINERSEEST(EHE
million (year ended 31 December 2018: HK$50.4 million) —E-NF+ZA=+—HIFE :5048
has all been charged to administrative expenses and cost BT ERGeEakAMEERKERY
of sales in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and TER B REHE AN kR o

other comprehensive income.

165



DIT Group Limited
EREEREERFRLF

2019 Annual Report
ZE-NEER

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

n'.R

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZEZ—Z—

15

166

B 5 SRR B R ()

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

As at 31 December 2019, property, plant and equipment
with a net book value of HK$371.8 million (31 December
2018: HK$380.0 million) were pledged as collateral for the
Group’s borrowings HK$193.7 million (31 December 2018:
HK$146.0 million). Among the collateral, property ownership
certificate of the Group’s building with a net book value
HK$245.6 million (31 December 2018: HK$290.0 million) is
under China Minsheng Drawin Co., Ltd.. These buildings
were pledged as collateral for two bank borrowings of
HK$154.6 million which was secured by China Minsheng
Drawin Co., Ltd..

In addition,as at 31 December 2019, property, plant and
equipment with a net book value of HK$88.1 million and
right-of-use assets with a net book value of HK$25.3 million
were pledged as collateral for a bank borrowing of HK$44.7
million (31 December 2018: nil) of Drawin Intelligent
Manufacture Technology Industry Group Limited, which is
controlled by the same ultimate controlling shareholder.

Interest expenses of HK$6.4 million were capitalised in
plant under development for prefabricated construction
business for the year ended 31 December 2019 (year ended
31 December 2018: HK$4.6 million).

NEFE+A=T—HILEFE

15 Y% - MENRRME @

R-Z-—NF+-_A=1+—8 REHER
FMBEEBAL(ZE—\F+_A=+—8:
380.0E&EBETT) W% - BERREBEE THE
RIERREEDMF 198 78EET(ZE—N
FH+_A=1+—B 146 0B8ETT)EEK
Hifm - EEEEfmt  AREREFE
RA56BBET(ZE—N\F+-_A=1—
B :200B&ET)NETHNEEERBR
TRERBERARAT - 2R TS EME
AMELERIAABETNRITEEN
HHY > HPRERBRRREEM -

o R=E—hF+=-A=+—H " E@E
FEASSIEEETTHYE  BRE R&M#
BRIEEFEADIBEE TNFERELSE
BB TERSERNEESERRAT(Z
Bl —S&EERBREES)  (ERESER4LLT
ABEATTHRITEENEED(ZE—N\F
+=ZA=+—H8 %)

HE-_T-NF+-A=+—RHLFE" B
RIERB R EENERRE T E RN EF
BRYRMBEBAT(BE_Z—/\F+=
A=+ HLEEE 46EEBT) -
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A BTSRRI RE (48

For the year ended 31 December 2019 &2 —E—hE+-_A=+—HILFE

16 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

16

This note provides information for leases where the Group

EREEE

HAREREBEA - AIAHEREERHTE

is a lessee. y S
(@) Amounts recognised in the statement of (@) REBEMRRERFIERZEHE
financial position
The statement of financial position shows the BRI RATBBHRE &5
following amounts relating to leases:
Property,
plant and Land use
Right-of-use assets equipment right Total
¥ - BE
FREEE e TR st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FET FEr
As at 1 January 2019 R-E-hE-A—H 40,722 732,937 773,659
Additions NE 1,044 770,587 771,631
Decrease relating to disposal of subsidiaries B H & it B 2 T 6935 - (759,424) (759,424)
Other disposals HinH & (13,500) - (13,500)
Amortisation charged into profit or loss B A B (14,731) (9,238) (23,969)
Amortisation capitalised to plant under BHEAMEERERE
development - (5,842) (5,842)
Currency translation differences O E = 5E (203) (15,765) (15,968)
Balance as at 31 December 2019 R-Z-NE+=A=+-H
ZEEER 13,332 713,255 726,587
Lease liabilities 31 December 1 January
2019 2019
HEEE —E-hEF —E-NF
+=H=+-—H —A—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
Current Vi 10,968 16,385
Non-current IERED 3,007 20,168
Total lease liabilities HEBEERE 13,975 36,553
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 &&= - —"E+-_A=+—HILFE

16 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

168

(b)

()

Amounts recognised in the statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income

The statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income shows the following amounts
relating to leases:

16 FRHEEE @)

(b)

REZERAMEZERSRTRIZE
H
BakEtEERERIIRAT AR
HEZSE

Year ended
31 December
2019
BE-ZE—I#F
+=A=+—H
IEFE
HK$’000
FET
Amortisation charge of right-of-use assets FRREEEH#HIEER

— Property, plant and equipment — W - BB MEE 14,731
— Land use right — T Hb{E AR 9,238
Finance charges on lease liabilities THEAERMERS 1,309

Short-term leases and low-value EHEENMEEEEERS
leases expenses 569

The Group’s leasing activities:

The Group leases various property, plant and
equipment. Rental contracts are typically made for
fixed periods of 1 to 5 years. Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide
range of different terms and conditions.

At 31 December 2019, right-of-use assets, with a net
book value of HK$510.5 million (1 January 2019:
HK$218.6 million) were pledged as collateral for the
Group’s borrowings of HK$161.0 million (1 January
2019: HK$184.7 million).

Among the collateral, state-owned land use
certificates of the Group’s lands with a net book value
of HK$356.3 million (year ended 31 December 2018:
HK$56.2 million) are under China Minsheng Drawin
Co., Ltd.. These lands were pledged as collateral for
two bank borrowings of HK$39.1 million which were
guaranteed/secured by China Minsheng Drawin Co.,
Ltd..

()

REEMHEEED :
AEERESEYE BERERB -
HERKNBTERE1 ZE5FNETEHRA
R o ERRISE @RI ERE L1
W BEEBTRERKGEM -

R-ZEBE-AFE+-_A=+—0 " F@E
SFEARSI0SBEBT(ZT—NF—
B—H 2186EBBTL)MEAES
ECHEBEALEER161.0EE BT
HEERR - (ZE—AE—A—HB:
1847 B EBIT)

EEEERRT  AKEKREFER
JIFBET(RE_ZTE-N\F+=
A=1T—HILFE :562A88%ET)H
T EALHMERESETRER
BERABMET - ZFELHE KR
EAMBRITERIIBELTHE
Ao YHPREKEGRIBREHEE
R/ R -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 &2 —E—hE+-_A=+—HILFE

17 LAND USE RIGHTS 17 T Hu{ER#E

The Group's interests in land use rights represent prepaid
operating lease payments and their net book value are

AEER T FERAENER STANEEHE
OB NMERRERE - DT

analysed as follows:

HK$'000
FET
Year ended 31 December 2018 BE-ZE-N\F+=-A=+—BHLFE
Beginning balance FNEER 628,458
Additions NE 147,194
Amortisation charged into profit or loss i AR (10,107)
Amortisation capitalised to plant under development #$5& AL 2 EE M= (4,232)
Currency transaction differences INEITE ERE (28,376)
Ending balance FREER 732,937
Adoption of HKFRS 16 (Note 3) RNBE BV RS ERE 1655 (H5£3)
adjust to Right-of-use assets HEEGRAEEE (732,937)
Balance as at 1 January 2019 R=FB-hEF—A—HNHER =
18 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 18 REMEME
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
BE-ZE—NF #E_ZF—N\F
+=ZA=+—-H +=ZHA=+—H
LFE IEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Beginning balance FAEeR 17,348 18,543
Disposals HeE (763) (722)
Fair value gains on investment properties &YX AR BENZE 631 367
Currency translation differences SN E =R (136) (840)
Ending balance FRERR 17,080 17,348
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 &&= - —"E+-_A=+—HILFE

18

170

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Investment properties held by the Group are all commercial
properties located in Shandong Province, the PRC.

All investment properties were revalued as at 31 December
2019 and 2018 by Grant Sherman Appraisal Limited, an
independent professional qualified valuer. The revaluation
gains or losses are included in ‘Other (losses)/gains — net’
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income (Note 8).

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the fair value of
investment properties which was determined using income
approach by reference to the value of income, cash flow or
cost savings generated by the asset.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into/out of fair
value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or change
in circumstances that caused the transfer. The investment
properties are within level 3 of fair value hierarchy as at 31
December 2019 and 2018. There were no transfer among
Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 during the years.

18 IREMEME®)

AEEFANREERFEY BT B
RENBERYE

BEREMEHE T HBELEXRAERMGE
MPETFEERAFANR_ZE-—NAFR-ZF
—N\F+ZA=+—BETEHGKE Ef
WasBRD MAGA Ba MM
R [ E b (B518),eas — F 88 (HIFES) -

RZE-—NFRZFE-N\FF+ZA=1—
B BREUEHENAABESKAKA
- WBRERABE ReRnEEEESE
HENE K AN MEEE o

AEBOBR AR EHEREFIBERNE
MBH BRAABESHRANEA &
HeR=ZZFE-—NEFER=ZZE—-—NF+=A
=+—B BEAMEEMEER AL EEEE
B3 FN B B2RREIH M
PEAmaE R o
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #EZ—-ZF—

n'.F

B 5 R R RE ()

NF+—A=+—HLEE

18 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 18 REMEME@®)
Valuation inputs and relationships to fair value HERASBERENAEBENBE
The valuations were performed based on the income ZEREEEMETIRBWRAK(EHKRE
approach (term and reversion method) or direct ) N HEELLBOEET G WE WA
comparison approach for those investment properties. The SERLA LA TN & A A] #aim ASE -
following significant unobservable inputs for income
approach have been used:
Ralationship of
Fair value at 31 Valuation Unobservable Range of unobservable inputs
Description December 2019 technique(s) inputs unobservable inputs to fair value
R=E-hfF
+=B=t-H RUBEHA TABERAYE
it HWAREE [ERE TABEQAYE ZHENEGEE HAAEENBE
HK$’000
FET
Ccommercial 17,080 Income Term yield Term yield of 4.0% (2018: 4.0%),  The higher the term
properties (2018:17,348)  approach taking into account of yield yield, the lower the
generated from comparable fair value
properties and adjustment to
effect the certainty of term
income secured and to be
received
BmENE 17,080 A% TR THMEEZAB(ZE—N\F: THkaEds 2
(ZZ2-N\&F: 40%)  EETRAELEYE  AEEBE
17,348) EERNRRE AR AR TE

TERERAHRGH T H
WO T 4 ) 8 2

Were the rental rate and yield rate required assumed to

HRRBEENEE R EERE

EBErE

increase or decrease by 10% from management’s estimate, BIBBIR IR 10% - R=ZF—NFR=
the carrying amount of investment properties as at 31 Z-N\F+- A=+ BNREEFHEN
December 2019 and 2018 would have changed as follows: IREER HIRIA TS
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
R-B-hE RZZT-N\F
+=A=+—-H +t=—A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Investment properties increase/(decrease) & MERMAEE I, Gk )
— 10 percent rental rate higher — &L H110% 18,755 15,267
— 10 percent rental rate lower — &R 10% 15,406 14,969
Investment properties increase/(decrease) & MEREMAEL N, G )
— 10 percent yield rate higher — ISR IBHN10% 16,410 14,623
— 10 percent yield rate lower — WEH KR 10% 17.862 15,894
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 &&= - —"E+-_A=+—HILFE

18 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

19

172

Valuation inputs and relationships to fair value

(Continued)

The following rental income amounts relating to the
investment properties have been recognised in the

2019 Annual Report

consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income:

18 REMUEME @)
RS A BE R S A & EE R ()

UNTERREMEHENESWRABBEER
reEm AR ER T ER

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December

2019 2018

BE-ZE-h&F BEZE_T—)\F

+=A=+—-H +=-HA=+—H

LEFE IEFE

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Rental income GiEE N 708 665

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

19 EBEWREE

Computer software

B E S
HK$'000
FEIT

Year ended 31 December 2019 BE-Z—NF+-A=1+—HLFE
Opening net book amount FYIIREFHE 4,118
Additions NE 1,083
Amortisation charge HHER (1,518)
Currency translation differences SN E = (64)
Closing net book amount FREEEFE 3,619

At 31 December 2019 R=-B-hE+=A=+—H

Cost R AR 5,287
Accumulated amortisation RETEE Y (1,668)
Net book amount BRTEFE 3,619
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HE—Z

—NEFETZA=T—RLFE

19 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) BHEE @)

Computer software
£
HK$000
FET

Year ended 31 December 2018 BE-ZF-N\FE+-A=+—HLEFE
Opening net book amount FYREFE 782
Additions NE 3,805
Amortisation charge BB R (401)
Currency translation differences SN B EEE (63)
Closing net book amount FRERMEFAE 4,118

At 31 December 2018 R=-B-NE+=-A=+—H

Cost PR R 4,954
Accumulated amortisation EGg: 3 (836)
Net book amount REFE 4,118

For the year ended 31 December 2019, amortisation
charges of intangible assets were HK$1,518,000 (For the
year ended 31 December 2018: HK$401,000).

20 INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES

REBEZZEZ-—AF+-A=+—HIFE
AEEEFEENEHEEHA1518000%
TEEZE-—)\F+_A=T—HLFE:
401,000 7T) °

20 RENBELQT

As at As at

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

RZB-NE RKRZ—N\F

+=ZH=+—-8 +=—A=+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHT FEr

Share of net assets Frih & EFE 192,883 192,697
Less: Provision for impairment ORI EEE = -
192,883 192,697
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZEZ—Z—

20

174

B 5 SRR B R ()

INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

As at the 31 December 2019, the Company had indirect
interests in the following associates:

20 IRENBEQT

NEFE+A=T—HILEFE

wﬁ@

RZB-NF+A=+—0 TKERXT
5B N EI A R

Place of incorporation Proportion of Issued
Name and operation ownership interest share capital Principal activities
8 MR RAEE 5 BRI ERIRE FEEHK
Held by the Indirectly
Company held
HAAREE BiERE
Zhejiang China Minsheng Drawin ~ China - 47% HK$200,000,000  Construction
Technology Company Limited industrialisation
IR RERBHERBRAR H - 47% 200,000,000 BEEFL
YMCI China Minsheng Kunming China = 30% RMB100,000,000  Construction
Technology Construction Limited industrialisation
EHERPREERBARLA  HH - 30% ARE100000000 BEEXY

The financial year end dates of the above associates are
coterminous with that of the Group.

There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s
interests in the associates.

Summarised financial information for an associate
The tables below provide summarised financial information
for the associate that is material to the Group. The
information disclosed reflects the amounts presented in
the financial statements of Zhejiang China Minsheng and
not the Group'’s share of those amounts. They have been
amended to reflect adjustments made by the Group when
using the equity method, including fair value adjustments
and modifications for differences in accounting policy.

At R B R R A R BN R [
BRFEARAER -

BENAMBERBE
TREJIHAEEBEANBZABMBKE
FEE - I ENER RRIOINTIHhRER
M B R R T 2SI BER - MIEARRE(S
AEBENNE - ?%QHEEHKEIEEH
R AETA RRBEMNER] - BREAAE
BERBEREEHEE E’J%S‘%iﬁfﬂ ik
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 H#&Z T~ NFE+_-_A=+—HILFE

20 INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 20 BEREE DT (#)

Zhejiang China Minsheng WIFRER

BE_Z-NAF+_A=t—BLEFE &~
SEERREMTHRE E%;z’f%ﬁmk“)\ﬁﬁél’]

The Group recognised share of gains of associates of
HK$5,664,000 from Zhejiang China Minsheng using the

equity method for the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018:

ﬁ{E ii.L,/\

Al 7 735,664,000 T ( Z &

HK$25,000). —\%F : 25,0007 7T) °
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
R-ZB-HhE RZZT—N\F
+=—HA=+—-8 +=—A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Summarised statement of financial BRI R E
position
Current assets MBNEE
Cash and cash equivalents HehIReEFEBEHEE 5,867 17,142
Other current assets EtmEEE 198,488 174,790
Total current assets EE 204,355 191,932
Non-current assets EMBNVEE 250,862 231,746
Current liabilities mENAE
Financial liabilities (excluding trade SRHABE(ITBHEESH
payables) FERTFRIA) 124,361 94,727
Other current liabilities Etmgats 132,075 131,466
Total current liabilities mENA BB 256,436 226,193
Non-current liabilities EREBEE 3,783 3,948
Net assets BEEFE 194,998 193,537
Group’s share in % REBE LR E(ED) 47% 47%
Group's share in HK$ NEBFTL R (BT) 91,649 90,962
Goodwill [EES 81,571 83,394
Carrying amount BREE 173,220 174,356
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZEZ—Z—
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20 INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 20 BB REEDNE(#)

Zhejiang China Minsheng (Continued) AIPRER ()

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

BE-Z—N&F #E2_F—N\F

+=—B=+—-8 +=—A=+—H

LFE LEFE

HK$’'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Revenue WA 379,928 137,319
Profit before income tax R FT 1S5 A& F 12,292 303
Income tax expenses PSR = -
Other comprehensive income HE 2wl - =
Total comprehensive income PHE W E B EE 12,292 303
The Group recognised share of losses of associates of BHE-_Z-NFT-A=+—RHILEFEALE

HK$1,173,000 from YMCI China Minsheng using the equity B2 A A AR B Emich RAE
method for the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: {HE& N E]E518 1,173,000 T (= F— )\ F :
HK$1,354,000). 1,354,000 78 7T °
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #EZ—-ZF—

A B A5 R R B R (48)

NF+—A=+—HLEE

INVENTORIES 21 #8
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
R=ZZB—-hE RZZT—N\F
+=-—HA=+—8 +=—A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Raw materials R 40,204 42,264
Finished goods BURY SR 47,245 53,198
Goods in transit EEEm 1,412 1,967
Work in progress PR 816 2
Low value articles KESER 79 107
Inventory provision FERE (84) (1,443)
89,672 96,095

Provisions of inventories to net realisable value amounted
to HK$84,000 (2018: HK$1,443,000). These were recognised
as an expense for the year ended 31 December 2019 in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

Inventories recognised as an expense during the year
ended 31 December 2019 amounted to HK$279,346,000
(2018: HK$177,060,000). These were included in cost of
sales.

Write-downs of inventories to net realisable value
amounted to HK$1,240,000 (2018: HK$4,949,000). These
were recognised as an expense during the year ended 31
December 2019 and included in “cost of sales” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

BB 2RFENTE/BL000ET(=
T— )\ : 1,443,000 7T) ° 3% ZHRIBRER
EEAREMEENARTHEIAR/BE_T
—hFE+-A=+—RLEFENRX -

HE_Z—NF+_A=+—HLFEER
BRSNS A279,346,000# T ( ZF—
F 1 177,060,000 7T) * T ABHEKAK -

T7 & 0B 2= AT B 353 {8.1,240,000 8 T (—F
—\F : 4,949,000 TT) - ZFFEREE

—HNF+ A=t —BLFEERRE
Rt At AGZEBaR LAt HKER
B TEHEMA ] A o
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 &&= - —"E+-_A=+—HILFE

22 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

22 ESRHMEWRIERFEANRE

PREPAYMENTS
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
R=ZB—HhE RZIZT—N\F
+=BA=+-8 +=ZA=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FA&T
Trade receivables — third parties BIRWRIE —F=7 353,618 217,128
Trade receivables — related parties E 5 EINGRIE — g 162,480 77,812
Notes receivable FEWE & 2,693 1,574
Receivables relating to disposal of R E—REARTN
subsidiaries (note (a)) FEWRIA (17T (a) 72,760 -
Value-added tax recoverable A Y [B] 1B F 61,314 68,013
Prepayments TEfTRIE 24,526 15,441
Amounts due from related parties FE U B4 5 TR 13,251 55,059
Land auction deposits THER IR S 11,173 46,074
Government grant receivable JE UK IER I 4 B 8,261 5,935
Deposits Be 7.297 12,756
Others =i 14,130 9,195
731,503 508,987
Less: Provision for impairment of trade B B 5 GERIA I E A FE U
receivables and other receivables SRIBRERE (ML)
(note (b)) (5,914) (3,194)
725,589 505,793

notes:

e -

(a) Among the receivables relating to disposal of subsidiaries as at
31 December 2019, HK$55.2 million relating to disposal of
Zhoukou Jianheng was received in January 2020.

(b) As at 31 December 2019, such balance included provision for
impairment of trade receivables of HK$5,134,000 and provision
for impairment of other receivables of HK$780,000
(31 December 2018: HK$2,614,000 and HK$580,000,
respectively).

178

RZB-NF+_A=+—REHLEHRBLAR
BEWIES - HERORIEMRIASS2EEE
TR F—AKE -

RZB-NF+ZA=+—8 ZEHRBEES
J& W3R8 5,134,000 B TTHYBE B - M A AR UK
IR 780,000 B TR ERE (—T—N\F+=A
=+—H : 5 5142,614,000 % 7T & 580,000 7T)
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22 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

PREPAYMENTS (continued)

The ageing analysis of trade receivables as at 31 December
2019 and 2018 based on the invoice issue date were as

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HE—Z

—NEFETZA=T—RLFE

ESRHMEWMRERFEFKIE
(4&)
BS5RWHRER-_ZE—NERZE—NF

ToA=+—HRAAZZBEHNEREN

follows: T
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
RZZ-hE RZZT—N\HF
+=ZA=+—-H +=—A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Less than 1 year PR—F 355,566 263,451
1to 2 years —EMFE 149,455 31,489
more than 2 years BB 11,077 -
516,098 294,940
The maximum exposure to credit risk as at 31 December RZE-NEFERZZE—N\F+=ZA=+—AH
2019 and 2018 is the carrying value of each class of Frmfe e E B ER A il %585 IR
receivables mentioned above. KRR E °
As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the fair values of trade RZE—NFRZFE-N\FF+ZA=1+—
and other receivables approximate their carrying amounts. - Z5kEMEKFKIENADEEMLAR

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other
receivables and prepayments are denominated in the

following currencies:

[ENI=RIEES

REEHE 5 N H A UK
MAREENA N IEEEHE -

TE LA R SRS IR

As at As at

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

RZEB—-hAF RZZ—N\F

+=A=+—-H +t=-—A=+—H

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FEIT

HK dollar BT 3,890 10,698
Renminbi AR 721,699 495,095
725,589 505,793
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 &&= - —"E+-_A=+—HILFE

22 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
PREPAYMENTS (continued)

The creation of provision for impairment of receivables has
been included in “Net impairment losses on financial
assets” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

23 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(@ The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at

180

22 ESREMEBKRFIERFENRIA

(#)

FEUCK IR E B R 2 1B R E A AR B BRE R
HthzmEmhaXRAZ [2REERERBEF

Bl e

23 MEQRINER

@ TRAER-ZE—NEF+_A=+—H

31 December 2019: MNESHEAREE :
Proportion of
Place of Proportion of Proportion ordinary shares
incorporation and Particulars ordinary shares  of ordinary held by
operation and Principal ofissued directly held  shares held non-controlling
Name kind of legal entity  activities share capital by parent by the Group interests
BARERRE  AREEE FEREERE
AR IR E £ EERILE  WERERUA  HEBRLS
£ NREABRER TEER BRARAFE (A2L) (BAk) (BAL)
% % %
Benelux Property Development China, limited liability ~ Property USD5,000,000 100% 100% -
(Shanghal) Limited*® company development 5,000,000 %%
FHEFER(DS)ARRAC  HE FRAF NERRE
South East (Shandong) Property Chin, limited liability  Property RMB15,000,000 100% 100% -
Limited*'@ company development ARE
RA(LREXERRA® ME - ARAA NEER 15,000,000 7
Sunshine Universal Development BV, limited liability Inactive N 100% 100% =
Limited company TREK B
EBRIES ER
G
Perfect Gold Investments Limited ~ Hong Kong, limited Investment holding HKD2 100% 100% =
FRRERRAR liability company ~ &EER 28T
&% ARRA
Shangheng Limited BV, limited liability Investment holding UsD1 100% 100% =
HEARAH company RELR %7

ABRAES AR
l
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The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at
31 December 2019: (Continued)

2019 Annual Report
—E—NEER

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A B A5 R R B R (48)
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DIT Group Limited
EREEREEERAR

23 MEQRINER @

@ TRARZZE—NF+-_A=+—H
MEEBMBARIGE : (&)

Proportion of
Place of Proportion of Proportion ordinary shares
incorporation and Particulars ordinary shares  of ordinary held by
operation and Principal of issued directly held  shares held non-controlling
Name kind of legal entity ~ activities share capital by parent by the Group interests
BARERKA r8EEE FERERRE
AL REEL S VERRILA  WEEREH  WEERLA
£ NREABRER TEEH BRITRAR (At (k) (BAk)
% % %
Commit Glory Investments Limited ~ Hong Kong, limited Investment holding HKD1 - 100% -
JIERERRAR liability company ~ %EER 1A
&% BRAA
Giant Achiever Development Hong Kong, limited Investment holding HKD1 - 100% -
Limited liability company ~ KEER 18T
ERRERRAR EE  BRAH
Fame Glory Investments Limited Hong Kong, limited Investment holding HKD1 - 100% -
SEREERAT] liability company % EHR 1B
FE  BRAA
Noble Walk Limited BV, limited liability Investment holding UsD1 100% 100% -
WITBRAR company RERR %7
EBRNES BR
N
Noble Tide Limited BV, limited liability Investment holding UsD1 100% 100% =
WEERA company RARR EFH
EBRLHE ER
A
Zheyou Investment Limited Hong Kong, limited ~ Investment holding HKD10,000 100% 100% =
HRBEBRLE liability company & &#ER 10000757
&5 ARAT
Guiyou Investment Limited Hong Kong, limited Investment holding HKD10,000 100% 100% -
ERREERAR liabiity company ~ RERK 10000357

&5 BRLA
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23 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 23 MIBQRIMNER @)
(Continued)
(@ The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at @ TRANR-Z—NF+=-_BA=+—H
31 December 2019: (Continued) NEBHBARZE : (&)
Proportion of
Place of Proportion of Proportion ordinary shares
incorporation and Particulars ordinary shares  of ordinary held by
operation and Principal of issued  directly held  shares held non-controlling
Name kind of legal entity ~ activities share capital by parent by the Group interests
BARERRE  ARENE FERERES
EMAIRE XL VEBRILA  WEBREA  WEERLA
£ DREABRER  TEEH BRAREKFES (BAl) (BAk) (BAL)
% % %
China Minsheng Drawin Technology ~ China, limited liability  Construction HKD1,530,000,000 = 100% =
Investment Limited** company industrialisation ~1,530,000,000 57T
TRERMEREERAR mE - ARAA REEXL
Shenzhen China Minsheng Chin, limited liability  Construction HKD200,000,000 = 100% =
DIT Limited*® company industrialisation 200,000,000/ 7
MIFRERBERFARAA® T ARAA REELL
Lux Property Construction China, limited liability  Construction HKD200,000,000 - 100% -
Technology (Shanghai) Limited*®  company industrialisation 200,000,000 % 7T
FERENK (LR ARAR®  HE ARAA REEXL
Nanjing China Minsheng DIT Chin, limited liability  Construction HKD200,000,000 = 97% 3%
Limited*® (note (i) company industrialisation 200,000,000/ 7
HRRREREERFBR TE - BRAE REESL
nae ()
Hengyang China Minsheng DIT China, limited liability  Construction HKD100,000,000 = 100% =
Limited*@ company industrialisation 100,000,000 7T

ERTRERBENRARAAS  BE ARAA BEER(
China Minsheng Drawin Technology ~ China, limited liability  Construction HKD100,000,000 = 100% =

(Foshan) Limitea® company industrialisation 100,000,000 870
PRERBF (B ERAFS  HEl - BRAA BEEZY
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 &2 —E—hE+-_A=+—HILFE

23 MEQRINER @

@ TRARZZE—NF+-_A=+—H
MEEBMBARIGE : (&)

Proportion of
Place of Proportion of Proportion ordinary shares
incorporation and Particulars ordinary shares  of ordinary held by
operation and Principal ofissued directly held  shares held non-controlling
Name kind of legal entity  activities share capital by parent by the Group interests
BARERKE REERE FERERER
HMAIRE £ S VEBRILA  WEBRLE  WEBERLE
£ DREABRER  FEXH BRARAFE (At (BAL) (BAL)
% % %
Hefei China Minsheng DIT Limited*®  China, limited liability ~ Construction HKD95,000,000 - 100% -
ARTRERBENMREERAFS  company industrialisation 95,000,000 %70
HE - ARAE BEEE
Changsha China Minsheng DIT China, limited liability  Construction HKD1,108,000,000 = 51% 49%
Limited*® (note (i) company industrialisation ~1,108,000,000 77T
ROMRERBERKER mEl - BRAR BEEZY
nae (i)
Kunshan China Minsheng Drawin -~ China, limited liability ~ Construction RMBS50,000,000 - 100% =
Intelligence Construction company industrialisation A& 50,000,000 7T
Technology Limited*® mEl - BRAT BEEZY
Bl RERBEREN AR
e
China Minsheng Drawin Inteligent  China, limited liability  Construction HKD23,650,000 = 100% =
Equipment Technology Limited*®  company industrialisation 236500007
PRERBURENRBRAANS DB BRATF BEEZY
Huizhou China Minsheng Drawin -~ Ching, limited liability  Construction RMB40,000,000 - 100% -
Technology Limited*® company industrialisation ARE
ENRRERMHERART® mEl - BRAR REES( 40,000,000
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23 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 23 MIBARIMNER @)
(Continued)
(@  The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at @ TRANR-Z—NF+=-_BA=+—H
31 December 2019: (Continued) NEBHBARZE : (&)
Proportion of
Place of Proportion of  Proportion ordinary shares
incorporation and Particulars ordinary shares  of ordinary held by
operation and Principal ofissued  directlyheld  shares held non-controlling
Name kind of legal entity  activities share capital by parent by the Group interests
BNRERRE  ARERE FERERRE
ARMEIREEL S VEBRILA  WEBRLE  WERRLE
£ NREABRER TEEH BRITRARE (A2t) (B2t (Bak)
% % %
China Minsheng Drawin Technology ~ China, limited liability  Construction RMB80,000,000 = 90% 10%
(Pingdingshan) Limitec*® (note (i)~ company industrialisation ARE
MERER B (FIRIL)BR ME ARAA REELL 80,000,0007C
Nae (i)
Yuxi China Minsheng Drawin China, limited liability  Construction RMB100,000,000 - 100% -
Technology Limited*® company industrialisation ARE
FRPRERMRERAT® hE - BRAA REEE 100,000,000
China Minsheng Drawin Technology  China, limited liability  Construction RMB70,000,000 = 51% 49%
(Jiaozhou) Limited*® (note (i) company industrialisation AR
RERMR(BM) R ME - ARAR REEXL 70,000,0007C
Nae ()
Xiangtan China Minsheng Drawin -~ Ching, limited liability ~ Construction RMB70,000,000 - 100% -
Technology Limited*® company industrialisation ARE
HERRERMBERATC HE - ARAE BEESL 70,000,0007C
China Minsheng Drawin Technology ~ Ching, limited liability  Construction RMB70,000,000 - 100% -
(Jiaozuo) Limited*® company industrialisation ARE
MRERME (B ARARS BB ARAA REEEL 70,000,0007C
Huai'an China Minsheng DIT China, limited liability  Construction RMB70,000,000 - 100% -
Limitec*® company industrialisation ARE
EZPRERBEMRERAR  FH - ERAF REEEL 700000007
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23 MEQRINER @

@ TRARZZE—NF+-_A=+—H
MEEBMBARIGE : (&)

Proportion of
Place of Proportion of Proportion ordinary shares
incorporation and Particulars ordinary shares  of ordinary held by
operation and Principal of issued directly held  shares held non-controlling
Name kind of legal entity  activities share capital by parent by the Group interests
BLARERRE  ARERE FEREESE
AR g% VEERLS  WEERHA  HEERLH
4% WREARMEN  rEEH DRARANE  (AAK)  (AAH) (@A)
% % %
Chongaing Shi Qijiang Qu China China, limited liability  Construction RMB100,000,000 - 100% -
Minsheng Drawin Technology company industrialisation ARE
Limited+e hE - BRAA REEES 100,000,007
EEMALIRPRERMEAR
NG
Shaoyang China Minsheng DIT Chin, limited liability  Construction RMB100,000,000 = 100% =
Limiteg*® company industrialisation ARE
BEPRERBERBERARC HH ARAR BEEXL 100,000,000 70
Jiangxi China Minsheng DIT Chin, limited liability  Construction RMB70,000,000 = 100% =
Limiteg® company industrialisation ARE
TEPRERBERRERAAC HH ARAR BEEZ(Y 70,000,0007C
Wuxi China Minsheng DIT Limited*®  China, limited liability ~ Construction RMB100,000,000 = 100% -
BHRRERBERKBRAT  company industrialisation AR
ME - ARAA BEES 100,000,007
Shijiazhuang China Minsheng China, limited liability  Construction RMB100,000,000 - 100% -
DIT Limited+@ company industrialisation ARE
RFHRRERBERRER HE - ARAE BEES 100,000,000 70
IR
Chengau Dayi China Minsheng China, limited liability  Construction RMB100,000,000 = 100% -
Drawin Technology Limited*® company industrialisation ARE
FBREFRERMEARAR  RE BARAF BEEZY 100,000,000 70
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23 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
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23 MEQRINER @

(@  The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at (a)
31 December 2019: (Continued)

TRAER-ZE—NF+=-_A=+—H
NEBHBARIRZE : (48)
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Proportion of
Place of Proportion of Proportion ordinary shares
incorporation and Particulars ordinary shares  of ordinary held by
operation and Principal of issued  directly held  shares held non-controlling
Name kind of legal entity ~ activities share capital by parent by the Group interests
BARERRE  ARENE FERERES
ERALREEL S VEBRILA  WEBREA  WEERLE
£ DREABRER  TEEH BRAREKFS (BAk) (BAk) (BAL)
% % %
Wuhan China Minsheng DIT Chin, limited liability  Construction RMB100,000,000 = 100% =
Limited+@ company industrialisation ARE
RERREREENBBRLE DB ARRA REEXL 100,000,0007%
Chengdu China Minsheng DIT China, limited liability  Construction RMB70,000,000 = 100% -
Limitede company industrialisation ARE
AR RERBENRER mEl - BRAR BEEZY 70,000,0007C
NN
Tianjin China Minsheng DIT China, limited liability  Construction RMB150,000,000 = 100% -
Limited~® company industrialisation ARE
RETRERBENFARRAS  TH ARAA BEER( 150,000,0007
Xi'an China Minsheng DIT Limited®  Ching, limited liability  Construction RMB150,000,000 - 100% -
BRPRERTENZARAAC  company industrialisation ARE
mE - ARARE BEEZY 150,000,007
Langfang China Minsheng Chin, limited liability  Construction RMB150,000,000 = 100% -
DIT Limitec*® company industrialisation ARE
BATRERBENZARAAS  HH ARAA REEXL 150,000,000 70
Qingdao China Minsheng China, limited liability  Construction RMB100,000,000 = 60% 40%
DIT Limited~* (note (j) company industrialisation ARE
EETREREENBAR HE - ARAH BEER( 100,000,0007C
N (i)
Xuzhou China Minsheng China, limited liability  Construction RMB100,000,000 - 100% -
DIT Limited*® company industrialisation ARE
BNRRERBENRERAR®  FH - ERAF BEEE 100,000,0007C
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23 PARTICU
(Continued)

A B A5 R R B R (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 &2 —E—hE+-_A=+—HILFE

LARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(@ The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at

23 MIBATINER @)

@ TRARZZE—NF+-_A=+—H

31 December 2019: (Continued) MEBHBRARZE: (&
Proportion of
Place of Proportion of Proportion ordinary shares
incorporation and Particulars ordinary shares  of ordinary held by
operation and Principal of issued directly held  shares held non-controlling
Name kind of legal entity ~ activities share capital by parent by the Group interests
BLARERRE  ARERE FEREESE
ERALREELEH VEBRILA  WEBREA  WERRLA
£ DREABRER  TEEH BRITRARS (BAL) (BAk) (BAk)
% % %
Xiangx China Minsheng Drawin Chin, limited liability  Construction RMB19,600,000 = 1% 49%
Technology Limitec®*2 (note (i) company industrialisation ARE
HERRERMEERAL mEl - BRAT BEEZL 19,600,000 70
Nae (M)
Nantong China Minsheng Chin, limited liability  Construction RMB100,000,000 = 60% 40%
DIT Limited*2 (note (j) company industrialisation AR#
HREPREREERRER wEl - BRAR BEEZY 100,000,000 70

R (M)

*  For identification purpose only
A Registered as wholly foreign-owned enterprises under PRC

law

@ Registered as domestic limited liability companies under PRC law
# Registered as a limited liability company (invested by Hong
Kong) under PRC law

note (i):

The Group holds 97%, 51%, 90%, 51%, 60%, 51% and
60% equity interest of Nanjing China Minsheng DIT
Limited*, Changsha China Minsheng DIT Limited*,
China Minsheng Drawin Technology (Pingdingshan)
Limited*, China Minsheng DrawinTechnology (Jiaozhou)
Limited*, Qingdao China Minsheng DIT Limited*, Xiangxi
China Minsheng Drawin Technology Limited* and
Nantong China Minsheng DIT Limited*, respectively.
The voting right shall be exercised in proportion to the
capital contribution, according to the Company Articles.
Except for modification of Company Article, increase or
decrease of registered capital, company merger or
division and change of corporate structure, a resolution
to be made by the shareholders general assembly shall
be subject to adoption by more than half of the voting
rights held by the shareholders. Nanjing China
Minsheng DIT Limited*, Changsha China Minsheng DIT
Limited*, China Minsheng Drawin Technology
(Pingdingshan) Limited*, China Minsheng
DrawinTechnology (Jiaozhou) Limited*, Qingdao China
Minsheng DIT Limited*, Xiangxi China Minsheng Drawin
Technology Limited* and Nantong China Minsheng DIT
Limited* are owned by the Company and are
accounted for as subsidiaries by virtue of the Group's
control over it.

* EHRES
N RIEFBLEZE MBI BB

WP BE%EF M BENEREERF]
WRIEFEERZMBEREERA(EER
A2F)

B - AEBARFAERATRERTEREBRA
A ROPPRERGSEVRERAR - PRE
REHECFTEL)BR AR « RREREHR(BM)
BRAF - EEFRERSERNKARAR -
HMEFRERMEAREFAAMEATRE
REERHEBRAEI7% * 51% * 90% * 51%
60% * 51% F160% KA HE - RIZQ A ZETR « IRE
EIREBRFIRE B L AIITERIRKE - BRisEk
ARER - EMKERDETMER - ARG H
AN RERERAREEIN  BREASREAL
REZDZ— A ERREORRREB - ERAE
SEUHERTPRERSENRERAT - &Y
PRERTERNRKARAR  PRERBHE(F
BU)ARAR - FREKBE (BN ARA
A SEHRERTEREARAR - MESR
RERMEAREARAFAMEETREREE
MEAERABMNEGE  ZETARHAQH
HRILIEANERRSIE -

* 0
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 &&= T —AFE+_-_A=+—HILFE

23 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

b)  Companies excluded from consolidation: b)

Details of the companies excluded from consolidation
during the year ended 31 December 2019 are as

23 MIBATIMNER @)

EHRERE NBERRH QA :

“E-NFTA=THLEFE-

Eﬁé%ﬁﬁﬁﬁm BRI

follows:
Place of Effective equity
incorporation Issued share interest held
Name and operation capital before disposal  Principal activities
AR B 3 K HE AT
a8 EEE BRTRA ERRAERZ IEER
Indirect interest:
R
Zhoukou Jianheng® China Ordinary 100%  Construction
RMB10,000,000 industrialisation
ARgfE HE LiEk BEEX
AR #10,000,0007T
Haikou China Minsheng DIT Limited*® China Ordinary 100%  Construction
RMB60,000,000 industrialisation
BORREREENRARAA HE TR BEEEL
AR 60,000,0007C
Hangzhou Linan China Minsheng DIT China Ordinary 60%  Construction
Limited*® RMB45,000,000 industrialisation
ML RERBERRBRAR HE LiEk BEEEL
AR # 45,000,000 75
Nanning China Minsheng DIT Limited*®  China Ordinary 100%  Construction
RMB650,000 industrialisation
HETRERBENBRARAR HE Liak BEEEL
AR 650,000 7T

*  For identification purpose only
@ Registered as domestic limited liability companies under PRC law.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HE—Z

24 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

A B A5 R R B R (48)

—NEFETZA=T—RLFE

24 URnBEESFEBHEZHHAR
mNEMEE

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include NAREEFEEEES T ABENSRE
the following: ERETHEE

As at As at

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

R=-B—-hE&E R-ZT—N\F

+=A=+—-8 +=-A=+—8

HK$'000 HK$'000

F#ET F#&T

Unlisted equity Instruments (note (a)) e L= A (Mt @) 43,480 23,967
As at 31 December 2019, equity instruments are related to M@ : R=F-NF+=-A=+—H #HFIAR

note (a):
investments in seven (2018: two) unlisted companies in
Mainland China which are measured at fair value.

25 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

TxﬁﬁALA AABEF BT EARENLR (=
T—N\F : WE)FELTAREM -

25 HERREZEEH

As at As at
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
R=ZZB—-hE RZZ—N\F
+=A=+—-H +=A=+—H
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET

Cash at bank and on hand RITFERLRFHEES
— Denominated in HKD — LAUBITEHAE 5,299 14,050
— Denominated in RMB — UAREEHE 77,116 85,535
— Denominated in USD — UAETTEHE - 11,217
82,415 110,802
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 &&= - —"E+-_A=+—HILFE

26 RESTRICTED CASH 26 BIRFIRE
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2019 2018

R=B—h& RZT-N\F
+=A=+-8 +=A=+-H

HK$'000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Restricted cash ZR&RE
— Deposit for bank borrowings (note (a))  — $RITEEIRES (H1:F @) 114,000 130,000
— Deposit for bank notes — RITEERES 10,371 23,588
124,371 153,588
note (a): As at 31 December 2019, certificate of deposit of HK$114.0 Hit@: N-ZZT—AFE+=-A=+—8  TFRE1140
million was pledged as collateral for the Group’s borrowings BEATDERERREBERNDIBESE
HK$99.9 million. TCHYIE )
27 SHARE CAPITAL 27 BA
Authorised shares EE RS
Number of
authorised shares
EERHBEE
As at 31 December 2018 and 2019 R-EBE—-NER-—FT—HNE+-_A=+—H 25,000,000,000
Issued shares EERMGEE
Number of  Ordinary shares
issued shares (nominal value)
(at HK$0.1 each) HK$'000
ERTRHOEE AR (mE)
(BR0.17%87T) FET
As at 1 January 2018, R-ZFE—-—NF—H—B8"
31 December 2018 and —E—N\F+=-_A=+—8-
31 December 2019 rE=F-NF+=ZA=+—H 11,209,602,920 1,120,960
All the shares issued rank pari passu in all respects. FIBEETRNESE T EAZE RS -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 &2 —E—hE+-_A=+—HILFE

28 RESERVES ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS
OF THE GROUP

28 AEKEHERAEILMFEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

WG 2PN 3
Contributed
Share Exchange surplus Other Accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total
R EE EXRE SARBEE HittfE RitER ekl
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ki3 FET FET FET FET FET FET
FOR THE YEAR ENDED BZE-Z-NE1+=A
31 December 2019 St-HLEE
At 1 January 2019 RZZ-nF-A—-H 863,347 (26,262) 131,166 29,439 (347,744) 649,946
Comprehensive loss: 2EEE:
Profit for the year FRET - - - - 110,749 110,749
Other comprehensive (loss):  Ht 27 (F8) :
Currency translation difference  4MNEIFTEZZE - (50,532) = = = (50,532)
Total comprehensive (oss)/income  £R2E (E18) /i
for the year wm = (50,532) - - 110,749 60,217
Transactions with owners: HEBAETHRS
Capital injection EIN-K 322 - - - - 322
Total transactions with owners — BEEA AETNR 5 322 - - - - 322
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NF+=A
E=F 863,669 (76,794) 131,166 29,439 (236,995) 710,485
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28 RESERVES ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS
OF THE GROUP (continued)

28 AEKEHEEAELGEE®

Attributable to owners of the Company

KARAEE RS
Contributed
Share  Exchange surplus Other Accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total
R EE ERfiE BARBGHE HitvfitE RiEE et
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
izt FET FET FET FET FAT FAT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED BE2-2-N\E+ZA
31 December 2018 =+-HILEE
At 1 January 2018 R-E-\F—HA—H 859,695 77976 131,166 28,631 (375,171) 722,297
Comprehensive loss: 2EFE:
Profit for the year ERER = = - - 27,427 27,427
Other comprehensive (loss):  E# 27 (Fi8) :
Currency translation difference N E R (104,238) - - - (104,238)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income  £R2 & (1) /I
for the year B = (104,238) - - 27,427 (76,811)
Transactions with owners: REFARTHRS
Disposal of ownership interests in -~ H &M B A 71E A g
subsidiaries without loss of [Nz ¥Rl
control - - - 1,180 - 1,180
Capital injection EIN- K 3,652 - - 372 - 3280
Total transactions with owners BB AETNRS 3,652 - - 808 - 4,460
At 31 December 2018 RZE-NE+ZA
ET=E 863,347 (26,262) 131,166 29439 (347,744) 649,946
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29 NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

The non-controlling interests of the Group are as follows:

29 JEIERGRERS

REBAFEZRERIAT ¢

For the year ended 31 December 2019 &2 —E—hE+-_A=+—HILFE

As at As at
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
RZB—hFE RZZ—N\F
+=—B=+—-8B +=—A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$000
FHET FET

Changsha China Minsheng DIT Limited B REREDER T
("CM Changsha”) BRARI(TERAPRER]) 544,186 542,250

Jiaozhou China Minsheng DIT Limited BN RER B ERH
BRAT] 37,519 26,115

Nanjing China Minsheng DIT Limited ERPRERSER
BRAF] 5,893 5,032

Hangzhou Linan China Minsheng DIT MR L P RE R &R

Limited BERARA - 34,226
587,598 607,623

193



DIT Group Limited 2019 Annual Report
EREERNREERRRAT | ZE-NEFR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B ISR AR M EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 &&= - —"E+-_A=+—HILFE

29 NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued) 29 3JE3ERBH#EZS (&)

Summarised financial information on a subsidiary BEEAFEREZVHEBATINIEER
with material non-controlling interests M=

Set out below are the summarised financial information for TXFHINPEESFEEHAEEMSBEKX
the CM Changsha that has non-controlling interests that HFEIE R E R T TS BRI E o

are material to the Group.

Summarised statement of financial position — ERRERUE —hERYD
CM Changsha

As at AS at
31 December 31 December
2019 2018

R-B-AE RNZT-N\F
t=A=+—-8 +=A=+—"A

HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET

Current TE
Assets BE 339,193 251,311
Liabilities = (59,780) (36,222)
Total current net assets BRE)EEFE 279,413 215,089
Non-current FRE
Assets BE 618,228 655,434
Liabilities afE = -
Total non-current net assets BIEREEEFE 618,228 655,434
Net assets EEFE 897,641 870,523
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 &2 —E—hE+-_A=+—HILFE

29 NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued) 29 3E}ERRHEZS &)

Summarised statement of financial position — MBERRERBE —PREED (&)
CM Changsha (Continued)

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018

HE=2-AEF BE-TN\F
+=A=+-8 +=A=t+-8

LFE IEFE

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Revenue WA 85,178 42,357

Gain/(Loss) before income tax BRETEH AT (EE) 3,703 (18,690)

Income tax credit FriSfiE R 316 548

Other comprehensive income Hi 2wz _ _

Total comprehensive gain/(loss) 2EWE (8 A8 4,019 (18,142)
Total comprehensive gain/(loss) PEREFEREZNEZE

allocated to non-controlling interests Wiz (&i8) 458 1,969 (8,890)

Dividends paid to non-controlling interests  [A)3E 12 AR AE 25 R < Y A% 2 - =
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 &&= - —"E+-_A=+—HILFE

29 NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued) 29 3JE3ERBH#EZS (&)

Summarised statement of financial position — MBERRERBE —PEED (&)
CM Changsha (Continued)

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December

2019

2018

BE_Z2-hF BE-F\F

+=A=+—-8 +-—A=+—8H
IEEE HFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Cash flows used in operating activities KEEBFMANRESRE (26,919) (22,947)
Cash flows used in investing activities REEFANRESRE (25) (30,788)
Cash flows from financing activities BMEEBAMENRSRE 28,787 55,808
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents R4 RIS Z(EE B L HI1F5E 1,843 2,079
. P
30 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 30 EEFRSH
As at AS at
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
RZB-hE RKRZZ—N\HF
+=—HA=+—8B +=—A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
Deferred tax assets EEBIEEE
— to be recovered after more than — BREBE 1218 A B Uk
12 months 12,037 11,521
— to be recovered within 12 months — B 1218 A AL E 32,936 25,921
44,973 37,442
Deferred tax liabilities EEHRIEAE
— 10 be settled after more than 12 months — Y& B@ 1218 A B B (1,021) (651)
— 10 be settled within 12 months — B 1218 B RE (11,895) (7,359)
(12,916) (8,010)
Deferred tax assets — net EERIREE — F58 32,057 29,432
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30 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued) 30 BRIEFSH @
The gross movement on the deferred income tax account ELFTEREE AEEHmT
is as follows:
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018

HE-Z2-h&F 82 \#%
t=A=+—-8 +=A=+—"H

LEE EFE

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FEr

At beginning of the year RED 29,432 12,789
Credited to profit or loss (Note 12) sFABz= (FaE12) 3,900 17,812
Decrease due to disposal of subsidiaries mEMH B A E R (455) -
Currency translation differences INEEYTE R (820) (1,169)
At the end of the year RER 32,057 29,432
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 &&= - —"E+-_A=+—HILFE

30 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued) 30 IREFTBH @)
The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities RBE_E—hNhFER-_ZE—N\F+=H
for the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, without —t+t—HULEFE  BEEMESHEENBED
taking into consideration the offsetting of balance within gE)(WET MER — TSl AR A IE
the same tax jurisdiction are as follows: BAEER) AT
Deferred income tax liabilities EEFEHAR

Depreciation

Government of fixed
Grant assets Total
EEEE
BURREB weE FCb L]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FAET F#ET
At 1 January 2019 R-ZE-h&—A—H 6,757 1,253 8,010
Charged to profit or loss FTABR 707 4,534 5,241
Currency translation differences INEEITE =5 (160) (105) (265)
At 31 December 2019 R=ZF-NIF
+=-A=+-—~H 7,304 5,682 12,986
At 1 January 2018 R-ZE—-N\F¥—HF—H 7,962 - 7,962
Charged to profit or 10sS HKkER 153 1,300 1,453
Currency translation differences GNEE I & = R (1,358) (47) (1,405)
At 31 December 2018 R-ZZB-—N\&E
+=-A=+—~H 6,757 1,253 8,010
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 &2 —E—hE+-_A=+—HILFE

30 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued) 30 EEFREH @)
Deferred income tax assets ELEFREHEE
Elimination of
intra-group
unrealised
Movements 2E Tax losses profit Leases Total
EHEER
ARERER
BBEE A HE By
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
At 1 January 2019 R-E-h&E—-A—-H 22,399 15,043 - 37,442
Credited to profit or loss AR 6,624 2,369 148 9,141
Decrease due to disposal of HENRBAR MR
subsidiaries (455) - - (455)
Currency translation differences SN E =48 (767) (315) (3) (1,085)
At 31 December 2019 R=F-AF+t=A=1-H 27,801 17,097 145 45,043
At 1 January 2018 RZZE-NE—-HA-H 17,092 3,659 - 20,751
Credited to profit or loss FABE 7,276 11,989 - 19,265
Currency translation differences INEITE ZEE (1,969) (605) - (2,574)
At 31 December 2018 RZEB-N\E+=A=1+-H 22,399 15,043 - 37,442
Deferred tax assets arising from the unused tax losses have W71 B SRR B M L EIE T IE & E AR
been recognised to the extent that it is probable that FECA  AAXDABRESEEEANERAE
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow such EHTEEEC N REMIERER -

deferred tax assets to utilised this year in the consolidated
financial statements.

The Group did not recognise deferred tax assets relating to RZE-NF+ZA=1+—H  TEELE
unused tax losses of approximately HK$149.5 million on 31 HRAEEARSARIBEBNELCHIBEELN
December 2019 (31 December 2018: approximately 1W5FEET(ZE—NF+=ZRA=+—
HK$140.0 million). Among such tax losses HK$122.7 million H:#1400B&BT) - WEHIEBETH
(31 December 2018: HK$113.2 million) have no expiry dates 127888 T( 22— N NF+=A=+—
and the remaining will expire within five years. H: 1132885 m) WEDHE - MK TS

RAFREE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 &&= - —"E+-_A=+—HILFE

31 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

31 ESZRHMEMNRIEA

As at As at

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

R=ZB-hE RKRZZT—N\F

+=A=+-H +=A=+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHEIT

Trade payables — third parties BSRNFIE—F=H 216,833 124,382

Trade payables — related parties B ENFIE—EER 6,162 5,135

Notes payable ERRE 24,911 114,365
Accrued payable for property, plant and YIE -~ B KRR EERER

equipment construction — third parties FIE—F=H 40,965 40,970
Accrued payable for property, plant and Y B &R EEREN

equipment construction — related parties WIE — ER 46,194 66,238

Amounts due to related parties FESTRAE TS FUR 48,482 4,611

Accrued tax payable FEET IR RS IR 28,257 31,940

Deposits by 9,397 8,639

Accrued payroll st ITE 8,702 6,264

Interest payable FERTF S 58 375

Others HAth 28,151 10,894

458,112 413,813
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 &2 —E—hE+-_A=+—HILFE

31 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

The ageing analysis of trade payables as at 31 December
2019 and 2018 based on the invoice issue date were as

31 ESREMEMTE @)

EORNRBER-_ZE-—NFR-_FT-NF
T A=1+—HAZRAEZRREHREDN

follows: AT
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
R-B-hE RZZTE-N\F
+=—HA=+—8 +=—A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE FET
Less than 1 year PR —F 170,503 129,517
110 2 years —EMF 52,492 -
222,995 129,517

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the fair values of trade
and other payables approximate their carrying amounts.

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the carrying amounts of
trade and other payables are primarily denominated in
Renminbi.

R NFERE—NF+_A=+—
B REMEMZFENAAEBELEERE
ERIEEEI

H m

R NFERE—NF+_A=+—
A Z5REMEMKENRMEEZZNUA
RE&sHE -
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32

B 5 SRR B R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #E-T—AF+-_A=+—RHIFE
BORROWINGS 32 {88
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
R=ZB—-HhE RZZT—N\F
+=ZA=+—-H +-—A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FETL
Non-current, secured: JEBNHER - HEA -
— Bank borrowings —RITER 359,463 361,790
— Other financial institution borrowings — Hth e R EER 12,280 -
Non-current, unsecured: JEBNHER - I -
— Bank borrowings —RITER 20,094 -
— Other financial institution borrowings — Hith e mEBER - 22,826
391,837 384,616
Less: Current portion of non-current B REEZRRBIEE S
borrowings (268,760) (43,940)
Non-current, total JERNER - 4AGt 123,077 340,676
Current, secured: BNER - I -
— Bank borrowings —RITER 82,889 77,721
Current, unsecured: BNHR - K3 -
— Bank borrowings —RITER = 34,239
82,889 111,960
Current portion of non-current borrowings & Bf& 2 &9 ENEAZE 5> 268,760 43,940
Current, total BNER - 5T 351,649 155,900

202

notes:

@

These bank borrowings of the Group are secured by property,

plant and equipment (Note 15), right-of-use assets (Note 16) and
restricted cash deposit (Note 26) of the Group and/or
guaranteed by subsidiaries of the Company or related parties

(Note 36(c)).

@

FEBGSFRTEENREENE - BE KK

1

(FifFE15) - EREEE (IF16) RZRHIREF
R (B 3 26) 1R AR Kok A 2 BB /B8 22 7] ok BB

77 (B5E36(C)) FRELHELR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 H#&Z T~ NFE+_-_A=+—HILFE

32 BORROWINGS (continued) 32 E&E @

notes: (Continued) Wizt - (48)

(b)  The borrowings are all denominated in RMB and their fair values (b  FAEEEHUARBIE  RAAEBEREER
approximate their carrying amounts. BEEE -

() As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s current borrowings (© RZF-NF+-A=+—8 AEENRKFE
included borrowings with principal amounts of HK$52.7 BEERERACEANR/BEET(ZZE—N\F+=
million(31 December 2018: HK$99.2 million) which the Group has A=+—H 9 2BBET)MEE - ~NEBEMZ
breached certain terms and conditions, as set out in the BEERE TR R GG (HREBEE ) -
respective borrowing agreements among which HK$19.5 million HPV5S5EBAEATRER-_Z_FEF+=-A
were originally matured beyond 31 December 2020. =+—BZ®EIE-

(d  Asat31December 2019 and 2018, the Group's borrowings were @ RZFB-HAEFRZFE-N\FF+ZA=+—H &K
repayable as follows: SENEEERBRAOT

As at As at
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
R-ZB-IF RZF—) \i
+=A=+—H TZA=+—
HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FAET
within 1 year —FR 351,649 155,900
Later than 1 year but within 2 years ZR—FRLRMEF 78,702 283,897
Later than 2 years but within 5 years SRMERIRAEF 44,375 56,779
474,726 496,576

(€)  The weighted average effective interest rates as at 31 December € BEZF-AFR-F-N\FT-A=+—AHN
2019 and 2018 were as follows: tufgli@;\ﬁ%&ﬂi«_\ﬁur :

As at As at

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

R-ZB-NIF RZZE—N\F

+=A=+-8H +=A=+—~H

Bank borrowings RITIERE 5.08% 4.98%
Other financial institution borrowings Hib e BB ER 4.40% 4.40%
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZEZ—Z—

B 5 SRR B R ()

NEFE+A=T—HILEFE

33 GAIN ON DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 33 HEMEBATMNIES

204

2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\EF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHEITL
Gain on disposal of Zhoukou Jianheng (note) H & & M etk zs (#f:) 120,497 =
Gain on disposal of Haikou HEBOFRRERSERR
China Minsheng DIT Limited BRA A A ES 13,309 -
Gains on disposal of other subsidiaries &S E b B A B A MR 372 -
134,178 =
note: gain on disposal of Zhoukou Jianheng BtaE - HE RO RE 2 WE
2019
—E-AF
HK$’000
FETT
Net assets disposed of: HEREEFE
Right-of-use assets FRAEEE 672,105
Trade and other receivables and prepayments H 5 Rk H AU GRIE LA R TR R 8,909
Cash and cash equivalents ReMIREEEY 244
Lease liabilities HEaE (336,047)
Borrowings 5N (334,076)
Trade and other payables B 5 R HEMER IR (4,232)
6,903
Fair value of 1% retained equity interest AR EBER AIBZEH 1% R B A AE R
accounted for as financial assets at fair value ARBEESREEAR
through profit or loss (1,251)
Gain on disposal of Zhoukou Jianheng HERDRENKRET AZHiEn
recognised in profit or loss 120,497
Currency transaction differences BEEHBmE=E (2,487)
Consideration of 99% equity interest LAIR & 2 5 99% BEHE D AR (B
satisfied by cash 123,662
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 H#&Z T~ NFE+_-_A=+—HILFE

33 GAIN ON DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

On 20 December 2019, the Group disposed 99% equity
interests in Zhoukou Jianheng to Henan Jigang Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd. ("Henan Jigang") at a consideration
of RMB111 million (equivalent to HK$124 million
approximately) (the “Disposal”). The Company subsequently
noted that on 2 January 2020, Henan Jigang disposed 99%
equity interests in Zhoukou Jianheng at a consideration
of RMB111 million (equivalent to HK$124 million
approximately) to Zhoukou Jianzhi Real Estate Development
Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of Central China Real Estate Limited
("CCRE"). CCRE's ultimate controlling shareholder is as the
same as the Company’s. To the best knowledge of the
directors of the Company, information and belief and
having made all reasonable inquiries, Henan Jigang had not
entered, nor had it proposed to enter, into any agreement,
arrangement, understanding or undertaking (whether
formal or informal and whether express or implied) with
any connected person of the Company (including, without
limitation, CCRE and its subsidiaries) in respect of the
Disposal or in respect of Zhoukou Jianheng at the time of
entering into the Disposal, and Henan Jigang and its
ultimate beneficial owners were third parties independent
of the Company and connected persons of the Company at
the time of entering into the Disposal. Thus, the Disposal
did not constitute a connected transaction of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents
in respect of the disposal of Zhoukou Jianheng is as follows:

33 HEMEQTNWES @)

—NF+ZAZ+AH  XEEURE
ARBIMBET(HERLN 1248 8% T)
m) 7] 7 £ 55 E R 3 A BR A R ([0 R
W) HERDEBEONHRE(LEES
B e AREHEBEER  RZT_TF—
AZB umERmEEMERDERAR
(MExHE])MWEBARRE LD REREER
BERARILE TREOEER 9% MBHE - K
BRARE 1M BETEERN 124888
TC) o FEEEMNE K R AR PR AR AR R B R A R4
B e MADNRERA -« A& KATERIED
—YEEENE RN ELESREE - i/
7 8 N B AR R B BAEA T (BIEET
PRAEREME REME AR FT R 7
FREBALESENERLERRZENG
3 LH - ERmIAHE(ERERKIEER
NN ) o E R E SRR En
BABBYRARRIRARREEATHE
=7 Bt BIEETARAEUUAE - HE
ZIEW B AR BIRREERS °

FRAHERANRENR S RASEEMRA
/?W%E\E’] *ﬁZZDT .

2019

—E-NF

HK$’000

FET

Cash proceeds received BUIR ST 66,815
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of k- E’Jfﬁﬁ&fﬁ g2 va?@J (244)

Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in HERFOZENRE S RIBSEEYRA

respect of the disposal of Zhoukou Jianheng FEE 66,571
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 &&= - —"E+-_A=+—HILFE

34 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

206

(a)

Cash used in operations

34 GAERELRERMEE

(a) KEFMARE

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018

HE=2-NEF BE-F\F
+=A=+-8 +=A=+-8

IEFE EFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Profit before income tax FR P15 30 A A 138,935 26,243
Adjustments for: T
Depreciation e 72,454 50,360
Amortisation of right-of-use assets FAEEERE 23,969 -
Amortisation of land use rights o {5 R AR 5 = 10,107
Amortisation of intangible assets A EE 1,518 401
Fair value gains on investment KREMEMENARD
properties BEKE (631) (367)
Shares of (gains)/losses from associates  FEEEEZ A F] (Yzs),”
&5 (4,491) 1,329
Gains on disposal of subsidiaries HERTE A R W (134,178) -
Losses on disposal of fixed assets HEBREEERE 439 930
Losses on disposal of right-of-use assets H&{# AEEEER 5,235 -
Fair value gains on financial assets at NAREBEFEBREED
fair value through profit and loss STABEMNEMEEZ
AAEERE - (2,789)
Provision for impairment of inventories 17 & R E % E 84 1,324
Provision for impairment of trade and B 5 R E b FEUFRIR
other receivables BB 2,837 1,633
Interest income from bank deposits RITIFRHF EHA (5,100) (2,359)
Finance costs BbE A AR 25,928 9,155
Operating profits before changes in LIEESHERNKSERER
working capital 126,999 95,967
Decrease/(increase) in restricted cash ZRRAIE SR (3 m) 12,701 (24,036)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERL,(Em) 6,339 (18,810)
Increase in trade and other receivables 8 5 & H b e RIE A &
and prepayments B R IB L N (187,266) (273,122)
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 N Eoh e FRIE N 45,601 147,197
Increase in contract liabilities AHBEEM 14,796 17,558
Cash generated/(used) operations wEES /(TR RE 19,170 (55,246)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 &2 —E—hE+-_A=+—HILFE

34 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 34 HEHERERMT @
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
(b) Liabilities arising from financing activities (b) BMETBELENEE
Other assets Liahilities from financing activities
HhEE HETEELNAR

Obligations ~ Obligations
inder under
finance ~finance Lease Lease
Restricted  Borrowings Borowings  leasedue  leasedue  liabilities  liabilities
cashfor duewithin  dueafter within after  duewithin  dueafter  Interest
Cash  horrowings 1 year 1 year 1 year 1 year 1 year Tyear  payable Total
-£ -Ef -£R -Ef
FRA - - HERE  NERE  ERE  HEEE
B¢ BORE  WERE  UEgE il i af 8 EfAR 3t
HS 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
FAT FAT FAT FAT FAT FAL FAT A1 FAT FAT

Net debt as at W-E-NE12R
31 December 2018 St-RHFER 10802 130,000 (1559000 (340476) (1.524) (2880) - - (375) 260,553)
Change in accounting policy - &3t BR%H = - - - 151 20 805 (30 - (%69
HZE-1fF
At1 January 2019 (Restated) -7 - R (&) 10802 130,000 (155900 (340,678) = = (18,059) (23048) (379) (297.250)
Cash flows REng (24281) (16,000) 730 (62015) = = = = 30 (28968)
Acquistions — lease abiites U —BEEE = - - - - - 7087 001 718
Foreign exchange adjusiments B3 5% (4,108 = - 10854 = = - - = 678
Other canges Epg -
—Reclassfication fomafter -~ — B—-E4EHAE
1year towithin 1 year E-ER = (268,760) 268,760 - - = = - -
— Reclassficaton from —BHERE
Obligaions under finance~~ EHAEE
lease o ease fbiltes iEE - - - . - - . } 3
Net deht as at ik 3 g
31 December 2019 ZT-ANEER 82415 00 @169 (307 - - (10968) (3007 B8 (29234
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 &&= - —"E+-_A=+—HILFE

35 COMMITMENTS

(@) Capital commitments

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, capital
expenditure contracted for but not yet incurred is as

35 KiE

(a) EAREE
R-E—NER-_F—NF+=-HA
—+—H8 BEFHEEKREENER

follows: LT
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2019 2018

R=®—hE R-F-N\%
+=A=+—8 +=A=t+—8

HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Property, plant and equipment M - BB R 107,221 83,300

(b) Non-cancellable operating lease commitments
From 1 January 2019, the Group has recognised right-
of-use assets for leases, except for short-term leases
and low-value leases, see note 16 for further
information. Minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases related to short-term
and low-value leases not recognized in the financial

statements as follows:

(b) BABUHELHEE
BT NF—-A—HBE A58ED
ERMERREEE CHHEE RKE
EHRERN 2E—FFBRME 16 -
REAATBUEREHEE - KRR H
RATER 2B MEEERERREN
RIEBEEMNFKAT

As at

31 December
2019
R-ZE—IF
+=—A=+-—H
HK$’000
FHT

Within 1 year

—FRA

197

The future aggregate minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases as at 31 December

2018 are as follows:

R-FB—N\F+-A=+—8 RE
A BUK G S R 0 B R SRR
SRBIT

As at

31 December
2018
RZZE—N\F
+—-A=+—H
HK$'000

FEIT

Within 1 year

—FLAR

7,835
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n'.F

B 5 R R RE ()

—NEFETZA=T—RLFE

36 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36 BAEFRS
(@) Name and relationship with related parties (a) BEIMNBEREERER
Name Relationship
£ RS

Tianjin Drawin Technology Limited
(formerly known as Tianjin China
Minsheng Drawin Technology Limited)

REEREERRBR AT (ATE - RE
HRERBHRBR AR

Drawin Intelligent Manufacture Technology
Industry Group Limited (formerly known
as China Minsheng Drawin Technology
Industry Limited)

FEREERBEESE lﬁﬁE T (AT :
PREKBREXARA

China Minsheng Drawin Construction
Technology Group Company Limited
PRERBERHMEEEER QA

China Minsheng Drawin Culture Co., Ltd.
MRERXEIBERAE

China Minsheng Drawin New Material
Company Limited
PRERFFMBR AR

China Minsheng Drawin Architectural
Design Limited
PREREERABRAF

Controlled by the same ultimate controlling shareholder
Z[E—

ERATE RS I SR

Controlled by the same ultimate controlling shareholder

[R] — S AR P2 A AL SR A 5

XA

Controlled by the same ultimate controlling shareholder

AR AT iR R SR )

><'l\

Controlled by the same ultimate controlling shareholder
2 [A — AR AR AR R 1

Controlled by the same ultimate controlling shareholder

] — SR A4 A% R BR 42

><'H

Controlled by the same ultimate controlling shareholder

ZR—

B 47 5 AR R
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 &&= - —"E+-_A=+—HILFE

36 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS
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36 BAESFRS &)

(Continued)

(@) Name and relationship with related parties () BEEFTHNEBREHERE)
(Continued)
Name Relationship
£B 2RES

China Minsheng Drawin Co., Ltd.
PRERBRIQF

Hunan China Minsheng Drawin Green
Construction Investment Limited
MR RERGZEIREGR QA

Jiacheng (Holding) Investment Limited
= (ER)HEBRAR

SRE Group Limited
FEEEBERAA

YMCI China Minsheng Kunming
Technology Group Co., Ltd.
EmBktREERZAR AR

Zhejiang China Minsheng Drawin
Technology Company Limited
IR ERERBIEAR AR

Controlled by the same ultimate controlling shareholder
R — B AR AR R A%

Controlled by the same ultimate controlling shareholder
2[R — B AR AR AR R AR

Controlled by the same ultimate controlling shareholder
X [A) — A AR AR AR R A

Controlled by the same ultimate controlling shareholder
B — S A AR AR R A

An associate company of the Group

IS S

koW

i

An associate company of the Group

ZAS S

koW

i
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A B A5 R R B R (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 &2 —E—hE+-_A=+—HILFE

36 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

36 AEFRXS #®)

(Continued)
(b) Transactions with related parties (b) EERAELHRS
During the year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, REBEZZE-—NEFER=ZZT—N\F+=
the Group has the following related party A=+—BLFE AXEBEBEUTH
transactions: BHRS
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
BE-Z-NF BE_ZT)\F
+=A=+-B +=ZR=1+-H
LEE FEE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAET
Payment on behalf of related parties by the Group ZAEBERRBEH X
China Minsheng Drawin Construction Technology Group ~ R EERERFRREEER A A
Company Limited 4,177 25,308
China Minsheng Drawin Co., Ltd. RRERARAR 2,135 34
China Minsheng Drawin New Material Company Limited R R&RFHER A 50 2,098
Tianjin Drawin Technology Limited REERBERRBRAT - 332
China Minsheng Drawin Architectural Design Limited FRERBERERLTE - 46
Hunan China Minsheng Drawin Green Construction MR RERGREE
Investment Limited BRAR] - 15
6,362 27,833
Payment on behalf of the Group by related parties EEFRREEEX
China Minsheng Drawin Construction Technology Group ~ #REREZRRREE
Company Limited BRATA 857 1,69
China Minsheng Drawin Building Technology Group HREREENREE
Company Limited BRAA] - 101
857 1,797
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 &&= - —"E+-_A=+—HILFE

2019 Annual Report
ZE-NEER

36 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

36 BAESFRS &)

ERETNXZ (&)
RBE_ZT-NFR-_ZE-N\F+=
A=+—HALFE AEEEUTH

(b) Transactions with related parties (Continued) (b)
During the year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018,
the Group has the following related party

212

transactions: BHRS
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
BE2-Z-NF HEZZT)\F
+=A=t-B +=ZA=+-AH
LEE EFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Supply of prefabricated construction components A&EHERRERRRE
and products by the Group BU4RER
China Minsheng Drawin Construction Technology Group R &R R EE
Company Limited BRAR 116,411 122,149
YMCI China Minsheng Kunming Technology Group Co., Ltd.  EEE+tREEEEEER AT 11,751 2916
Zhejiang China Minsheng Drawin Technology Company IR RERNBEAERDA
Limited 11,227 11,246
China Minsheng Drawin Architectural Design Limited RRERBERFERAA 1,388 =
China Minsheng Drawin Co., Ltd.. RRERERAT 65 39
China Minsheng Drawin Building Technology Group FREREERREER
Company Limited BRAT - 6,994
140,842 143,345
Provision of engineering, procurement and BEARUNIE MIR
construction general contracting services BEARERY
by related parties
China Minsheng Drawin Construction Technology Group R &R R EE
Company Limited BB 140,329 392,879
China Minsheng Drawin Architectural Design Limited PRERBERFERAA - 1,301
China Minsheng Drawin Co., Ltd. hRERARAT - 355
140,329 394,535
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A B A5 R R B R (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 &2 —E—hE+-_A=+—HILFE

36 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(b)

Transactions with related parties (Continued) (b)
During the year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018,
the Group has the following related party

36 AEFRXS #®)

ERETNXZ (&)
RBE_ZT-NFR-_ZE-N\F+=
A=+t—HALFE AEEEUTH

transactions: BHRS
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
BE-2-hE HZ2-Z-)\F
t=A=t-B +-A=1-F
LEE HEE
HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET
Revenue from granting licenses to related parties  [EEE & HERE A
ERERSRE
YMCI China Minsheng Kunming Technology Group EmBRTFREENEER AT
Co., Ltd. - 36,874
China Minsheng Drawin Architectural Design Limited PRERBERFERLA - 179
- 37,053
Leasing of properties to related parties HENETHER
China Minsheng Drawin Construction Technology Group R EEREHRNBEEER AR
Company Limited 3,693 =
China Minsheng Drawin Architectural Design Limited FRERBERERANT 3,500 =
China Minsheng Drawin New Material Company Limited A RERFM AR A A) 2,529 890
Drawin Intelligent Manufacture Technology Industry ERBENBEXSEERAA
Group Limited 1,220 =
China Minsheng Drawin Culture Co., Ltd. RRERXEIBRAR 744 =
11,686 890
Provision of design services by related parties BE L RERE RS
China Minsheng Drawin Architectural Design Limited mRARBERTARAR 2,405 =
2,405 =
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e B S SRR B R (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 &&= - —"E+-_A=+—HILFE

36 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

(c) Related-party balances

36 BAESFRS &)

() EBELHEER

As at As at
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
R-ZZB-hE RZZT-N\F
+=—HA=+—8 +=—H=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Amount due from related parties  FEUIRIH 5 7B
China Minsheng Drawin Construction  fFRZERZRBIREE
Technology Group Company Limited BRAR] 140,654 83,674
China Minsheng Drawin Architectural ~ FREREEKEE LT EE A A
Design Limited 7,874 1,934
YMCI China Mingsheng Kunming EEBETREERSAR
Technology Group Co., Ltd. NE] 7,360 5,705
China Minsheng Drawin New Material R RZERKFHMEE R A
Company Limited 6,704 3,666
Zhejiang China Minsheng Drawin I RERBHAR AR
Technology Company Limited 4,648 9,080
China Minsheng Drawin Co., Ltd. RRERXEGRAF 4,020 955
Drawin Intelligent Manufacture EREENEEXER
Technology Industry Group Limited BRAH 2,548 1,141
Hunan China Minsheng Drawin Green R RERGEREGR
Construction Investment Limited NG 1,036 1,059
China Minsheng Drawin Culture Co., FRERXEIAR AR
Ltd. 886 36
SRE Group Limited FESEERAA 1 1
China Minsheng Drawin Building FREFEERREER
Technology Group Company BRAA
Limited - 20,561
Jiacheng (Holding) Investment Limited =3 (3% 1R E R A 7 - 5,000
Tianjin Drawin Technology Limited FEBEREERRER AR - 59
175,731 132,871
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A B A5 R R B R (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 &2 —E—hE+-_A=+—HILFE

36 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

(c) Related-party balances (Continued)

36 AEFRXS #®)

() EREL#HEe(HE)

As at As at
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
R-ZZE-hE RZZ—N\HF
+=A=+—-H +=ZA=+—H
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
Amount due to related parties ETEERRE
China Minsheng Drawin Construction — f Rk EZRRI £ E
Technology Group Company Limited BRAT] 50,001 70,498
Drawin Intelligent Manufacture EREENMBEREEE
Technology Industry Group Limited BRAR] 44,877 =
China Minsheng Drawin Architectural AR REEKEELZTEE QA
Design Limited 2,725 2,327
Zhejiang China Minsheng Drawin IR RERBHEAR AR
Technology Company Limited 2,507 2,430
China Minsheng Drawin Co., Ltd. RREKERAT] 715 615
China Minsheng Drawin New Material R RZERFHMEGE A A
Company Limited 13 =
China Minsheng Drawin Building RRELKEERMEEESR
Technology Group Company Limited NE] - 114
100,838 75,985

note : The amounts due from and due to related parties are
unsecured, bear no interest and are repayable on

demand or within one year.

Guarantee/security for bank borrowings
provided by the related party

BfeE - R RN BRES FORREER 28R
BRBERFPN—FREE

BERRMNHBTEERER R

China Minsheng Drawin Co., Ltd. RRERERAF 193,686 173,476

Drawin Intelligent Manufacture Technology FREENBEXEEFRAA)
Industry Group Limited 20,094 -
213,780 173,476
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ARE MR (R

For the year ended 31 December 2019 &&= - —"E+-_A=+—HILFE

36 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36 BAEARS (&)
(Continued)
(d) Key management compensation d) FEEEAEMS
Key management includes directors (executive and SEBABBTEES (BTN IER
non-executive), chief financial officer, vice presidents 1) BRUMBE BIERBREED
and assistant presidents. The compensation paid or - REERBENKENEZTEER
payable to key management for employee services is AEHBIEFI R T ¢
shown below:
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018

BE-®-NF BE-T ¥
+=A=+-8 +=A=+-H

ILEE 1EFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FEr

Salaries and other short-term HehEMEHESET
employee benefits 4,994 6,202

Employer’s contribution to pension  {& = KRR & ST I 2R

scheme - 9
4,994 6,211
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A BTSRRI RE (48

For the year ended 31 December 2019 &2 —E—hE+-_A=+—HILFE

37 SUBSEQUENT EVENT

Following the outbreak of Coronavirus Disease 2019 (the
“COVID-19 outbreak”) in early 2020, a series of
precautionary and control measures have been
implemented across the PRC, including extension of the
Chinese New Year holiday nationwide, postponement of
work resumption after the Chinese New Year holiday in
some regions, certain level of restrictions and controls over
the travelling of people and traffic arrangements, and
heightening of hygiene and epidemic prevention
requirements in factories etc. Though it has affected the
business and economic activities of the Group to certain
extent, the Group's prefabricated construction factories
have resumed production gradually under such challenging
environment.

As at the date on which the consolidated financial
statements were authorised for issue, the Group was not
aware of any material adverse effects on the consolidated
financial statements as a result of the COVID-19 outbreak.
The Group will continue to observe the development of the
COVID-19 outbreak closely and evaluate its impact on the
financial position and operating results of the Group.

HARE1H

BEE - NERABEMREEMHARE ([F
BEMEEMLRE RS _ZFFIE
2EIEE - BREMT —RIIpEER - £
FrHESHELEREHRE  HESHHES
HBRELIRME HABRBMBET
RE RS LA K Dna& it 235 P ey BT A F0B
RERE BEE—TRELEXETAE
BEORBEMEELS EXAEEHTRREE
BB B R 5 70 m P B IR IR T R P IRAE A
E °

RIEEBHEAMBHRER A - AEERK
LI EAMNR ST IR R BN S MR
RAEEMERTHNZE - "AEEKFEZ Y
BT R ER RS M AR BERER
WHEEHAREHBRRREERRES
[EioZ
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 &&= T —AFE+_-_A=+—HILFE

38 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 38 AQFIMBEIKRRREESE
AND RESERVE MOVEMENTS OF THE

COMPANY
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
R=ZB-hE RKRZZ—N\HF
+=—A=+—8 +=—A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FETT FET
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets FkRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - BEMEE = 6
Investments in subsidiaries RETB A RIMIEE 14,271 14,271
14,271 14,277
Current assets REEE
Trade and other receivables and B 5N E MW IA D R TR
prepayments B 1,483,798 1,485,643
Cash and cash equivalents BekBEeEEIER 4,890 31,866
1,488,688 1,517,509
Total assets BWEE 1,502,959 1,531,786
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners of BRAREEAEEER
the Company
Share capital f& 7 1,120,960 1,120,960
Reserves (note (a)) {1 (et @) 376,357 408,400
Total equity REREE 1,497,317 1,529,360
LIABILITIES =R
Current liabilities REAE
Trade and other payables B 5 R E AR FIE 5,642 2,426
Total liabilities BERE 5,642 2,426
Total equity and liabilities EERAEEE 1,502,959 1,531,786
The statement of financial position of the Company was AR BRARR_ZE_FFWN A
approved by the Board of Directors on 22 April 2020 and ‘Jr H ﬁ“%%??ﬁt/& WHATESEAE
was signed on its behalf by: EEEEE
Wu Po Sum Guo Weigiang HRAR SpER
Director Director E E
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A B A5 R R B R (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 &2 —E—hE+-_A=+—HILFE

38 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 38 ARTIMB IR RRR GEEEE

AND RESERVE MOVEMENTS OF THE (&)
COMPANY (continued)
note: B -
(@) Reserve movements of the Company (@) ZAATANFEELE
Contributed
Share surplus Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
A
BRGEE BEARHE E-Si0 1 waEm
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
At 1 January 2018 R=—T—N\F—HA—H 815,125 157,955 (541,063) 432,017
Loss for the year FAEE = = (23,617) (23,617)
Other comprehensive income/(loss):  HAb2EU A/ (E18) : - - _ _
Total comprehensive loss for the year X% EEE#&E = = (23,617) (23,617)
At 31 December 2018 R=E—N\F+=-A=+—8 815,125 157,955 (564,680) 408,400
Loss for the year FNEE - - (32,043) (32,043)
Other comprehensive income/(loss):  HAb2EU A/ (E18) - - _ _ _
Total comprehensive loss for the year R 2 EE B4 - = (32,043) (32,043)
At 31 December 2019 RZZE-NE+=ZA=+—H 815,125 157,955 (596,723) 376,357
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e

—hE+=BE+—AILEE

Summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the AEERBERBEFE HEMLEE  SELE
last five years/period is as follows: ERENT :
For the period
from 1 April For the year For the year Fortheyear  For the year
20150 ended ended ended ended
31December  31December  31December  31December 31 December
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
—E-RE
mA—A HE BE Y Bz
E-T-0F 2R “T—+F “T-N\F —E-NF
+-A=+—-8B +ZA=+—-H +ZA=+-8B +t=ZA=+—H +=A=+—-H
LHEAE HFE HFE IEFE LFE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET FET
Results x5
Revenue WA 347 37,042 216,587 530,232 695,901
Profit/(loss) before income tax B FTERATHEFI,/
(E18) (194,755) (90,409) 112,597 26,243 138,935
Income tax (expense)/credit IR (A% #e 1,546 (10,889) 11,224 (6,903) (25,318)
Profit/(loss) for the period/year  HARS,/EE% 7/
(B#E) (193,209) (101,298) 123,821 19,340 113,617
Profit/(loss) attributable to ANREA NPT
owners of the Company A/ (EE) (193,209) (101,136) 131,719 27,427 110,749
As at As at As at As at As at
31December  31December  31December  31December 31 December
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
RZT— E RZE—RF RZT— ﬁ i E RZE-NE
+-A=+—-H8 +ZA=+—-H +ZA=+—-8B +=-A=+—-H8 +=A=+-H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT FET AT FET FET
Assets and liabilities BEREE
Total assets BEE 1,672,566 2,425,233 2,867,988 3,358,006 3,466,997
Total liabilities BaE (203,999) (500,045) (462,594) 949,477 1,047,954
Total equity EReE 1,468,567 1,925,188 2,405,394 2,378,529 2,419,043
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